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2022 10

45,257 100.24

1 0.00

0 0.00

0 0.00

0 0.00

0 0.00

45,258 100.25

111 0.25
45,147

5.890 100.00
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2022 10

2,674 5.91
1,672 3.69
1,361 3.01
1,061 2.34
955 2.11
840 1.86
818 1.81
652 1.44
626 1.38
612 1.35
522 1.15
486 1.07
460 1.02
458 1.01
418 0.92
342 0.76
331 0.73
299 0.66
296 0.65
296 0.65
291 0.64
273 0.60
245 0.54
230 0.51
200 0.44
191 0.42
169 0.37
158 0.35
149 0.33
95 0.21

51 0.11

37 0.08

1 0.00
17,269 38.16
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1,491 3.29
1,376 3.04
1,312 2.90
1,265 2.80
1,031 2.28
688 1.52
686 1.52
643 1.42
634 1.40
604 1.33
589 1.30
553 1.22
539 1.19
506 1.12
481 1.06
446 0.99
400 0.88
378 0.84
368 0.81
355 0.78
339 0.75
337 0.74
333 0.74
329 0.73
319 0.70
314 0.69
313 0.69
292 0.65
285 0.63
273 0.60
262 0.58
251 0.55
228 0.50
214 0.47
202 0.45
201 0.44
196 0.43
192 0.42
180 0.40
175 0.39
161 0.36
161 0.36
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158 0.35
155 0.34
154 0.34
154 0.34
153 0.34
146 0.32
146 0.32
143 0.32
120 0.27
81 0.18
66 0.15
58 0.13
42 0.09
21,478 47.46
1,726 3.81
1,430 3.16
1,289 2.85
106 0.23
27 0.06
3 0.01
1 0.00
4,582 10.12
183 0.40
284 0.63
2,691 5.95
264 0.58
46,751 103.30
1,494 3.30
45,257
( 5.908 ) 100.00
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30
2022 10
(¢ ) (¢ )
PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund
m 45,954,275 3,216,580 45,257,276 100.24
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. 2.580 | 2022/11/ 232 232 232 0.00
Royal Bank of Canada 2.580 | 2022/11/ 229 229 229| 0.00
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group
Ltd. 2.580 | 2022/11/ 208 208 208| 0.00
2.580 | 2022/11/ 179 179 179| 0.00
2.580 | 2022/11/ 176 176 176| 0.00
Citibank N.A. 2.580 | 2022/11/ 174 174 174 0.00
DBS Bank Ltd. 2.580 | 2022/11/ 108 108 108 0.00
Bank of Nova Scotia 2.580 | 2022/11/ 17 17 17 0.00
10 UFJ (0.270)| 2022/11/ 0 31 0| 0.00
11 |Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 2.580 | 2022/11/ 0 0 0 0.00
12 (0.270)| 2022/11/ 0 5 0 0.00
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2022 10
C )
Japan Treasury Bills 0.130 2022/11/ 210,000,000 1,412,895 3.12
Federal Home Loan Bank 2.700 2022/11/ 1,100,000 1,100,000 2.43
Ni i | i 1
fgeria Goverment [nternationa 6.375 | 2023/ /12 800,000 778,360 | 1.72
Bond
Dominican Republic International 5.050 2007/ 125 800,000 750,197 1.66
Bond
U.S. Treasury Notes 3.125 2029/ /31 800,000 749,813 1.66
Israel Treasury Bills 1.731 2023/ / 2,300,000 640,105 1.41
Odebrecht Drilling Norbe VII1/IX
Ltd 7.350 2026/12/ 1,014,775 575,885 1.27
Israel Treasury Bills 0.889 2023/ / 2,000,000 559,513 1.24
Israel Treasury Bills 1.835 2023/ [/ 1,900,000 526,988 1.16
10 U.S. Treasury Bonds 3.250 2042/ /15 600,000 507,469 1.12
11 U.S. Treasury Bonds 2.000 2041/11/15 700,000 477,531 1.06
12 Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd. 6.350 2028/ /10 500,000 450,480 1.00
13 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.950 2060/ /28 742,000 446,538 0.99
14 U.S. Treasury Bonds 3.375 2042/ /15 500,000 431,484 0.95
Development Bank of Southern
15 _ 8.600 2024/10/21 7,500,000 400,394 0.88
Africa Ltd.
Devel Bank of Kazakh
16 J:Ze opnent Bank of Kazakhstan 4125 | 2022712710 400,000 309,920 | 0.88
Ivory Coast Government
17 R 5.750 2032/12/31 438,862 389,637 0.86
International Bond
Colombia Government
18 _ 4.000 2024/02/26 400,000 383,756 0.85
International Bond
19 |Turkey Government International 5.750 | 20477 /11 600,000 371,101 | o0.82
Bond
20 Pertamina Persero PT 6.500 2048/11/ 400,000 362,000 0.80
21 Israel Government Bond 0.150 2023/ /31 1,200,000 333,500 0.74
Colombia Government
22 R 5.625 2044/ /26 500,000 325,663 0.72
International Bond
Uruguay Government International
23 Bond 5.100 2050/ /18 350,000 314,130 0.69
Ecuador Government International
24 Bond 5.500 2030/ /31 577,300 308,942 0.68
25 Eizzt Governnent International 4.750 | 2026/ 716 400,000 300,450 | 0.6
Sasol Financing International
26 Ltd 4.500 2022/11/14 300,000 299,570 0.66
27 |Petroleos Mexicanos 7.690 2050/ /23 454,000 296,578 0.66
Mitsubishi UFJ Fi ial ,
28 "']CS“ ishi URJ Financial Group 5.063 | 2025/ /12 300,000 205,763 | 0.65
29 Gaci First Investment Co. 5.000 2027/10/13 300,000 295,110 0.65
Costa Rica Government
30 _ 5.625 2043/ /30 400,000 292,047 0.65
International Bond
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2023
222,460,118.57 29,024,372 10.53 1,374
2013 10
10
185,324,715.18 24,179,316 10.42 1,359
2014 10
11
123,239,694 .32 16,079,083 9.01 1,176
2015 10
12
96,713,902.14 12,618,263 9.28 1,211
2016 10
13
91,001,776.00 11,873,002 9.30 1,213
2017 10
14
80,191,316.35 10,462,561 8.27 1,079
2018 10
15
82,959,195.11 10,823,686 8.75 1,142
2019 10
16
77,835,585.30 10,155,209 8.15 1,063
2020 10
17
76,225,848.74 9,945,186 7.92 1,033
2021 10
18
45,146,892.14 5,890,315 5.36 699
2022 10
2022 64,282,600.02 8,386,951 6.97 909
63,248,033.60 8,251,971 6.89 899
58,551,785.11 7,639,251 6.47 844
57,436,522.50 7,493,743 6.39 834
52,529,403.51 6,853,511 5.92 772
52,476,484 .97 6,846,607 5.97 779
51,253,814.40 6,687,085 5.87 766
46,250,646.19 6,034,322 5.45 711
10 45,146,864.61 5,890,311 5.36 699
11 48,054,912.19 6,269,724 5.75 750
12 47,719,061.99 6,225,906 5.73 748
2023 48,655,450.87 6,348,077 5.88 767
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0.72 94

10 0.72 94
11 0.72 94
12 0.72 94
13 0.72 94
14 0.72 94
15 0.72 94
16 0.72 94
17 0.72 94
18 0.72 94
2022 0.06 8
0.06 8

0.06 8

0.06 8

0.06 8

0.06 8

0.06 8

0.06 8

10 0.06 8

11 0.06 8

12 0.06 8

2023 0.06 8
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2.60
2012 11 2013 10 31
10
5.79
2013 11 2014 10 31
11
6.62
2014 11 2015 10 31
12
10.99
2015 11 2016 10 31
13
7.97
2016 11 2017 10 31
14
3.33
2017 11 2018 10 31
15
14.51
2018 11 2019 10 31
16
1.37
2019 11 2020 10 31
17
6.01
2020 11 2021 10 31
18
23.23
2021 11 2022 10 31

100

91/439



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023

@42 - T POERREMAE 2022 £1 ARREOLOTEY. BROEMERSLRELCETETILOTEEUE A,
HREHLUEELRTTRRECE. DRAALTRALTEYET. LT, sHOREI—BLES0EETaUET,

M EOHTS (2005848218~ 202381 B%8)

N DELUNRESS 588 ¥FIL (¥FL) HREAS 1 ON-URANSSRURASERONE (SHXFL)
it ’ i e fr—— BEIBAEER1SCHAREEEN) e
m 48,655 451 ¥EN 240+ — ;ng () 2.160
210+ W 1890
180 - 41820
15.0 - ~1.350
'50E o
60+ Thed BA0
33 ."2"3
(50 R PR (B0 004 00 R 2R R LR SRS ERE TR HEE ME I0R IR D56
FELBEOHR (@ANLRBKEBLLN— 71 UADER)
SR CIV-YuSilE EARBERE
P B8+ RS s—fy  mEs B AAES
TEH—HY 5.32% FE=h@a 505%  2027/1/25 BB 1.55%
TERENTY 8.82% +4YUPER 6.38%  2023/7/12 B~ 1.53%
PEFal—va 6.444F I UEVER 950%  2030/2/2 BBB+  1.40%
P ; ap 2 ants AFILEM 735%  2026/12/1 CC 1.01%
P L o gl NPT 695%  2060/1/28 BBE  0.99%
RABRSIUY T IAALREBRBHTEBUR A | ey R S OB SRR T STV SR
= Al AR AR IDEEEREE
OB IBIRRELE Wi S RETEULALE
CCCLITF 8.8% | AA0.7% HHIPSEP B.1% . RL—UP %
AL _——FFE 5.2%
el A A% 6.1%
Tt A UERUP 4.9%
s ~jl— 4.5%
KF==# 35%
BB 19.0% BEB 39.9% FA T3P 21%
R 2.5% R
SBHEMo0dY SHBLUSEPHOBESELL TPMCOVARLESD gy Y]
*LEBOAERICEL REROHTRELTURT (INEBALL2S ) ES’J'I-. ;:J%ﬁ-t?.;ﬁﬁﬁwﬁr.wl.n;?!-ﬂ;r;}::i
WEE T Iay, J- b0~k 372 ToFE L. 5574,
# LEROBANIE S DS ORI LU HI00ME B RE m& T S A
o g | TN RN NP N5A8Y A VF ARTIS E=5UF T,
Y749 F3TBERRE IWAMIEY (351N 3K, =t 04T,
B1-b F24F T AT ¥ P A A2, 057
& (E MM S SR, REBR 22T,
g%&mﬂ-u# EREADEEC LU N1 0% ESE S A
DEOHEE (FIm
AR H ®IABH WISHH RIGARH MITSIT WSRN 20224 2022 2023F 2 RER
: i e b1 4 e .4, 4 e 128 1R nH
108LUNERCEFL) 072 0.72 072 0.72 072 0.06 0.06 0.06 12.72
IRt RO HETS
60.0%
- ! L Ll .a:\
20.0% . - o 1111 v B eres
e SHEE o O 1963 - 137 008 B0V a4
.200% | 280227 662 333439
ke 23232419

BOSHEE WIAIHEE BUSHEE W12HSE WISAHEE WUSHSE WISSINE WEEHYE BI7EHEE WEsleE

(B 1A F T — i IPE L EMBIAT — U S =22 P
(2R R %) =100 (a-b) /b
a=fitirg=a 1D§T‘Uﬂﬂlﬂf#§ﬂ‘m%ﬂmm‘}
b=YERIHEROEE DN EERD 05008 R EEE (RO

92/439



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2,559,450 7,044,748 21,118,266

2012 11

2013 10 31 (2,559, 450) (7,044,748) (21,118,266)
10 702,030 4,027,591 17,792,705

2013 11

2014 10 31 (702,030) (4,027,591) (17,792,705)
11 454,310 4,570,081 13,676,934

2014 11

2015 10 31 (454,310) (4,570,081) (13,676,934)
12 417,790 3,671,475 10,423,249

2015 11

2016 10 31 (417,790) (3,671,475) (10,423, 249)
13 650,730 1,292,685 9,781,294

2016 11

2017 10 31 (650,730) (1,292,685) (9,781,294)
14 903,690 988,502 9,696,482

2017 11

2018 10 31 (903, 690) (988,502) (9,696,482)
15 461,020 680,093 9,477,409

2018 11

2019 10 31 (461,020) (680,093) (9,477,409)
16 616,600 548,637 9,545,372

2019 11

2000 10 31 (616,600) (548,637) (9,545,372)
17 1,095,980 1,019,409 9,621,943

2020 11

2021 10 31 (1,095,980) (1,019, 409) (9,621,943)
18 102,810 1,303,543 8,421,210

2021 11

2002 10 31 (102,810) (1,303,543) (8,421,210)
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USA
USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank Secrecy
Act

CSSF 08 387 CSSF 10 476
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10 31

5,000 1972 Exchange

Control Act 1972 BMA
90
75
100
5,000
12
2003 12
2006 22
2017 14

2017 29 2018
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2020 11 2021 10 31
2021 11 2022 10 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2023 31
130.47
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2022 10 31

2022 10 31

1 0

45,257 5,905

0 0

0 0

0 0

31 4

0 0

45,289 5,909

0 0

0 0

31 4

25 3

4 1

18 2

64 8

142 19

45,147 5,890

1 0

45,955 5,996

45,147 5,890
8,421

5.36 699
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2022 10 31

46,751 6,100
0 0

50 7

504 66
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7. 3500 due 1270172026 (c) LG BTG
Pora Enhanced Pass-Through Finsmce Ltd

0. 000% due 06,02,/2025 () 164 156
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Poinsettia Finance Ltd
6. B25% due 06/17,/2031 3 186 3 157

5.0 Global Sukuk Ltd

1. B0 due 061772026 i) 175

2. 684% due 06172031 200 164

Seazen Group Ltd

4. A50% due 0771372025 el 36

Sunsc Chinn Holdimgs Ltd (=)

7. 0508 due 09/ 14,2049 200 13

7. B0 due 02/701,/2024 200 13

Thongsheng Group Holdings Ltd.

3. 000% due D1713/2008 200 178
2674

ESA Sukuk Ltd

5. B8N due 10252028 M P 1 4]

i = A e

(MmN 53, 663)

Banco Santander Chile

X TO0% due 01710,/2025 (i) 150 141

Corp. Nacional del Cobre do Chile

4. BTHS due 117042044 200 164

Embotelladora Andina 5. A

& WS due 01213060 150 111

3. 065% due 08/18/2050 00 11l

& B3R due 09714,/208]1 200 123

Emproesa de Transporte de Passjeros Metro 5. A

4. TOPK due 05,07 /2050 00 140

Empresa Nacicaal del Petroles

i A50% due 09/16,2001 200 156
B55

Pl AR

Chile Goverrment Internatiocal Bond
4 0 due 03507 /2042

g
g

F0AM 1,109
(MW 51, 495)
Ecopotral S A0

T.375% due 09/13/2043

B N

g
£

4. 000% due 02726,/2004 400 a4
1.125% due 05/15/2051 00 106
4. BO0% due 03/15,/2029 300 M3
B. G25% due 02/26,/2044 B 128
T.9T5% due 091872037 ] 253

1313
apETHH 1,481
(MU 32, 0a0)
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XU A 0%

Costa Rica Government Intermational Bond

5. 625% due O4/30/2043 $ 400 $ g
Ay Y HaH pa]
(HLAHIEE 33400

Dominican Republic Contral Bank Notes

12, D00% duse 1003,/ 325 (e i 1] 37
Dominican Republic International Bopd

5. 300% due 01/21,/2048 5 i 138
B HOUS due D2/22,/2021 200 175
SO050% due 01,725/2027 B0 a0
B D00 due 02/22/2033 00 165
B A0S due 06/05,/2045 200 145
i BSOS due 0172772045 100 8
¥ I =dREatt 1,491

(M 31, 75E)

AU L
Ecuador Goverssont International Bopd

0. 000% due 07,731,/2030 176 55
1. BOO% due 07,/31,/2040 1]
2 500% due O7/31/2035 Ton 58
b. BOO% due 07/31,/20G0 BTT ot
=& T Enih (]
(RS 51, 0700

bl N

Egypt Govermment International Bond

17508 due 04,716,2026 EUR 400 300
5. G2Z5% due 04/16,/2030 200 120
6. 375% due 04,11/2031 200 120
T 300% due 09730,2003 3 200 126
7. 625% due 06,/29,/2032 00 129
7. 00a% due 02721/2048 200 113
8. BO0% due 01,/31,/2047 00 178
B.BTES due 05,/20/2060 0 170
=PI EH 1. 266

(ML 31, D66)

LT A e E e 0, 4%
Ed AN
El Salvadar Goverrment International Band

T 1255 due 0172042060 20

7. 625% due 09,21,/2034 100

. 500 due 07/15/2062 150

T At ot 1
(AN 54530

=

2 &8
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Republic of Ghans Internaticnal Bond
0 000% due 040772025 1 200 5 a8
7. 0255 due 05,/16,/2029 200 57
8. 126% due 0G,/26./2032 0 B8
B G255 due 04072034 i 5t
B, To0% duc 03/11./°206] ELUL] (BLE]
A—r+att 3T
(B 31, 243)
Industrial Senior Trust
5. 500% due 11,/01/2002 200 it}
P s N
Gontesals Goverrment Bond
4. 900% due 06,01,/2030 00 ot |
G I25% due 06,701,/2050 200 172
446
FTFvIAMH ]
(RS $696)
Hunrong Finance 2017 Co. Ltd
10508 due 117072047 o1} 1104
Huareng Finance 2019 Co. Litd.
A I05% due 02/24/2023 00 197
]
W0
Adrport Aothority
2 A00% due 0G/08,/2028 () 00 161

Hungary Goverment Intornational Bond

1- 625% due 04,/28/2032 EUR
L. T50% due D96,05,/2035

5. 2504 due 06/16./2000 %
5. BOUS due 06, 16,/2004

Y —E0 59
(EAIRE 5737)

EE€y

1. 1%
Aani Transmission Step—One Ltd.
1. 250% due 05,21/2006 175 129

Export-Isport Bank of India

3 250% due 01/15/2030 200 ({2
Mathoot Finance Ltd

4. 400% due 09,/02,/2003 200 194
A~ P& 456
(ENE 5578

166/439



EDINETOOOO
O0000000oO0o0oooobooo0o0000odoonognoodnogna(EeLsoss)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

2022 10 31

Wi By iR
{ T [ ]

Fresport Indomesia FT

5. 315% due 04/ 14/2032 1 200 i 169
Indoneaia Asahan Alusinium Persero FT

B 4508 due 05152030 200 176
Pertanina Persere PT

G, pO0% due | 170772048 400 i
Perusahsan Gas Megara Thk PT

5o I25% due DG/16/2024 200 196
Perusshasn Perseroan Persero PT Perusshasn Listrik Negara

B 150N due 067212048 200 151
A FRTEN 1. 061
(S 51, 190)

Republic of Angola Via Avenir Issuer Il Ireland DAC
6. 927% due 02/19/2027 o

giE

TART L FEN
(B 561)

Laviathan Bond Ltd.
6. 1255 due 06/30,/2025 200 191

bt e S

Israel Government Hond

O 15 due 07/31/2023 IS L 00 133
4 AZF =it 524
(EFhiiR 5544)

o= hIF T — 3%

U LS

Ivory Comst Govermment International Bond
B 2508 due 03/22./2030 EVR 200
5. T50% due 12/31/2082 3 130
6. 625% due 00222048 EUR 100
== kI TS
(HPHEREE $797)

Elzin

Jemaica Goverrment International Bond

T.BTS% due 07/28/2045 i 200 214
Cywd HOM 214
(AR S2000

et 0. %
Mitsubishi UF] Fimancial Group, Ine.
5o063% due 09/12/2025 00

i
HA 296
(GBS $200)
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e, Fp XA O3

Corspir International Ltd

5 ATHS due 01/28/2027 EUR 100 ] 95
Py—ii—, Friidii 9
(GRS 112)

Jordan Government Internaticnal Bond

5.850% due 07/07/2030 5 00 24t
7078 duo 10/10/2047 00 151
Fa-shl 400
(A $507)

Development Bank of Kazakhstam JSC
4 E25% due 1201072022 A0 A0

KazMunayGas Natiomal Co. J5C
B 375% due DL24/20G0
5. T50% due D4/19/2047

Tengizchovroil Finance Cospany Intommationnl Ltd
3 2500 due 08715,/2030 paill] 137
B4D

Kazakhstan Government International Bond

165
138

4. 6755 due 10/14/2044 = 164
AT A AR =
(M 51, 220)

Ropublic of Kenya Government International Bond

. 300% due 01/23,/2034 00 128
£ 000% due 05/22/2032 B0 211
r=TEHN 338

(LS $545)

Lobanon Goverrment Intornationsl Bond

B 750% due 06/17/2034 (a) 00 i
L i 42
(AN 548)

Guoara Norte Sarl

B 156% due D6/15,20034 187 147
Potrerio Luxembourg Trading Sarl

B 1258 due 06002026 200 181
Unigel Luzesbourg 5.4

B TS0 due 107012026 il ] 194
AFELT AL s2
(AU $567)
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Petronas Capital Lid.

3 404% due 042802061 H 200 i 124
Petronas Energy Canada Ltd.

21125 due 03/23/2028 200 172
zl—iTaH 96
(HFRINEE 5364)

Amoricn Movil SAB de C.V.

B 3TEN due 040472032 =0 150

Comision Fedoernl de Electricidad

6 264% doe 0271552052 200 149

Hipotecaria 5o Casita 5.A de C.V.

0. 6204 due DB/27/2049 (a) N 3512 [

Petroleos Mexicanos

. J50% duc 0271272048 H 00 173

& TEO% due 09/21/2047 00 i1

. 950% due 00/28/2060 42 145

7. 600% due 01/23/2050 454 iy
1,361

P )
Mexico Government International Bond
5. T50% duc 10/12/2110

g
i

AR agit 1,614
(IR PHRTES 32, 640)

Mangolin Government Internationsl Bond

3. 500% due 07072027 00 138
B- 128% due 12/05/2022 120 118
5 BZ5% due 05/01,/2023 200 L 1]
B TE due 00/00,/2024 00 158

0P S
4 TH0N due 06/Z3/2031 0 150
200

5. 125% due 06/23/2051 123

—_— 28
P )
Morocco Goverrsent International Bomd
40008 dus 12/15,/2050 200 (hiL]
200

4. 1508 due 12/11/2022 S0

318
o v adi 592
(AR $T96)
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b LT

(It [
I ET 0.4%
b LR LY
Kamibia Govermment Internationsl Bond
5 250% due 107292025 3 200 i 150
TIeTan 180
(RIS 51990

Kazakhston Temir Tholy Finance BY

GOS0 due 07/10/2042 A0 155

Motinvest BY

7. 150 due 047232023 200 (iU

NE Proparty BV

1. 875% due 10092026 EUR 100 !

Prosus KV

L B3 due 08,03,/2028 1 4

3 ISTE due 01192027 3 00 165
626

P L

Ropublic of Angola Via Avenir 11 BV

B B0 due 127072023 S0 L))

10, H47% due 070053023 245 247
337

FF M 963

(PS50, 234)

7. 500% due 02/16/2027 2l o0 psi1]
SV AR A0S
Nigeria Govermsent Intornational Bond
G 375N due 07/12/2023 ] 00 Tig
6. 5008 due 11/28/8027 200 142
. 135 due 02//23,/2000 i a7
B 250% due 09/28,/2061 200 17
B.T4TS due 017212081 200 142
1,376
Y= TN 1, 606
(MeFHRLES 32, 063)

dv—1r 1. 4%

AU LS
(Oman Government Imternational Bond

B G25% due DLS17/2028 H00 Hea
B, 000% due 08,/0],/2020 200 191
6. 500% due 0308,/ 2047 20 LES
A —ifii 643

(bR $665)

AN A e ), 4%

Pt WK
Pakistan Governmest Internaticnal Bond

B: BTRS due 12/05/2027 i 64
B BTS% due 040872051 00 T
HAEAY M 158

(A $493)
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Meropuerto Internscicnal de Tocmssn 5. A
5 125% due 068/11/2061 5 200 5 36

Autoridad del Canal de Panasa

4. 9508 due 07/20/2035 (i) 200 178

Banco Naciomal de Panasa

2. bO0% due 08/]11,/2030 00 144
458

Eard e - ]
Panssa Government International Bond

4. 300% doe O4/20,2083 B0 19
4. 500% due 04,/01/2056 200 4
4. BO0% doe 01/19,/2063 0 127
B TO0% due 01,/26,2036 100 G

563
it 1,011

(EAWE 51,627

AT A 0,8

b AN
Paraguay Govornmemt Internaticnal Bond

3198 due 06,/28/2033 200 163
4.0 due 03727/2027 200 12
AFETAE 355

GRS $395)

6. BT5% due (M/1T7/2027 PEN RO0 187

Baneo de Credita del Peru 5. A

4. 650N doe 09/17,/2024 (S HE

Cospania do Minas Buenaveoturs SAA

b. BO0% due 07/I3,2026 3 200 166

InRetail Consmer

20N due 00/22/2008 pi] 158
B2

Pora Governsont Internotional Bond

3. 230% due 072872121 200 o7
3. BO0% due 01/15/2072 B0 I 78

25
~a—git 537

(HARREEE 31, 205)

T4 U 0.7

Pl N

Philippines Govermment International Bond
29600 due 05/06/2045

3000 due 0706/ 2046

Fa 1 Bl

(LR $408)

28
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L i

LTI L)
Gatar Energy
3.126% due 0122041 5 200 5 21
3. 300% due 07/12/2051 B 20
& —nfiit 418
(RS $595)

Romania Goversment Internatiomal Bond

2 126% due 05/07/2008 LR 200 156
* BTE due 04/13/2042 200 105
3 T50% due 02/07./2034 100 0
1. 6255 due 040379040 400 50
Bo (O0%: due 09/27/2026 100 o
Ar—zr2TEN [
CEARLE 51, 114)

HMossia Governmest Internatiomal Bond

1-850% due 11,/20/2002 200 ™
4. 3758 due 032172029 5 00 LL1]
SETHER dup 09/16/2043 20 14
=Tl 273
(B 5508)

Saudi Arsbisn 0il Co.
3 500K due 11/24/2070 400 245

Saudi Govermment International Bond

. AB0% due 02/02/2061 200 129
4. BOO% due 10/25/2048 0 30

68
FUPTIET &M 613

UGS $945)

Senegal Govermment International Bond

1. TEO% due 03/13/2028 EUR 200 162
B 250% due 06/23/2033 § 200 151
EEHAAH 313
(MR S448)

AT 05
Pl s W
Serbia Government International Bond

L D00 due 09,23, 2028 EUR: 200
1. 650% due 03/03,/2033 150
A ETEN

(AR s330)

Blaz
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Medeo Ball Pte Ltd

B 3TH% due 01/30,/2027 3 200 5 160
Singapore Airlines Lid,

3. 375% due 01,/19./2020 200 171
L —nftt 331
(EARE 3397

AngloGold Ashanti Holdings FLC

3. T50% due 10012030 200 154
Developsent Bank of Southern Africa Ltd.

B 600N due 10/21/2024 (g) AR 7. b0 A0D
Eskom Holdings S0C Ltd,

4. 304% due 07/23/2027 $ 200 168
B JE0% due 08/ 10/2028 SO0 450
Growthpoint Properties Intermational Pty Ltd.

5 BT due 050272003 200 pa 1]

Sasol Financing Imternational Led.
4:500% due 11714/2022

g
|2

I8

HFUAAN L
South Africa Government Internmticonal Bond

5. TH0% due 08,30/2049 00 BT
U008 due 04720/2052 i 158
10, 500% due 12/20/ 200 AR 2, 0 P14

538
72U AEN 2,211
(e fbEiiE 32, 08

=Tk 0
Hied s SN
Sri Lankn Government Intornstional Bond (n)

B 0% due 4/18/2023 5
B I26% due 06703,/2005

b BSOS due 10/03,°2028

1. 550% due 03/28,2030

AT haN
(I $02s)

2882

Blzzeos

[ O, 4%

0, 4%

Eastorn & Southorn African Trade & Dovelopment Bank
4. 125% due 063002028 00 158

[P - 158
(R $200)

Credit Suisse Group AG

2. 593% due 09/11/2025 ] 6T
U85 Group AG

4. 490% due 08,/05,/2025 200 183
e 460
(BAMRLE $400)
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i R LL
{ 1) LR

Tunizian Republic

5. B25% due 02/17/2024 EUR 1] i |
G TS0% due 10531,/2023 100 Al
f‘a.‘:y?‘&ﬂ' 155
(RARE 51440

Tarkey Government Imternaticnsl Bond
4. §75% due 10,09/2006 5 00 |

1. 875% due 04162043 150 64
5. 250% due 0G'13/2030 00 =5
5.T50% due 05/11/2047 3l
kA& 1,041
(RIS 31, 356)

NPC Vkrenargo
b BTES due 11,/00/2028

g

37
eraine Goverrmont Intornational Bond

4. 3754 due D1/27/2032 EUR 500 by
G, BT6% due 05/°21/2031 3 200 il
TLIBIN due 03715/2035 0 "
7. 3754 due 09/725/2034 00 a
T.TB0N due 09/01/2025 00 3
750N due 09/01/2026 100 18

251
0F 3 A TN 88

(P 51, 6530
T3 i R 108

Abu Dhabi Crude 0il Pipeline LLC

4. 000% due 100252047 200 i72

NEBE SPC Ltd

1. 625 due 09/15/2027 et ¥
342

Finance Departmont Governsent of Sharjah

4. 578K due 0G/10/2061 00 120
bbb £20F 1S 262
(MFNE $576)

£ F V2 1B

Barclays PLC

5o 304% due 08/00/2026
HSEC Holdings PLC

4. 300% due 03/0H/ 2026 (i)
B 210% due 06/11/2028

Lloyds Banking Group FLC
1. TI6% due 08/11/2026

2= EB 2
&
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{T-H i) R
State Savings Bank of Ukreine Vis 358 #1 FILC
O, 375% due 0G/10/2023 : 10 5 7
Ukraine Railways ¥ia Rail Capital Markets FLC
B 2508 due 07,09,/ 2024 il i
krexishank Yia Biz Finance PLC
9. To0% due 01/22/2025 L] 20
A% A& 818
(M 51, 083)
AU HaeE BB
i L4
Rio 0il Finance Trust Series 2014-3
o 750% due 01,/06,/2027 Lol p- 11
Rio 0il Finance Trust Series 2018-1
00N duc 0406,/ 20028 2% 214
Rutas 2 & 7 Finsnce Ltd.
0, DO0% due 09,30/ 2056 187 112
B12
AL o FLer 5 BERR 0. 6K
Citigroup Martgage Loan Trust
2,350 doe 00262034 2 2
Dewtsche Alternative-A Socurities Mortgage Loan Trust
3 016% due 0RS25°2007 (a) bl i
Luminent Mortgage Trust
30008 due 125259000 (a) | 3
Morgan Stanley Mortgage Loan Trisst
D U3TE due 06252006 = =
284
LR[S AR O 0. 63
Fannie Mae, THA
35006 due 12012052 (d) 0D 64
[P EESR 5. 08
MR R R
L. To0% due 02715/204) BHp 196
2 000% due 11715,/2040 (4) T00 478
200755 due 021552042 10 T3
3 150 due 0571552042 (1) (=] 507
3. 375% due 081552042 SO0 431
SRR ER A ch R IES
1. B26% due 08/ 15,/2029 300 G
31258 due 0631°2000 (i) B T
2,691
TAV A EREAH 3,851

Uruguay Govermsont Internationnl Bopd

5. 100 due 06/ 18/2050 350 314
GRS T A 314
(RIS $368)
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i R LL
{ 1) LR

3. 900% due 10/ 192031 H 200 S 143
0EAR R 143
(HLARE $160)

Petroleos de Yeoozuels S A, (m)

5L 3TSN due 04122027 a0 8
B 500% due 04/12/2007 1, 600 36
B 000% due 11/15,/2026 R T

51

PR )
Venezusla Goverrsent Internstional Bond (a)
G DO0% due 12/06,/2049 A0
7. T50% due 4/13/2024 L]
& I50% due 101372004 150 11
200
]

000 due 05072023

11, 950% due DE057 03] 38
146

AXRAE TN 187

(EAbELEE $2, 050)

AT 0.2%

Ml = S ]

Iashia Government International Bond

E.000% due O7,/30/2027 (a) 200 81

P rTak 81

LGRS $178)

A N G 10. 1%

mw— Loy b s Al 4K

Foderal Homo Loan Bank

27000 due 110172022 (e) 1, 100 1. 100

LENE (R 0, 4%

i
i
o=
w
&

Mostralis and Hew Zealand Banking Group Ltd,
L. B20% due 1170172022 A L
Bank of Hova Scotia

L B10% due 110152022 CAD 21 15
BNP Paribas Banl

0. 300% due 11/01/2022 R 1
Brown Brothers Harrisesn & Co.

(0. 270%) due 11/00/2022 Y 1
MUFG Hank Ltd

{0, 2708} due 117012020

Royal Bank of Canada
o E10N due 11,/01,/2022 CAl 16 1

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
0 3106 due 11,/01,/2022 FUR T

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Led
{0, 270 due 11/01/2022 L] 214

£y

=

L
—
=
L

L i

EIJ
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il LT 3

Tl i) PR
0L B due 05/03/2023 (e) s 2, 000 ] 559
L. T31% due 07/06/2033 (F) 2, 300 80
1. B35% due 060272023 (F) 1. 900 527

1,726

EERE T B
(0, ) due 11072022 (o) L 210, 000 1. 413
LATIR due L1SOS/2022 Le) Wik 500 105
M A £ 4, 562
(AR 54, B4d)
BrEfEESaN 103, 3% $ 45,761
(AR 364, 540)
&BF AT o G ) 00 0,18 H
(M REE T 2 74, e 08T
oo REE LTAAN, W (3 ) {1, 528)
W 100, 0% $ 45,257

R EER e SR

* YomEn, FTRCERCOREAShEEREEERLTVEI LS RE,

inh  EEFETICN S SEER,

b RAEEN, BRENLTVEOMNL, @MESE, MRCERLoRETRED T,
feh ML BER,

RTSRFESR,
foh iy, WETOHED R,
i PR, ANETONETRAED ERT,

WM E Efe R S0D
RiTHET Femiflr (M/BMAE) N/BSE i ] EHE R
Development Bank of Southern Africa Lid H, B Lo/ a0 (LR PR e | 3 5N i 400 0, 55%

AL L TR ot o0 B e R |

Lot
m¥E EHR (R,  LHEE, 13 TF ]
HEN HHeH (B89 WAME  GmEk  ER ] R =mm
s 24 1070572022 11A0RS2022 30 189 LS, Treasury Bonds 3, 000%
due 08/ 15/ 248 ] (176 8 15§ 1K)
(B Sy ] (176} § 189§ 190

mEE wma B ]
mEh AEHY (RSB  (ASHAF) A bodre St
DEL 3. 080% 1018/ 2022 1101 2022 § Ani 3 (o, 7itd
506 L R e ] 1104/ 2022 {850) {gse)
B $ (2, 624)
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2022 10 31

BRI LTRSS o

B ORIEREW B
F—st—td b
BLF
A SBEET  31EML008 90 B i it

LA
AR 3 0§ mE2 % [ o s (852
R (17720 0 1] 0 {1, 772)
Frer s R § (7 3 (g52) % [ [ (2, 624)
HAhER [ (1,778} 3§ (B6Z) % [ [ (2, 624)
LR i SR § (2,624

e WD [2ha S
HEN ol F—#r (AS/BS%) SRS S kde 'Y
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities (cont. Detaher 31,2022
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities (cont. Detaher 31,2022
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities (cont. Detaber 31,2022
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Statements of Operations (com) Yaar Ended Dctebar 31, 2002
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets (cont)
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets (cont)
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Financial Highlights cont)
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1. ORGAN ZATION

Each Fund discussed in this report (sach a "Fund” and collectively, the "Funds ™). which dsoindiedes each diass of units of that Fund {each a "Class™ and collectivedy,

the "Classes™), is 3 series trust of AMCO Bermuda Trust 0 (the “Trust™), an open-ended unit

stablished under the laws of Bermuda 35 2 multisenss st

prrpand 3 rust deed eccuted by Winchester Global Trust Comparny Limeted on Decernbes 1, 2003 (36 arnenided froem Sime 1o e, the "Trust Deed”). Efective a5
of the date of budiness (Eastem tme) on September 29, 2017, Maples Trussee Sendoes (Benmuda) Lmited (he "Trusee ™) wad appointed a3 trustee of the Tz
Padfic kneestment Management Company LLC (CPRACOT, the "Manager™ of the "irestment Adviter™) is the sponsor of and was reqponsible fior siruchuring the Tnsst

The Trust &5 subject 1o requlagion and supenvision 5 provided for in the Ivestment Funds Act 2006 and related rules reating 1o standad funds
The terms of the Trust Deed confes upon te Trustes, with the consent of the Manager, te power, in the future, 1o essabilsh funtker funds i sddtion 1o the Funds

curren®y in operation as of te date of this report

References to nitholders (each, 2 "Unitholder”, and oodlectively, the “Unitholders™) in, or units of {or an imestment in), e Fund shal mean Unitholders of the Fund
witio hokd umirs, or dlasses of wnits (as applicable), which ane atributatle to Shat Fund

Thie Fusnids priserited in this report ane listed bilow

PINACID Baramurds Bank Loan Fund &

PS40 Bermuda Bank Loan Fund 8

PN 0 Bermuds Bank Loan Fund €

PIRACID Bermedy Bark Loan Fund

PIRALD Baravucdy brecms Fund D

PN Bermvuda Dyrem ¢ Mufs-Sent Sammgy Fund
FRMCD Biarmeta Lows D tions Income Fund

LD Emsmeging Bondd ncame Fend ||
FINKC D Evmmgang Bond Ingiome Fred 1R

Dfherend ondy 50 bunck et "Fund of Funck ™ comoiure, & debned n the rubs of e boemm et Trues Asamsos, |
Japn, or i my o pmdcion

ML) Brermuads Burik Lown Fand )

PRCD Barmuads Emae gy Madis Boed Fond M)

FINACD) Brermuady Global Aggregam Ee-Japen Bord Fund )
PN Bermasts ncoms Fund M)

PR Barmata U5 High Yl Fund iM

PRCD Bermunda U5 Hagh Yield Fundll i)

PINSCID B g B | eomet Frared (WA

Ofered] only 10 ochee Furek wo corve s8 a0 undarandg iserese it whicks b uch o

PN ) Bl B g Maiz Bl Fnd |1
ML) Brermusdy Global Aggregums Ex-Jupun (fen Hediud] Bond Furd
PURCD) Brerveecady Gkl Agregans Ex-Jagsen Bored Fund
FICD Bermuds become Fund A”

PN Brermuads Mangage Dpparnundis Fund™
P Care Ineom e Corporine Bosd Ford H00-10° ==
PACD1.S Bigh Yorkd MareH ecgedd Furd ||

PRCDN. 5. Bigh Yald Fued B

PIMCA U5 Bigh Yol Smategy Fnd

PIRECD U5 Bigh Yeeld Smanegy fFund ||

PIRRCHE World High Income™* "=

Dfared 12 Japanase wnd ofer e

PEMCD Bt Term Mortgage booae

[¥ered 1o Jipiness aod offer remidon. Unis of g BFA, 2PY 20 U0 Cligce e 6 %ered 6 ieiil rveslon m
Japan by way ol public ofiencg through a di ibuar in Japan, and miey be offlersd fo osher inves 1 a1 e
decrezion of the Manager, Units of the EUR, JPY and 50 Clape will be resircod 1o enly thos e imvesion who are
appread by the Manager

PN Emvier g Biond £ digad]] lecome Fund
FINCD Emerrging Bored Ineomes Fiond

FIMCD LS. Bigh aedd [YareH ecged Fend
FMCD 1S Bigh Yield Fund

Déiered only 10 Fund ol Funds Type Japanese iwermand rass organged onder dhw Lear compeming inveiment
Tres ¢ moed e omeng o prasy. o Jopuan (" lapares e isvep s Trs ™) wehich wall oifer shier unis 1o e pubicin
Japan envter by wepy o pubde o8isning or prvone plecemean ped whh s msaged by PIMCD Japen Ui o ofer
o iy Iercad ausrmedng MET MBRHCE 4N E com [ a0 Labpect 10 e nglet of de Invez mmant Tnz e

A g0euipon, Jipun

= R TR Gl i A CNPY) e o PR Sty P S e fleiad’ iy B9 (I achERT T e e sl Dt i) et oF T il PR iy eroted it A o Y Sty 1 R A Rl T
S N CUET Thiy o FANE  Edemnantl bie set Fad  Mipved ily  ib Fatel 5 ol 8 i sty it et il il Pty T D it i il VP e sy i PO i sl v Faal A i el ol
T B Sy B Peir 2 g gt TR U B Y 18 PRI SRR SR 18 O iy M

== T i (Y Bl Ul AR ety WAt e (i St Pt a £%5e st U il ok 2 il o ooy
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2.SIGHIFICART ACCOURTING POLICIES

The following is @ summary of significant accouniing polidies corsisienty
fothowved by the Trust in the preparation of its inandial statements in
confcamaty with accounting peinciples generally sccepted in the United States
ot Amenica ("US. GAAPT). Each Fund is treated a5 an imeesiment company
umder the reporting requirements of U 5. GAAF The preparation of finandal
stalements in acoordance with LS. GAAP requires management to make
esfimates and assumgptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liatkties and dscosire of CoMingent as5ens and llabdies at the date of the
financad stavements and the reporied arnounts of noreates and dededtes in
net et from operatons during e reportng penod. Aciual fesulis oould
ditfer from those estimates

in) Acquirsd Funds The Trustes and Manager may apply all or a portion of
the assets of (i} FIMCO Barmmusda Bank Loan Furnd A, FIMCO Bermuda Bank
Loan Fend B, FIMGCO Bermpdia Bank: Loan Fund C and FIMCO Berruda Bank
Loan Fuend O (i) PIMCO World High income; (i) PIMCO Bermuds Global
Aggredate Ex-lapan (ren-Hedged) Bond Fund and PINCO Bermuda Ghobal
Aggregate Bx-Japan Bond Fund; (iv) FIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A and
PIRCO Barmuda Income Fund D; i) FIMCO LS. High Yield (Yen-Hedged)
Fund, PIMCOLES Higj1 viekd Fund, PIMCO LS rl'if.‘l Yield Sirategy Fund, and
PIMCO LS quh Yield Strategy Fund 1l (v PIMICO LR S I-il_'lh Yield {¥en-
Hedged) Fund Il and PIMCO LS. High Yield Fund I; dvi) PIMCO Emérgng
Eond {¥en-Hedged) Income Fund, FIMCO Emergng Bond income Fund
PINGCO Emenging Bond Income Fund I, and FIMCO Emenging Bond income
Fund 10 (each referned to heteln a5 8 “Fund of Funds® o “hogiiring Fund®,
which inwests in other Fundsh 1o de fespectve credin of () PINKCD Bermuda
Bank Loan Fund (MY (i) PIMCO Bamnuda Ererging Markets Bond Fund (W),
Qi) PIMICO Besrrnuda Ghobal Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond Fund (M) () FINCO
Bermuda Income Fund (M): () PIMCO Bermoda U5, High Yield Fund (M ()
PIMCO Bammuda LIS High Yiekd Fund I (M) Gvn) P IMLC Ernen;'n_] Bondg
income Fund (W) frefermed to heresn as an " Acguired Fund(s)”™ Amy a5sets so
apphied will be held in-wdh Acgared Fundi(s) 35 if receved directly. Wherne
assels are 50 applied, the Acquired Fund{s) will record the issue of units to the
relevant Acguining Fund at the issase price per urst of such units andwil
feputchate such units a2 the repurdhase pace per unal of such umts a1 the
time of repunthase Accordmgly, thee ability of the Acqemng Fund to adhiee
Tt s et albgecnve will digpend upon the abelity of the applicable
Aciuired Fund to achieve its imeestment obective. There can be no aswrance
that the mvestment objadive of the Aoguined Fund will be achieved

Ratios showmi in the Finandal Haghlights do not indsde expenses of the
Acguired Fund(s). See Note 9, Fees and Expenses, for further infomaton
reganding fumd fees, as applicable

b Securities Transactions and Investment Income Securilieg ransactions
are recorded as of the rade date for inandal reporting purposes. Sequnities
purchased or sold on 2 when-rsued or delaved-delivery basis may be

settled beyond 3 standard serilement period for the security after the rade
date. Realized gains and losses from seaurities sold are recorded on the
identified cost basis. Dividend income i5 recorded on the ex-dvidend date,
extepd certain dvidends froem foreign seurities where the ex-dividend date
may have passed which are recorded 2 so0n a5 a Fund is infomed of the
ex-chidend date. Irteret indome, sdusted for the aoretion of didounts and
amcetization of premiums, is neoonded on the soonesd bass Fom wttement
date, with the excepltion of seamitied with a fofward Haning effectve date,
where interest inoome is reqeded on e aooual basis from effective date For
coervertible sequities, premivms aribotable 1o the comersdon feature ae not
amcetized. Estirnaned rax labilies on certain forelgn sequrides are recorded
on a0 acrual basis and e refleced &5 aorponents of interestinoome of nel
change i unrealized appredation (deprediation) on investments on te

Slatements of Operatiions, as appeopriate. Tax liabeities realized a5  result of
sich seqrity sales are reflected 25 2 component of net realized gain {Joss) on
Ienestmen s an the Statements of Operations Pargckonet s, vl Dot on
racrtgage-related and other aiser-backed secunities, if sy, are reconded a5
comgeanients of inbérest inoome on the Salements of Operanons

Detpd obdigations may be placed on non-aoarual stasus and related inferest
imooene may be reduced by ceasing cument aconials andwiiting off interest
recefeabie when the collection of all or 3 portien of interest has become
doubtiul based on contstently applied procedures. A debt obligation is
removed from non-acoual status when the issuer resumes interest payments
or when coflectabllity of interest is probable

Il Cash and Foraign Currency  The financial stasements of each Fund e
presented using the asrency of the primary economic ervironment in which it
operates (the “functional cumency”™) The functional aarency for each of the
R i6 listed in the below tabde

The market vilues of f':]ﬁ."i?‘a secunties, axTency holdngs and oiher 35t
and Babilities are rarslated mio each Fund's functon sl currency based on the
current xnchange rates each biness diy. Purdnases. and sabes of seturites
and o snd expente items denominated in foresgn urrendaes, if any, ane
transkated into each Fund's respedtive functional qurrency at the exdhange
rate in effect on the transacton date The Funds do not separatey repoet the
eftects of changes in foreign exchange rates Fom dwangss in market prices on
securites held Sudh changes ane nduded in net realized and net changes in
unreakzed gain of lods from Emvestments on the Statements of Operaticens

The Fands mayinvestin foreign ounrency denominated seoities and may
engaqge in foreign aamendy transachions either on a spot {cah) basis at the
rate prvaling in the cusrency exchange markel at the tirme of through 4

fonw and forsgn currency’ conlract. Realived forsign exchange Gard or koddes
anjsing from sales of spot fomeign curendes, aurency gains of [geses realined
Eetween the tack and settlement dates on sequiities Farsactions and the
difference between the reconded amounts of dividends, interest, and foreign
wathholdng taxes and the finctional CUFEnCy equivaent of e smounts
actualhy reveived or paid are Induded in net realized gain or loss on foresgn
urrendy transactions on the Statements of Operaticns, Net unredized foreign
exchange gains and losses agising from changes in foreign exchange rates on
foreign denominated assets and liabilities other tam imestments in securities
el it thee e of the repeing period ane induded 0 net change in
unreakined appreciation of deprediation an foreign asmendy as4ets and
liatifities on the Staterments of Operaions

The Met Asset Vaue (THAY ™) and total renurrs of certain Funds (of Classes
et a5 Spplicable) are prisented in the cumency for which the NAY i
repored (the "MAY arrendy” ) 25 ditailed in ead Fund s Ofhenng
Memorandum (the "Crffering Memorandum ™). For the purposes of the
presentation of the NAY and the fotal retum in the NAY qurency, te
beginning and ending NAVS are converted using the period begirning and
ending exchange rabes, rispecively, and ditirbutions ane converted using the
exchange rate at the time of the distibution. See the foowing table for the
WA cumency of each respedtive Fund:

FINCD Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M} L5 dellr 1.5 dollw
UMD Berenuydla Bank Loan Fund A

= Fus L5 dellr U5 dolw

- J P Japacama yen U5 dollar

= JiusD Japacecn yen U5 dollw

w ¥ LPY) Japacems wen L5 dollar

- TII.EI]I Japmeess ven Il 5 dollar

Bl Fage | Dowbar 0, 06T &
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Furetional Fungtionsl
e Wy
FIMCD Barmuda Bank Lo Fund B FIMCD Bermuda U1 5 High ield Fund |1 1 Japmoesn wven 1.5 dollar
= Fikion Bnrrshan dedlan 115 diollar PIMDD Care breome Coeporse Boad Fund 2000-10
- ¥ (AL Japanes v 1F 5. dolar - (£ 115 dellw £l 5 dollar
= Y[ERL dapanee yon W5 dollar FIMCI} Frmergng Barsd [¥en Hidged) Ingoume Fuend Jngsnsen yen U5 dollw
L] ¥ (MAN) Japarete yin B dollsr FIMDD Emargng Bord ncoma Fend Japatan wen U5 dollw
= YD Japaneseyen IF5. dodar FIMCE) Ermergng Exared Ircome Fgnd i 115 delly .5 dolx
w YITAY Japaness yen IS diollar FIMID Emergng Rond kcome Fand il
FAMCO Baurrasdls Bank Loan Fond . Japasecn en U5 il
- ¥ [CAXSR Japanee yan 5. dollar . Japaness yen 1.5 dollar
FIMCD Berrmuda Bark Loan Fund 0 - Jnpertn yEn 1.5 dols
- ¥ Workd) aparaee wan 115 dollar - Jagursiein iy U 5 dolls
FIMCO Bermuda Dynamc Miglo Asse Seanegy Fund - Japsmsan yen E.5 dollar
L] AUFY Japanece yen 15 doltar . Jafeitesin yen U5 dolls
= us0 U5 daltat 1 5. dollar . J ki Japestins wen U5 dolls
FILCD Besrusds Ermsigng Ei:z Bond Fund (M} US dolla L5 deflar . BRI T Japeateda Ve U5 dollx
FIMCO Betrmuds Emangng Markes Bord Fund Il ® JRM Japanesn yen U5 dollar
= ImclFY Japares yan 15, dollar FIMOD Brergng Bard lncoma Fand Bl
- Irest LIFY, Hadged Japarecs yan 1B 5 diodlar ] JIELR) JSamama wen L5 dollar
PIMICH Besrrasdls Gl Apgragate Ex-Jupan {Tes- e = iR Ripuistaira ey U5 ol
Hedged) Fosd Fund oxicbakinl e . Jusk Japanomm ven U5 dolw
FHICD Brrmmuda Giobal Aggregam ExJagan Bond : FIMED Seare-Term Monimgags fcoms
Fusd e Y e «  EW Eer U5 dolw
FINICD Farmudy Giobal A ggregane ExJapan Bond - MY Japutesmn yen U S dols
P H Japereste yean LS. dollsr 2 PV P, Hadged! e U5 sl
P Betvrardy bncoene Fund Gy U5 defis 115 dollar ¥ 150 1S dallr I 5 dollat
FILCE Berrrua bncoms Fund & FIMUD LG Hgh Yeld (Van-Hadgad Fusd Jageatesn yon U5 dolly
CO 1| Japanze wan 115, dodlar FIMOD L5 Hagh Yield (Y- Hisdiyad Fuaed 11 Lafrtasin v 1.5 dolw
L] Fiusny L% dellw i doller FMCD L High Yl Fund Jagurtenia i .5 dolls
L] A LFY) JEEnE e K5 diodar FIMOD 115, High Yild Fund i Jagsnaen wen L5 dollyr
= s Jnpanie yan W5, dodar FIMCD U 5 Hgh Yidd Svacepy Fend
L] K [ U5 dolist 5. dollar . JLFY Papaycemn yen .5 dolls
= MUPY Advmaryl Japane yin 155 dolar * I UFY, Hedgad) Japateen yon U5 dols
= Ms0AdEsnd U5 dellar 15, dodar *  JjusD 115 dellyr U5 dollw
L] N P Japanecs e W5 dollar . ¥ LIF Japatess yen U5 dolle
LI Y] Japanes yen W5 doller » ¥ LIFY, Hadged) Iafuitacn win U5 dols
= KN USD U5 delar 115, dolas AN U5 Bigh oed Swoagy Fend I
- P LYY Japane v WS dollar . T A Japnea yen B.5 dolls
| QuFn BT e ] L5, dollsr . ¥ (ERLY Fapersy wen L5 dolly
= AU Japanee yan 15, dodar « 7 (MEH) Japaesia n U5 oy
= Rush WS dedla 5. dollar . ¥ (TR Japusnesn e 1.5 dolly
L1 Jepanese yen U 5. dodler FIMCD Wadd High Incoms LS defix U 5 doller
= TN Jupaniccs e 5. doder * Eflocsavs Aped 13, 022 tha Dl chenged v nares froem J GRUE) 00 J ICHH)
L 2 PR Japanese v LS. dollar
: ;I”":;? 'llefu;n::’m Il: ; ﬁ: b Multiciess Operatiens Each Class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
. %S0 LS dellar 05 dollar Fights bothe aseets of the Fund equal to that of afher Classes of the same
= YUPT Sanarnte e 5 dollar Fumd, as applicable, except for spedfic assets and gains and Isses designated
Y Tapansss i U5 dolls o @ Class redating 1o cusmency hedging operations. Income, non-Chass speafic
= TUM Japanse ven 5 dollar experries, and non-Class speaiic redized and unnealized capital gans and
FIUICD Bemuda come Fund O logses are alocated 1o eadh Class of units based on the el ative net assets of
. NN Samrrakan dolat 15 dollar each (lass of the respective Fend, a3 applicable. Class specfic expenses
Y dapanece wen W% dollar currently indude management, advisory, adminisirafive, agency and
FIMCD Betrasdla Low D aces bncome Fund T distribution fees, where applicable
= BiEn . sl Lt e Distribution Palicy The following table shows the anficpated fequency
PMCD Berrrush Marigage Diposmicdoes Fund ] of dhsibutions for each Fund Distributions from each fund may be declared
" Ire UFY Hadpad] Japanie yn 5. dolisr e g gl ey £ the Man
. JUPY i oA U5 dollee and distributed to Unithalders only upan the autharization of the Manager,
. s TR U5 dollar wwdiich autharzation ey be withheld at the Managers discretion
= ls0 IS dedlst 115 dollsr
FIMCO Bermuda U5 High Yield Fusd M) U5 dollsr U5 dollar
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Doelared and Pald Menthly

PROLD) Bermeads Bk Loan Fand A

PRICD Bermusda Blank Loan fend B

PRI Bermda Bank Loan Fend C

PRICD Bermeda Bank Loan fend 0

PIRULL Bermmada | ncome Fond A

FLP

F (U0

JuPn

J S

N U

N s

KN USD

SUFY

LUPY

X nE

¥ U

L 1F=a)]

PO Bl I Fund D

FIMDD Bonmada Mor cgege: Dppormumiess Fund
= JuFn

J S

[IE1]
PRILD Errves g Bond ( Yen-Hadged] Income Fund
FIMCE Emengeg Bord kcome hand
FIMOD Emengng Bond | ncoma Fend il
PR Emengng Bord Incoms Fusd 81
FIMDD LS High Yield [ Yen-Hidged) Fusd
FIMOD LS Fsgh Yol Fuefed
FIMOD LS. High Yidd Smmegy Fend
FIMCO 15 Hagh Yesld Sracegy Fond I
FIMDD Waorld High Incoms
PILD Bermds Ireome Fund A

QUFn

= F U0

PRICD Bermeude Dyravno Mula-Aoset Strabegy Fund
PRICD Bermeda | neome Fend A

P UM

Uk

FINDD Shait-Term Morigsgs nceme

EUR

Iy

JUFY, Hodged

151

The Manager dees not sxpect io declae dntrbution with respect 1o these

Funds {or Clirses thereal, i applic sbbel, but may.in is dscrotion, duclare

and pary disitibaiiesn 1o the Unitalders a1 an
FIMDD Bermuds Blank Lioers Fusd (W0

FIMOD Bersruds Errer gore Mlarkoets: Bond Fud (W0
PICD Bermeda Emenging Markis Beod Furd II
FIMCD Bermasds Global Aggregene Ex-Japen [Yen Hadged) Band Fusd
FIMOD Bermuds Globd Aggregae ExJapan Bond Fund

Thie Manage deet set mpeet 1o declars dnwibution with retpe t 1o thede
Funds |er Clanses theveal, il applicablel, bur may, in il dacretion, declore

and pay distribiutions te the Unithaldsrs at any tima.
PINSCT Bermuda Giobal Aggrogam Ex-depan Bond Fund (MG
PAMCE Bermuda ncorme Fund A

K =

. M LUPY Advsond

*  MIUSD Adveand

THET

UFUPY "

= WSO

L UPN

FAMCT B bneames Furedl (M)

PANCT) B Lowy Dirapa Income Fund

FIMDD Bermuda Morigage Cppor tenstes Fund

It LIPY Hesdgedh

FIMOD Berrrnada U 5 Hagh edd Fnd (M)

FAMCO Berrnoda U5 Hagh ieled Fund 1 IND

FIMOO Gares Income Corperase Bond Fusd 2020-10

PAMCD Emiarging Bond Incoome Fusd {06

FAMCOUS. Hagh Yield [¥o-Hieigess Fuead I

FIMCDNU S Hagh Yiedd Fiond I

* Aowy drnsbutiote with eepact m Dhes U2 LR Urie of doe: Fusd will be declaed in
arordance with &l e agrament beowseen g Manages and the st in such D

Drstributicns, if amy, wall generally be made from the relecant Fand's (o
Chass’s, if applicabe) net imestment income. In addison, the Manager may
authorize the payment of neq reatized capital gaing availatle for dsmibuson
Addtional disiributions gy De dedered 35 the Manager deems. Sppropd e
Dustributicns paid with respea o sery Fund (or Chass tereod, if applicable)
will reduce the NAY of such Fund (or Class thereof, if applicable), At the
dsreton of the Unitholders, cash dstributions from a Fund for Class thersaf,
I applicatie) may either be reinvested in addifional units of a Fund {or Class
thetect, i applicable) or paid to & Unitholder in cash, Cath payments will be
paidin the NAY currency of the Fund. Each Fund {or Cllass thereod, if
pplicable) may declare further distributions if considered necessary in codes
1o maintain 3 reasonable level of dsmibations for & Fund {or Class themeaf, i
Spplicable). In the event Bt Shers (S inddequate net ncomse &nd neq reglzed
capetal gans o pay & dsmibuion of & Fand (or Cliss deereod, IT applicatle)
piequanied bey the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may pay 3 distibuson
consissng of a porton of te capatal of such Fund {of Class thered, i
spplicable), Distributions not collected within siocyears from their due date

witll Lapse and will acorue to the benefitof the relevant Fund for Class feneod,

If applicatic)

{7 bum and Repurchese of Units Subsedquent 10 & Fund (of Class thereof, o
applicable) commenang buseness, Units of eadh Fund {or Cliss thereof, if
Fpplicable) may be issued Dy the Manager on & coninuous basis at the Net
Angiet Valie per Uit of ;al Fund (of Class theredd, il applicable) at the tme
of such issue, subject b the right of the Manager or B3 appointed agent, in
the sole disaretion of the Manager, to temporanily suspend such issue. Unless
stated othenadse in the relevant Offering Memaorandum, for each Fund (or
Class theneod, if applicable), the issue price per Unit for such Units will be the
Man Azset Value per Unit determined on each Dealing Day calodated as sat
forth bedow under ™ Delerminasion of Net Asset Valise™; provided that, if a
st b pufchase URis in a Sonm sooeprable 10 BBH 18 nol recenved by BBH
proce 1o 1200 noon (Eastem sme), the issue price per Unit of the rebevant
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Fund {or any Class thereod, if applicable) shall be the Met Asset Value per Linit
detemmined on the next Dealing Day. In the case of repurchase of Linits or
terminaticn of the Funds in the Trust which are registered in lapan for direct
disnbuson in Japan, the Uets of such Fands dhall be repurchased from
Unitholdirs in cash. Mo repunchase in land may be allowed in such Funds
Exceph &t othrwise prosdded in the relevant Oflesing Memorandum, payment
of the repurchase price will be mads by the Trustes of it appointed agent by
bank transfer generally within wwo (2) Busness Days after the Dealing Day
upch wiech the repurchase nobce 15 received, of deamed o have been
receivid, by BEH, although under certain droumstances, payment may take
up to eight (8) Busness Days after such Dedling Day  Unless skated othenwise
in the relevant Offering Memorandum, the Funds are not subject to
subsiption of repurchase fees; provided, however, 3 distributor appointed in
the jursdiction whene a Fund B dsiibuted may dharge subteription o
repuirchase fees in such amounts a5 agreed with the Manager and the
Trurstes

igl Mew Accounting Prenouncements and Regulatory Updates & Manch
2020, ®e Amanaial Accsunting Standands Boged ("FASE”) istued an
AceounEng Standands Update (TASUT), ASU 2000-04, which provides
optional quidance 1o ease the potential accounting burden assodated with
trangticeeng away from the London interbank Orffered Rate ("LIBOR™) and
ather relenence rates that are expected bo be disontinsed. ASL 202004 is
effecte for certain refensn ce raterelated contrad modifications that coos
during the period March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022, In March
2021, the sdminisirator for LIBOR announced the exension of the publication
af i magonty of the 'USD UBOR semngs o June 30, 2023 In Decemiber 2022,
FASE roaped AU 202 2-06, which indudes smendments (o exdend the
duration of the LIBOR transison relied to Decemiber 31, 2024, after which
entities will no longer be permitted to apply the reference: rate reform refef
Mansgement is continuously evaluating the potential effet a discontinu ason
of LIBOR could have on the Fends' investments and has deterrined that it is
unlikely the ASL'S adopmon will hawe & matend impact on the Funds®
finandal statements

In Jume 2022, the FASE issued ASLI 203203, Fair Valpe Measurement (Topic
B0, which aflects Al entitees that hawe imesiments inn equily securites
rrasunied 31 fair value that sfe dubject to a contrachodl tale restriction. The
amendments m ASU 2022-03 darty that a contractual restricion on the sale
of an equity security is not considered part of the unit of account of the equity
sequnty and, therefore, 15 not considered in measuring the far value. The
amendments Jso redquire addBonal @sdomunes for equaily secunies subject i
confractual sale restrictions that are measuned at fair value in accordance
with Topic 520 The effectve date for the amendments in ASL 2022-03 are
for fiscal years begnning after Decernber 15, 2004 and interim periods within
thepse fiscal years At this Bme, management is evaluating the implications of
these chamges on the finandal satements

1. IRVESTMERT YALUATION ARD FAIR VALUE MEASUREMERTS

{#) Imrvestment Valuation Policies The peice of 4 Fund's umits i based on
the Fund's MAY The NAY of a Fund, o each of its Classes, a5 applicable, is
determmined by dviding the todal value of poetiolio investments and other
Fssets attritutable bo that Fumd or Class, less any liabdities, by the toeal
niuerber of wrers cutstanding of that Fund o Class. On each Fund's Dealing
Dray (a5 dedaribed in the curent Orilering Memorandum of the

Trwst), Fund units are ordinarily valued a5 of the dose of regular trading an
the Mew York Stodk Exchange ("NYSE Jote™) information that bedomes
kncia i the Funds of thee agents after he dme a5 of which NAV has been
caloulared on & partioular day wall nat generally be used o remoactively adiest
the pibce of & sscurity of the MAY deternined earfeer that day. Each Fund

resenves Be fight o change e Bme as of which its NAY is caladated if
the Fund diorses earier

Forr purparses of calaulating NAY, portfol secunbes. ind other 2521 1o
wiich markel quotanons ane readily availible s valued a1 markel value. A
riarkel quatstion is readly aeailsble onlywhen that quatation is a quoted
price (unackustedy in active markets for idenocal investments that the Fund
Can access at the measyrement date, provided that a quotation will not be
readhly availabde if i1 s not rellable. Marker value is generally determined on
thee basis of official dosing prices or the last reported sales prices. The Funds
will normally use pridng data for domestic equity seauities received shortly
after the NY4E Close and do not normdly take into acoount radng,
dearances of setlements §1a1 Lake place after the NYSE Clote. invediments
tor whech macket quotations ane not readily avalable are valued at far valise
a5 determingd in good faith al the Manager o perions acing at Heir
diraction . AL 4 generd pindple, the fair value ol a sequnity or other asset s
e pavce that would be recenved Do Sell an aiset or paki 1o rarsker & |=£H'|Il}'
Im an orderhy transa con bedseen marke [ patiopants 3 the medaunement
cane. The Manager has acopied methods for valiing seoun ies and cllvs
H55ELS N ONCUETE Ran0es wilbere marker quotes ané nod reddily Jvaslable, and
has the responsibility for apphyéing the far valeation methods. The Manager
may walue Fund portfollo secunities for which market quodations are not
reacky vailable and oifver Fund assets utilizing inputs fom pridng senices,
quotation feporting systems, valuation sgents and other thind-party sournces
(rogether, "Pridng Sounces™) A loreign (non-U.5.) edquly security iraded on a
toreign exchangs or on more than one exchangs is bpically valued ising
prigng mfomation from the exchange congdened by PIMCO Lo be the
primary exchange K maket value prdng is used 3 fofeign (ron-LES. ) equity
security wall be valued as of the dote of radng on the Torsign exchange, of
e WY SE Chorse, if thee WY SE Close ocours betore the end of mading on the
foresgn enchange. Domesiic and foreign (non-U1 5 ) fxed income: sequrities,
ron-exchange traded dervatives, and equity options are nomally valyed on
thoe buasis of uotes obiained from brokers and deaters o Pridng Sounces
wusing swch data reffecing the prinopal markets for those seaxties. Prices
ohiained from Fridng Sources may be based an, amang other things,
information provided by market makers or estimates of market values
cheained from yield data relating o imvestments or securities with similar
characteristics. Certain fooed Fncome secunties purdh sed on a delayed
defirvery base ate marked o maret dafy unhl setSament at the forwan
setement date. Bochandge-traded cplions, eoept equity options, futures and
opthons on futares are valised at the setdement pice defermined by the
relevant exchange, quotes obained from 3 gudl aticn PEQOrunG Syskem,
establihia] markel makers of Ficng Sources. Swap agresments afe valued
o the Dass of market-based pioes suppled by Prasng Sounoes of quites
chiained from brokers and dealers A Fund's investments in opsn-end
management investment companies, other than exthange-raded funds
{TEVFs™), are valued at the KEWs of sach investments

It & foreign {roe- LS b eduity seamty’s value has matesidly changed after the
die of the security’s primany enchange or prindpal market but before the
WYSE Close, the securnity may be valued ot fair vialue Dased on progeckines
estabirched Snd approved by the Manager. Foreign (non-U 5 ) equty
cecufines shat do not rade when the NYSE B open ane dso valued at L
walu . With respect 10 loason (Ron-U S ) equty seamities, a Fund may
determine the fair value of investments based on information provided by
Fricing Sources, which may recommend far value or adpstments with
reference to ofher seourities, indices of assets. In consadering whether fai
waluaticn i5 required and in determining fair values, the hanager may, among
other things, consider significant events dwhich may be considered ta indude
changes in the value of U % senuities or secunifies indices) that occur after
the dose of the relevant marked and before the NYSE Close. A Fund may
uitdize madHing tools provided by thind-party vendors to determme Tair values
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of foreign (non-U.5 ) securiBes. For these pupases, unless otherwize
dutermined by the Manager, any movernent in the applicable reference index
of instrument (" zero trigger”) between the earfier dose of the applicable
Torign markel and the NYSE Clote may be desmed B0 be 3 Sgquihicant event,
promptng the application of the prang rmods (efectvely netaling in dasy
fair valustions). Foreign exchandged may permil rading in toreign fon-US )
equily secunties on days when the Tnast is not open for business, whidh may
result i @ Fund's postholeo imestments being aftectisd when Unitholders are
unabde b by o el unins

Lenior secured floating rate loans for which an acive secondary market edste
to arekable degree will be valued at the mean of the last available bidfask
piices in the market for such loans, as provided by a Pricing Sendce, Senicr
secufed Baating rate loans for which an active secondary market doss nol
exisl [0 2 refiable degree will be valued af far value, which is intended to
approcimate markel value I valuing a senior secured Boating rate loan at
fair vadye, the factors considered rray inchade, but are not limted bo, the
Todlowang: {4} the credinaortheness of the bomawer and ary intermedate
prartacepants, (b th teeres of the boan, {c) recent pRoes in e marcet for
sirralae |oans, if any. and (d) recent prices i the makel for instrumen s of
similar quality, rate, period until nextintenest rate reset and maturity

Irvesements walued in curendcies other than the functional currency

o a Fund ane converted to the functional currendy weing exchange rates
obtained from Pridng Sourdes. As a retull, the value of such imvestments, and
In bum, the NAY of the Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value
of cummencies in refation &0 the funcionsl oumemsy. The value of investments
iraced in I'-:n‘n:@'u Mk of deraiminated m o enes athel than

the mncticnal currency may be sifected sgnificansy on 3 day that the Trest s
not open for business. As a resul, to the extent that a Fund holds foreign
{mon-U 5 ) imvestments, tevalee of hose investments may dhange at Gmes
when you canniot puechase, redeem o exchamge wels and the value of aech
Trvestments will be reflecied in thie Fund's next cabalaed KAy

Fair walation may require subjective deteminations about e value of 2
security. While the Trust’s polides and procedures ane intended to resultin a
cabulavon of 2 Fund's NAY that Ly refects secunty walues 45 of the time of
bcineg, Ehe Trust cannol errsude that i values detemmened by e Manager
oF pef it acting at e direchon would acourately fefient the prce that

3 Fund could cbitain for 3 sequity if itwere to dispose of that sequrity a5 of
the teme of pricing (for instamce, in a forced of detressed sake), The prices
wsed by @ Fund may differ froem the value thatwould be realized if the
SECuilies wele sokd

k] Fair Value Hisrarchy P 5 GAAP detonbes fair vidue &5 the pnoe i

A Fumnd wionild recende 1o Sell a0 S5SeTor pary 10 ramsier 3 liabehity in an ondierdy
transaction betwesn market paiapants A1 the mesturement date it
establishes a farvalue hierardy that prioritizes inputs to valuation methods
and requires disdosure of the fair value hierardry, separately for each major
categony of assets and Batiities, that seqregates faw value measurements into
beswels {Lewed 1, 2, 0r3) The inputs or methodoloqy used for valuing seqrities
are not necessarily an indication of the risks assodated with investing in thoss
sequnfties Levels 1, 3, and 3 of the fair value hieranchy are defined as follows:

® Leved 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets or exchanges for
identical assets and liabilities

& Level J—Significant other obeenable inputs, whach may Indude, tut are
mot limeied 00, qm,’-ll_*l',l Prees fiw samilar assets or Bal :I'if-,'i. in marke1s that are
acihve, quoted prices for identacal or similar assets or Babalifes in markets that
are not F0tve, inputs otver than quoded prices that are obsenvable for the
assels or Habilites Guch as interest rates, yield curves, volatiliies, prepayme nt

ipeads, |08 severities, credit ks and default ratesh or other market
corrobdeated inputs

= Level 3—Significant unobservable inputs based on the best informaton
géailatie in the droamstances, o the extent obsereable inputs are not
availabie, which may indude ssumptions made by the Manager or persons
Acting at their direction that ane uged in determining the fair value of
imoestmente

Assels or Habdines CAReg0n zed a5 Leviel 2 or 3 a5 of period end have been
ranstemed between Levels 2 and 3 since the prios penod due 10 chénges in
the erieghosd uili2ed in valung the imastments. Transfiers from Levl 2 to Level
3 afe & result ol a change, m e noomal course of business, froem the use of
waluaticn methiods used by Pricing Sounces (Level 2) to the use of 3 Broker
Quote orvatuation technique which wiilizes significant unobservable inguis
due to an sbsence of curment o reliable mark et-hased data (Leve 3)

Transfers from Lewel 3 10 Leved 2 are a result of the avaslability of curment and
reliable market-based dats prowided by Fricing Scarces or other valuation
techmbcues wihich utilize signaficent obsenabie Inputs

In acccedance with the requirements of LS, GAAF, the amounts of ransters
im and cut of Level 3, if material, are dsdoeed in the MNates 1o Schedule of
Ivestmen s for each respective Fund

Fer fair valu atiors using signaficant unobsenable inputs, U 5 GAAF requeres
to dischoss transhers into and cut of Lewsl 3 of the fair value hierandry and
purchases and issues of Level 3 assets and liabilities duning the period
Adudtonally, U5, GAAP requines quantitaive infoemation regarding the
agnifscant unobaenyable inputs used in the determinaion of Tar vaiue of
Aty or Rabilites categonzed 25 Lewel 3 in the Tar value hisrardny. In
accordance with the requirements of US GAMP, 3 fair value hierardhy, and if
matenial, dedalls of significant uncbsenable inputs, have been induded in the
Hites. 1 Schiecide of Invesaments for each respective Fund

el Valuation Technégues and the Fair Value Hierarchy

Lewvel 1, Level 2 and Level 3 rading assets and trading liabilities, at

fair value The vauation meshods (or "techniques™) and significant inputs
used in determining the faie values of portfiolio sequnities or other assets and
liatufities categanded &5 Lived 1, Level 2 and Lewel 3 of the Tair value hissardy
a5 Bolhowrs:

Fimed income senunes II1\.'|l:lj-'K} corporate, convertible and munidpal bonds
and nokes, L5, government spendes, US. measury obligations, sovengn
Iaues, bank loans, convertible prefemed seouities and pon-U1 5. bonds ane
nomally valued on the basis of guotes obtaned fiom brokers and dealers or
Fricing Sources that wse broker-dealer quotations, reported trades or
waluation estimates from their internal pricing modets. The Pricing Sources’
Irvbermad mpdkds wse inpuits that are obrsenvable such as issuer detals, interest
ranes, yield curves, prépayment speeds, aedit ddesfpreads, default rates and
quoted prices for similar asset Searites that use dmelar valuation
techniques and inpats as desaibed above e categonized as Level 2 of the
fair vaue herarchy

e Endome seouities pundhased on a delaped-deiveny basis or a5 a
repundhase commitment in 3 sale-buyback ransaction ate marked to market
daily un®l setlement at the fonward settlement date and are categorized as
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Maortgage-related and asset-backed seamties are usualy issusd a5 teparate
trandhes, of dasses, of securites within dach deal Thete teaxities are s
nommally vialued by Priong Scurces that use broker-deder quotatons,

Fispaor (e (Fackes of \waluaton eshmates frcen their internal perlicing rcdels. The
o g ecdels 1oF Ehise Secunties usally consider trandhe-level atmbules,
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current matket data, estimated cash flows and marketbased yield spreads for
each Franche, and incorporate deal colliterdl perficemandce, as avail able
Wortgage-related and asset-backed saquriies that use similar valuation
techinsques and inputs 4% deseribied above ane cateomdied 35 Livel 2 of the
lair value feetanchy

Commen stocks, ETFs, exchange-traded nofes and fingndd dervative
instnuments, sudh 35 fuliges CoNECE, FGRES A wWhaETants, of opions on
futees that are iraded on a national securities enchinge, are stated at the
Lask reported sale or setbement price on the day of valuation To the extent
thesé seqmrities are acfively traded and valuafion adjustments are nof appiied,
they are @ategonized as Level 1 of the far value hierandhy

Frvessmmmens walued (denomunated) in curnences cther than the landhonal
currency of & Fund are conerted bo the functional aurenty uting sohange
rates {ounmency spot and forwand rates) obtained from Pridng Sources. As &
resylt, the MAV of 3 Fund's units may be affected by changes in the vaiye of
aumrencies in relation wo the funcional CUrEncy. The value of securities waded
n f",‘fﬁg‘l markets of denceninated in currences other tan he fundimnal
curmency may be affected sgnificanty on a day that the Trust is not open for
buminess. Valuation adjustments may be applied to cerfain seurities that are
sohely raded on a foresgn exchange to account for the market movement
bebaeen the dose of the foreign market and the NYSE Close. These seawities
are valued using Pridng Sounces that condder the comelation of the trading
patterns o the foreign sedurity to the intraday rading in the U5 markets for
imvestments. Secunities using these vabsation adustments are Glegorized a5
Lewed 2 of the fair value hierardy. Prifermed securites snd other equities
trached o ndctnig markets of valued by reterence 8o wmilar insiruments ant
alwo categodied &% Levell 2 of the Tar walue hierandyy

Equity-inked seqsites are valued by referencing the last reported sale o
settement price of the linked referenced equity on e day of valuatdon
Foreign eochange adustments are apglied 1o e last reponed price to
eorvet Bhe linked equitys trading aurrendy 1o the @nirac's settling curnency
These imeestments are categarized as Level 2 of the $3r value hierarchy

IrrvEsS RIS an ecpstered ogen-end imees Irment companies (ofer than ETFS)
il B el Eunsiedd o thet MANS of sudh imvestments and e Cibegonitid
a5 Level 1 of the fair value herardhy. Investments in pnregrstered open-end
Irvesiment companies will be caloulsted based upon the NaVs of such
Irvesaments and are considered Level 1 provided that the MAVS are
obsenvable, caloulated daily and are the vaue 3t which both purchases and
sales will be conduched

Vauation adjustments may be applisd 1o certain exchange raded futunes and
ofitions 5o acoount Tor madoel movernent between thie entange setibément
and the WYSE dose These seapities aé valued using quobes abtained from &
quitaticn reporting system, established market makers of Pidng Sournes
Finandial derivatives using these valuation adustments are categonzed
Level 2 of the fair value hierardiy

Equity exchange-traded options and over the counter finandal derivative
instnuements, such 35 forwand foreign aurrency confracts and oplions coniracts,
denve ther value from underying asset prices, indices, reference rates, and
o BIpES of & ooirben Ao of thiste factoes. These OoNiRaas & nommaly
walued of 1he bads of quotes dbtained from & qualation teporting Systénm,
established market rakers of Pridng Sounces (normally detemmned a5 of the
HYSE Chose). Depending on the product and the termm of the tansacion,
finamcial depvative instruments can be valued by Fridng Sources using 3
series of techmigues, induding simulaticon pridng models. The pricing models
wse Epits that are obdenved fom Bty quoted markets sudh a5 quated
piices, isswer details, indices, bidfask spreads, interestrates, implied
wolatilites, vield curves, diidends and exchange rates. Finandal desivative

irsEnaments that use similar valuation tednigues and inputs a5 desaibed
ahiwe are categorized a5 Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Centrally deared svags snd oeef e counter Svaps dérive thar valie Trom
uncerhying drssel prives, indices, reference rates, and other mputs of 4
combingtion of these factors. They afe valued uding & braker-dealer bid
qutation of on market-hased prices provided by Frging Sounges (nomaly
determened a5 of the NYSE Chose). Centrally deared swvaps and over the
counter sMaps can be valwed by Fridng Sources using & series of tedhnigues,
induding simulation pricing models The pricing models may use inpats that
ae obeenved from actively quoted markets sudh as the overnight index swap
rate, LIBOR forward rate, interest rates, yield curves and aedit spreads. These
SeCHiBEs are categon 2ed a5 Level 2 af the 1air value hesrarchy

When a fair valuation method s applied by the Manager that uses signficant
wnckseryable INPAITS, veEsSEmenis il I |:|I1-.'P|] t‘.‘:l'd l‘."ll?ﬂ':[.-\:l that

the Manager of persons a0ting a1 their direction believe reflects fair value and
e categonzed a5 Lewel 3 of the falr value hierardny

Frioeoy pricing procedures set the base price of a fieed income sequrity and
submeqeenty adjust the pice proportionaly to market value changes of a pre-
determined sequrity deemed to be comparable in deration, generalbya U4
Tredtary of Sowenéign note barsed on country of ssiance The base piice may
e & broker-dealer quate, Fansaction pice, of an mbemal value as defmed by
analyss of market data. The base price of the Seduity may be retet on a
perindic buasis based on the palabiliy of market data and procedures
Epprcved by thee Waluathon Creraght Cornimaites. Signalicant changes in the
wnobservabie inputs of the ey [raang process (S base price) woubd s
in et and propoetional dhanges in the e vale of the seasity. These
secunibes are categosized as Level 3 of the fair value herandchy

I dhindgarty evaluaned vendor pricng 15 nol availabie or rot deemed 10 be
Indicative of fair value, the Manager inay elect 1o obtsin Broker

Cunotes directly from the broker-dealer or pasted-through Broker Quote from
a Hirdparty vendor. in the ment that far value is based upon a snge
sourced Broker Duote, these securities are categoned as Level 2 of ;e fair
walue hierardhy. Broker Cuotes ane typically reoenved from estabhished marke
pariagants. Althoudgh ndependently receraed, e Minager does nal hive
the transparency to view the undertying inputs which support the market
quotation, Significant changes in the Broker Quote would have direct and
proporsonsl changes in the fairvalue of the saourity

Reference instrument valration estimates fair value by wtiidng the oomelation
of the sequrity to one o more broad-bated sequites, market indices, andfor
other finand al instruments, whose pridng information is readily awalable
Unotsereable inputs may indude hose used in-sgosithm fammulas based on
perceitage chandge in the rebarence instuments andiod weights of each
referende indtrument Significant changesin the uncbiervablée inputs would
resullt i direct and propoetional changes in the fair value of the seauity
These sequnties are categorized & Level 2 of the fair vaiue hierarchy

Common stock equivalent valsation estimates fair value by apphing an equity
adis ment bated on obtervabde comparable companies” equity value
wariances Significant changes in the unobservable inputs would resut in
direct and proportional dhamges in the Tar value of the ety These
OIS afe Catibginibed 35 Livel 2 of the fair valie beersichy

The Giscounted Cash Flow model is based on fulure cash flows generated by
the inrvesament and may be normatized based on expected investment
performance. Future Canh flows are dacounted 1o presentvaise Usng an
appropnate rate of renen, Dgecaly calbrated o the in itia fransaction date
and adjusted bated on Capital Asset Pridng Model andir other market-
bazed inputs. Significant changes in the unobsarvable inputs would result in
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diredt and proporfional changes in the fair value of the security. These
securnfties are calegorized as Lewel 3 of the fair value hieranchy

Thie Compargtle Cornpunies model 1s based on appicaton of valuabon
riuitiples from publidy raded comparable companies oo the fnancials of the
subgect company. Adjustments may be made b the markel-démed valuwation
mulfiples based on dfferences between the comparabie compantes and the
subpect company. Significant dhanges in the unobservabie inputs would result
I direct and proporional changes in e fairvalue of the seourity These
securilies are categorized as Level 3 of the far value hieranchy

The Comparable Transactions model & based on appictfion of valuation
rruliplied Tromm otservable Fanaaanns oompaable o e seaanty of
oornpady Adustments may be msde 1o the impleed comparsble ransacion
rruftiples bated upon difesences between the obeened ransactions and the
sybgect company o secunity. Significant changes in the unobsendable inparts
wioubd result in drect and proporional changes in the fair value of the
seaurity. These securites are categorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierardhy

Ehot-term debt instruments (such as commer dal paper) having a remaining
maturity of &0 days or less may be valued at amorSzed ot o long as e
amietized cost value of such short-term debs instruments is approcimanedy the
samie a5 the fair valoe of S insrument a5 detemmined without e e of
amortized oot valuation, These secunitied are catbgoded a8 Level 2 of Lined
3 of the fair value hieranchy dependng on the sounce of the base price

4, SECURITIES AHD OTHER INVESTMENTS

{&) Deloyed-Delivery Trargastions Certain Funds may purchase or sel
secuiities on 3 delaped-delevery basis. These Faniaceons imvobve a
cornmiiment by 2 Rind 1o purchade o SHl securites Sor 3 predetenmined prce
of yield, with payment and defivery tabing place beyond the customary
seftlement penind. When delayed-delivery rarsactaons are cutstanding,

a Fundwaill designiate or receive 24 collateral liquid aséets m a0 amounl
suffident bo meed the purchase price of respective chiigations. When
purchasing & w=anty on & delived-delivery bats, 4 Fund assurmies the rights
and risks of cwnership of S seosity, indudng the s of price and yield
fluctuations, and takes apch flachsations into aooount when detemmining its
Hav. A Fund may dispose of or renegotiate a delayed-delivery transaction
afer il s entered inta, which may resudtin a realized gain or [oss. When

& Fund has seld 3 sequrity on & delayed-celivery basis, thie Fund does not
partidpate in fulge gains and | osses with respet to Be sequrity

{b) Inflationd ndexed Bende Certain Funds may invest in inflation-indeced
Boeds Inflaton-Andexed bonds are fooed incomme sedurities whde paind pal
walug 5 pefiadcally sfjusted by the rate of inflabion. The inbéreit rate on

These bonds is generally fooed Al isaance 318 rale [ower than hpical bonds
Cwer the life of an inflation-indexed bond, however, interestwill be paid
based on 3 prndpal value, which is adusted for infation. Any increase o
decrease in the prindpal smount of an inflation-indexed bond will Be induded
a5 interest income on the Statements of Operations, even thoudgh inwvestors do
not receive their prindpal un@ matnty. Repayment of the origing bond
principal wpon maturity (a5 adjusted for inflation) is guaranteed in the case of
U5 TIPS For bands that do nob provide a similar guarantes, the adusted
pandpal vale af the bond repad 3t matunty may be Ly than the ongnal
peindpal

el Loan Participa tions, Assignments and Originations Certain Funcs may
irnvest in direct debt instruments which are interests in amounts cwed to
lenders ar lending syndicates by oorporate, governmental, of other bomowers
A Funed’s investments in foans may be in the fiorm of partidpations in loans o
assignments of all or a porticn of loans from thind parties or imvesiments in or
ofginations of laans by the Fund. A loan is often administered by & bank of

other finand al instituton (e “lender™) that acts a5 agent for a1 holders. The
agent administers the terms of the loan, as specified in the loan agreement

A Fund may invest in multiple series or randhes of 2 loan, which may hawe
warylng terme and carry different Jssocated ks, When a Fund purdhases
asgEeren from lenders itacquines dinect nohts against the borowers of the
loans. Thiese loans may indude pariapations i brdds lans, which ane |oans
taken out by borrowers for 3 short period (ypically less than one yea)
pending arangement of moge permanent finandng through, for example, e
issuance of bonds, frequently high vield bords issued for the porpose of
SOUESRONS

The bypes of loans and related imestments inwhich the Funds may invest
indude, among others, senior loans, subordinated loans (nduding second
lief loanes, B-Mobes and mezramine koans), whole ians, commeraal real
estate and other comenerdial loans and stroctured koans. A Fund may
ariginate |oans of aoquire direct interests in loans thaough prirmary kan
distribwtions andfor in privale ransactions. In the case of subgedinated loans,
e My D&‘:!I_Illfl’.al"lt indebibedness ranking ahead of the bomrower’s
oigancn b the holdes of swch & loan, ndipdng eh e svent of he
borower's insobency. Mezzanine Joans ae typically secured by a pledoe of
an equity interestin the moetgage bomower that owns the real estate rather
than an interest in a morigage

Ivestrmends in loans ray indude untunded loan commetments, whidh ane
contractual obdgations for funding. Unfunded loan commitments may indude
revolving cedi fadlites, which may cbligate 3 Fund to sepply additional cash
10 the borrower on demand . Unfurded [oan commetments represent 4 fulxe
ciliganion in hal, even though & percentage of me commiiled amount may
iR be ustized by the boeroweer When invisting in 8 Boan pactid pation,

a Fundd has the right to receive payments of principal, inferast and any fees fo
wihich it is entitled only from the lender selling the loan agreement and anly
upce recept of payments by the |ender from e borrower. A Fund may
recede 3 commitment fee based on the undrawn porion of the underhying
line of gedit portion of 3 loan. In certain draumstances, a Fund may recsve a
penialty fee upon the prepayment of a loan by a bomower Fees eamed or
paid are recorded 35 3 component of inberest income of interest expense,
reapicivedy, on the Statements of Operations. Unfunded |aan corrmitments
e pefecied o 2 habikty on the Statements of Astes and Lisbdines

I Morigage-Related and Diker Asse1-8 ok ed Securities Leftan Funds may
ieteest in mortgane-refated and other asset-badeed Seourities that diecty o
Indirecty represent a partidpatean in, or ane seawed by and payable from,
laans on res] property. Mortgage-related securities are qreated from pools of
residential or cormendal mortgage loans, induding morlgage loans made by
Savings and hosn insututions, morigage bankers, commendal banks and
clfvers. These securites proidee 3 monthly panyment which congsis of both
inilefiest amd pnRapal . Indenest may be detemnined by foed of sdustable rabes
The rate of prepaymenls on underhying morgages will shect the pice and
wokatility of & morigage-related seqwity. and may have the effect of
sheatening or extendng the effective duration of the seourity relative 1o what
Wit antaipated atthe Gme of purdaase, The timedy payment of prinopal and
Imterest of certain mortgage-rel sted ssanities is quaranieed with the full fith
and credit of the U4 Govenment Pools aeated and quarantesd by non-
govermmental issuers, induding govemment-sponsared corporations, may be
spported by various forms of insurance of uarantees, but there can beno
asaprance thal private intuners of guarantons can meet their obligaticers wnder
the insisranoe polioes of quasantes arangements. Many of e nsks of
irmeesting in mongage-rela ted secuities secared by commerda morgage
Ians reteat the effects of local and other economic conditions on real estate
earkets, the staling of 1enants o make legte payments, gnd the abiliry wa
Eroperty 10 JUACT and retan tendnts. Thise SecuniBes may be e liquid 3nd
Fivary Exiulal greater price volanling than ather types of mortgage-refated of
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other asset-badoed securities. Other asset-baded seaunities ane ceated fom
many types of assets, induding but not Emited to, auto koans, accounts
receivable, such & qedit cand receivables and hospital acoount receivables,
hceme ecuely long, student boams, boat [aans, mobile Rome loans,
redréatcnal vehicke loans, manutscired housng boans, sincralt leases,
cornpuster |esies and syndicated bank loans. The Fund my invest in any |ewel
of the capital stucture of an issuer of morigage-badked or asset-backed
sequenies, induding the equity o “iirst lass” randhe

i) Collateralized Mortgage Obligatiens ("CMOs") are debit obligations of a
legal entity that are collateralized by whole morigage loars or private
g bonds and deided into dasses CMIOS are struchared into multple
clasges, odvem retlemed 1o 45 "ranchis”, with eadh dass bearing 4 dfferent
stated manunty and enfitled to a diflerent schedube 1of paymments of pnopal
and interest, induding prepayments. CMOs may be less liquid and may exhilit
greater price volatility than other fypes of morigage-reated or aset-badoed
SEOEIES

i Stripped Morigege-Backed Securities ("5MES") are dervative mult-dass
Frcengage Seourites. SMES are wsually stuctused with faeo dasses that recsve
ditlerent proportions of the misrest and prindpal deiributions on a pool of
mracatgage alsers. An SMIES will have one dats that wal recenve Jll of the
interest fthe interest-only or K dass), while the other dass will recedve e
entire prindpal (the prindpat-only or “PO" dass). Payments received for 05
are indhuded in interest income on the Statements of Operations. Because no
prindpal will be received at the maturity of an 10, adusiments are made to
the cost of the security on a monthly basis ol matity. These adustments
are includad in interest income on the Statements of Operations. Payments
received for POs are treated as reductions to the cost and par value of the
Seduniles

{gl Collateralized Dedt Obligations ("< (57} induds Collaterdized Bond
Oblegations ("CBOs™), Collaterakized Loan Cbligagons ("CL0s ™) amd other
similarty sbiuctured securifes. CBOs and CL0s are types of asset-backed
sequmilties A CBO s a st which is backed by a diversified podl of high risk,
beliowr Emeestment grade fixed income securities, A CLO is 2 tnast typically
cofiateralized by a pood of kans, which may indude, among others, domestic
and foreign Serior secured kans, seniof unsecuned loans, and wbordnace
corparate Baans, indudng loans that ray be raned below irvestrment grade or
equavalent unrated loans, The rides of an imvestment in & COO depend Lagely
ot type of the collateral seounies and the dass of the COO in whidh

3 Fund invesks In acd ton o the normal nisks assodated with ficed ingoms
secunties dooussed elsewhene in this report and the Funds’ Offering
Mesnodandum (& Q. prepaymenl sk, credt risk, | JL':JIW fsk, markernsk,
stnpckural risk, legal sk and interest rate fisk dwhich may be exacerbated if
the interest rate pavable on 3 strctured finandng changes based on
miitiples of changes in inferest rates of inversely to changes in nberest
ratedh), CBO, CLOA, and other CDO04 cary additional risks induding, bul nol
firnited 8o, ) the possibiity that dsmibutiors Fom collateral securides will nat
b adequate 1o make interest of other payrments, (i) te quality of the
collateral may dedine in value or default, fii) the ik that a Fund may invest
I CBOS, CLOS, or other CROs that are subordinate 1o other dasses, and (W)
the: compiex sraciune of te securily may not be fuly undersinod at the e
of ifrvanrmeenil and Fay peoduci o Sputes with the issuer of uhdpecied
irvesament resilis

fhl Payment bn-Hind Securities Cenain Funds may smestin payment in-kand
securities [T FIKe™) Piks may give the issuer the opSon at each intenest
payrnent date of making infterest payments in either cash andfor additonal
debd securities. Those addtional debt securines U'A'J-.ﬂljl hiave the Lame tEms,
nchpding mananty danes snd mtenet rates, and Fsoaaned naks i the
ofgingl bonds. The daly masket quotations of the ceiginal bonds muny indisde
the acmued interest {refemred txas @ “dirty price™) and require a pro rata

adiwstment from the unreaized apprediation or depredation on invesiments
lo inberest recedvable on the Statements of Assets and Liabilifies

) Restricted Securities Certaen Funds may Bold mvestments that ane sy
to begal or confrachaal resfrictions on resale. These seqrities may be sold
peoviatety, but may be requered B0 be registersd or exempled from such
regatranon before being soid 1o the public. Frivate placement sequrities are
generally considered to be resiicled. Disposd of restriciad investments may
Imechee ime-Consurming negotiation: and expenses, and prompt sale at an
accepiable price may be difficult to achieve. Resticted investments hebd by
the Funds at October 31, 2022, a5 applicable, are dedosedin the Nofes to
Schicule of Invesirments

i Svrsiwrad Netes Certain Funds may rvest in stuchared notes and other
related instuments, which are prvately negafiated debit abligations in which
the prndpal and of interest 5 defermined by reference 10 the performance of
a benchmark: azsset, markef of interest rate (a0 “embedded ngex”), SECh a5
sebected sequnties, an index of securities oF speafied merest rates, of the
differential performance of te 255ets or markess, such a8 indexes reflacting
bonds. Stmuctured instruments may be issued by coporations, indudng
banks, 3 well 25 by governmental gencies. The tenms of such struciured
imstremends normally provide hat their prindpal andor interest payments are
1t e pcfusted upwwards of downrmand (bat ordinaily not below 2ea) to
riffect changés in the embedded index while the stuctured instoments are
cutstanding As a result, the interest andfor prindpal payments that may be
rrade on a srucired product may varywidely, dependng on 3 varkty of
tactons, mdudng the wiatding of the errbedded Index and the effect of
changes an the ernbedded index on prindpal andis nieesl pnments

i U5, Governasent Agencies or Gawemsseni-Sporssred Enterprises

Certam Randk may imeest in secuniiies of US. Govemment agenaes of
girerTITen t-ipontored enteprises U5 Government secunifies ane
abligations of and, in certamn cases, quarantesd by, the U5 Govemment, it
agencdes of instumentalities Some UL, Govemment secunties, such as
Trigsury bals, nobes snd bonds, and secunimes Quaraniesd by the Govemmen!
Ramona Mortgage Assocancn (TGNMA” o "Gnme Mae”), e wipporied
Iy the: Tusl fath and credit of the U5, Governmens; others, wuch a3 those of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer to
bomow from the U S, Deparement of the Treasury (the "US Treasuny™); and
others, such as those of the Federal National Morigage Assodation ("FNMA”
or “Fanmie W), are supporied by the disoredonary authority of the US
Govemment 1o purchase the agency’s obligations. L5 Gowvernment Securities
may indude 2ero coupon secunities, which do not distribute interest on a
current basis and tend to be subjed 1o a greater ek than interest-paying
Secugines of sirilar oot

Geneimiment-felated quaranteds § &, nol backed by the full fath and eredt of
the k5. Gowvernment) indude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Comporagon ("FRLMCT of "Feddie Mac™). FNMA B 3 govemment-sponsored
corporation, FRMA purchases conventional §f &, not insured or gu aranieed by
ay ovemnment agency) eesidential mongages from a list of appeoved
seflersieendicers which indude state and federally chartered <avings and loan
assodations, mutual sadngs banks, commendal banks and qedit unions and
miortgage bankers Pass-throwgh secunities ssued by FNMA are guaranieed a5
Lo iy payment of princpad and sntienest ty FRAMA, But are not badoed by
the full faith and credit of the U5 Government. FHLMC issues Partiapation
Cestificates {TPCS™), which ane pads-through searities, sach repretenting an
undvided interest in a podl of residential mortgages. FHUMIC guarantees the
timely payment of interest and wlmate ollecticn of prirdpa. but PCS a%e not
backed by te full faith and credi of the US. Govemment

In Jumee 2019, FHMA and FHLMEC started issuing Uniform Morigage-Backed
Sequrities (TUMES”) in place of their cument offerings of TRA-eligile
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securities (the ~Single Seqmity iniliathe™), The Single Seaunty initiative seeks
to support the overall liquidity of the TBA market and aligns the
charactenistics of FNMA and FHLMC certificates. The effects that the Single
Sty il e iy b on the markel Tor TBA and other mongage
Bracked Secenties ae UnCsTAIN

foil-timing srategies can be wsed where 3 Fund seeks to extend the
expiration or mandity of & position, such a5 a TBA senwity on an underhing
asset, by dosing cut the position befiore expiration and opening a new
prsition with respect to substantially the same underlying asset with a later
exparation date THA securities purchazed or sold are reflected on the
Statements of Assets and Liabdlities as an asset of liability, respectively

Il Whendssued Transactions Certan Funds may purchase of sl seowities
on 3 when-issued basis. These ransactions are made condiionally because a
security, athough autharized, has not yet been issued in the market
Tramsactions to punchase of sefl sacumties on 3 when 4ssued basis mmbe

a comemitment by a Fund to purchase of sell these seamities for 3
predesemened price of deld, with payment and desivery Laking place beyond
T austomany settkement period. & Rund Py sl when-asaged seaunties
before they ane delivered, which may resultin 4 reabzed Gain of loss

{m] Barik Dbligations Eank ::J:Ilqanl:nrrsnn witibche 3 Fund may invest indude
certifcates of deposit, bankers” acceptances, and Soed lme deposils
Certificates of deposit ane negalisble certificares issued against funds
depotited in 4 cormmerdal bank for 2 defite pariod of ime and eaming a
spedfied requm . Bankers’ aoCeplances ane negoiabie dratts o bills of
exnchange, nonmully drawn by 30 IMpoeter of Exporter i pay for spedfic
rrerchandeie, which ane "aooepied” by a bank, meanma, in «fed, teat the
bank unconditionally agrees w pay the faoe valiee of the instrument on
maturity Fixed fime deposits are bank obligations payable at a stated
maturty date and bearing inferest at 3 fowed rate. Foed Gme deposits may be
withdrasn on demand by the investor, but may De subject to earky
withdrawal penalties which vary depending upon market condiions and the
remaining matunty of the cbiigation

5.EORROWINGS AND OTHER FIRAHCING TRARSACTIONS

The bollcwang disdodures oontasn informaton on the Fends' sbilitg b bend of
Erceminy cash of seauifes 1o the extent permitted under the Offering
Memcrandum, which may be viewed a borowing o financing transactions
by the Funds. The location of ese instaments is gesaribed below. Fora
detsbed desapon of gredk and counterparty ik:s thar can be associated
walh ECemossinge and other f"'l.ill'vt-'hj [ramsactuons, please see Mote 7,
Prindpal and Other Risks

{n] Aeprchese Agresments Certain Funds mdy engage m repurdisie
agreefmenls. Linder the terr of 2 hypicH reguichirte Sgreement,

3 Funed purchases an underying debt obligation (oollateral) subject o an
obigaton of the seller to repurchase, and a Fund to resell, the obligation at
an agreed-upon price and ime. I an Open Mausity repurdhase agresment,
thede &5 o pre-geterrmined repurdnase date and the agreement can b
terminated by the Fund or counterparty at amy Sme The market value of the
coflateral must be equa bo of exgeed the total amount of the repurchase
obdgations, induding interest. Repurchase agreements, induding acoued
intereat, ane induded on the Staements of Astets and Liabilnes Intenest
eamed B recorded as a comganent of interest income on the Stanements of
Operations. In penads of nceated demand for collateral, a Fund mdy pay 3
fee for receipt of collaterdl, whach may result in inferest expense to the Fund

ib] Reverze Aepurchaze Agreements Certain Funds may enter into reverse
repurchase agreements In a reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund delivers a
sequrityin exchange for cash to @ fnandal institution, the counterparty, with
A snuliansaus agreement 10 epundhate the same of subdtantaly the same

securify At an agreed upon price and date. In a0 Open maturity reverse
repunchase agreement, there is no pre-determined repurchase date and the
agreement can be terminated bey the Fund or counterparty at any time

A Fund i4 entiled bo receive prindpa and intenes! payments, if sy, made on
the Secunty delvened to the counterparty dumndg the term of the agreemient
Cash recenved in eochandge for secunties delvered plus aconied interast
payments to be made by @ Fund to counterpartes. are reflected as a llabilsy
on the Statements of Assets and Labdities Interest paments made by a fund
[0 CounBerparties are recorded 3 3 component of interest expense on the
Staterments of Operanons. in penods of increated demand for the Sedunty,

a Fund may receie 3 fiee for use of the sequrity by the counterparty, which
may resultin imberest income to a Fund. A Fund will segregate assets
determined 1o be liquid by PRVCO or will athensise cover ils oiligations
LR rimarte repurchase Sgresmenis

Idl Sale-Buybacks Certain Funds My entes inkg I'-'i-ll'-liﬂ'l'] ranianons
refemed 1o a5 “salke-tuybacks’. A sale-buvbadk financng Fansadion condsts
of 3 sabe of 3 security bya Fundio & fimancial institusion, the CON ATy,
with a smultaneous agreement o repurchase the same o substantaly the
same sensify at an agreed-upon price and date A Fund is not entifed to
receie princpal and interest payments, if any, made on the security sold to
the counterparty duning te term of the agreement. The agreed-upon
proceads for sequrities to be repunchased by 3 Fund ae reflected a5 3 iability
on the Statements of Assefs and Liabiities A Fund wall recognize net indme
reprasentad by the price dfferenBal bebwesn the price received for the
transfiemed QN Ty and the ﬂ‘,‘r’?f‘ﬁ-l.l‘D-'Jl'l repurchase price, Thisis <|:mrrml:.-
refemid 10 45 the ‘price drop”. A price drop consises of () the fl‘]f':-’_i‘ll':é NRETESL
andd il atiomary income aduaments, if any, & Fundwould have otheswnse
received had the security not been sold and (i) the negotiated finandng tenms
petween 3 Fund and counterparty Foregone interest and infladonary income
adiustments, if ary, are recorded as components of enterest income on the
Statements of Operations. interest payments based upon negotiated finandng
terrs made by & Fund to counterparties are reconded 2% a component of
Imterest epense on the Statements of Operations. In peniodk of ncreased
dermand for the seaxity, 2 Fund may receive 3 fee for use of the sequrity by
e countenparty, which may result in interest inoome 0o a Fund. A Fund wall
SR dyers determined to be liguid by PIMCO of will ofierite oover it
aibligaticng snder sale-turyback ransactions

i Short Seles Certain Funds may enter into dhoet sales transactions. Short
sales are transactions in which the Fund sells 3 security that it may not cen

A Fund may make short sabes of securities to () offset potential dedines in
long postions in grmilar secunties, (i) b increase the flegbility of the Fund,
(i) for imeesemeent retuen, v) a5 part of a sk arkivage srategy, and &) 3
part of its ovirall poetiole management Sirategies iniaving the ue of
derivate inSTumEnts. When 4 Rund engages in a Short sale, it may bomow
thi Sacunty sold short and deliver it 1o the countemparty. The Fund will
ordinaridy have o pay 3 fee or premium 1o boemow 3 sequnity and be obiigated
to repay thedender of the security any dvidend of intesest thal acoues on the
security during the period of the loan . Seaxities sold kn short sake Tansactons
and the dividend o interest payable on such secunties, if any. are reflected as
payable for short sales on the Statements of Assets and Lisbilifes. Short sales
expose fhe Fund to the risk that it wil be required to cover its thort position
at a tmewhen the security or other ascet has appredated in value, s
riesubting in bodses o the Fund. A shot saleis "against the oo™ if

the Fund hold in it portholio o has the rght to acquire the Ssurity sold
thiot, or seauities idenfical 1o the security sobd $hor, a1 no sdditional cost

A Fundwill be subject 1o addtional risks 1o the extent that it engages in shir
sales that are nol ~agamst te box™ A Fund's [oss on 3 shoft sale could
theoretically be urlimited in Cases whene the Fund is unatie, for whatewer
reason, to dose out its short position
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Notes to Financial Statements

fe) Liren of Cradit FIMKCO Bermuda Bark Loan Fund (M) entered into 3 364-
dij' SENR URSE0ared r-.;-rd'.'a'.; aredil A eEmEnl with thie Bank of Tli:ﬁil'
Witsulisha UFL, Lvd O MUFG™) and ather commmencial banks 10 be utilized to
tefpdany purpased 1o fund Undtolder redemptions of for other shorl-team
Ioquckty purposes. MURG senves a5 both 3 bank and 35 an agent for other
banks that are parties 1o the agreement. PIMCO Bemuda Bank Loan Fund
{M) pays finandng charges based an 2 combination of S0FR-based variable
plis a credht spread. The Fund also pays a fee of 030% per annum on e
unused commitment amounts. The agreement was renewed on Augest 19,
2022 and expires on Auguit 18, 2023 unlets extended of renewed There s a
maimuem available commitment amount for PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan
Fund (M) equeal 10 $15,500,000, Prior 1o August 149, 2022, the maximum
avalgole comimatment amount for thee Fund was 545,000,000 and the Fund
paid a fee of 0.275% per annum on e urused commilment amounts.
Commitment, uptront and interest fees of §137,379 pad by AIMCO Berruda
Bank Loan Fund (M) &re indieded in intenest expense in the Statements of
Operations

[hming the pericd, there were no borrowings on tis ine of cedit

. FIRAHCIAL DERIVATIVE IRSTRUMENTS

The tollcwing discesures oontan information on how andwhy the Funds use
financal derivative instruments and how finandal dentvaltive insruments
affect e Funds’ inandal posison, results of operagons and cash fows. The
location and far vaue smounts of thess insTuments on the Statements of
Asseis and Luatalites and the net reabzed gain (Joss) and net change in
unrealized apprecation (depredation) on the Statements of Operations, each
cateqoeized by type of fnancidl dervative confract and related risk exposure,
are incudied in 2 table in the Notes 1o Schedule of Inestments. The finandal
difirvalive instruments cutstanding & of penicd end and The amounts of net
realized gain Jods) and net dhange in unrealized agpredation (depredation)
on finandal derivative instruments during the perod, & dsdosed in the
Haites to Schedule of Investments, sene &5 indicators of the volumse of
financ gerrvainve aavity for the Funck

ia) Forweard Foresgn Gurrency Contracts Cesfain Funds may engage in
forwiard foreign oumrency contracts in connection with sefling planned
purchaies of sales of secufites, b hedge the cusrency eposre ssodated
with soeme oF Al of & Fund's securities of a5 part of an investment strategy’ A
forweard foreign cumency contradt is an agreement between two parties 10 buy
and sell & currency at 3 set peice on a future date. The market value of a
foewiard forelgn urendy Ooned flisctuates with changes in horengh curmency
exchangs rates. Fonwand f'ﬂl'.'-';"l QUERCY Contracts are mirkied 1o mak el
daily, and the change in value 15 reconded by 3 Fund & an uneealized gan of
logs. Realized gains or hosses are equal o the dfference between te value of
the contractat the fime it was opened and the valee a1 the fime it was dosed
and are regorded upon deliveny of receipt of the cumendy. These confracts
iy ireeche market nsk in exgess of the unrealized gan of s reflected on
the Statements of Assets and Lisblities. In addition, 3 Fund could be exposed
1o rick: it thie counterpartes ane unable to mest the ternms of the contracts or if
the vaiue of the curency changes unfavorably to the imcional cumendy. To
rimgane aach nisk, crsh of Securites may be exdhanged & collaterd purasant
1o Bt Remns f (e undieriying Con acts

Cetaln Funds, having a hedged Class, may also enter into forwand foresgn
CuTeny contracts designed to offset the effect of hedging &t the Fund bevel in
orger to legee the hedged Class with an expdsure to oamencies other than the
functiona cemency. There can be no guarantes that these Class spedfic
foeward foreign aamency contracts will be successul

k] Futurss Contracts Certain Funds may enter into futunes contracts. A
fuldes CONDRRCT & A0 Sgreemunl b0 buy or dl 3 sequnty of ofier assel Br 3

sel price on 3 future date and is raded on an exchange. A Fund may e
fubures contracts b manage its exposure o the saqunities markets or o
mowvements in interest rates and mency values. The primary risks assodated
wath thee i o fananes coniracts ane the imperiec comiation betaeen thi
change m mate? value of the secunines heid by a Rend and the prioes of
Tusures contracts and the posatality of a0 illiquid market Fubanes coniracs
e valieed hased upon thesr quoted dally seiifement peices. Uipon entering
o @ fusures corract, @ Fund is required 1o deposit with its futures broker an
aemcunt of cash, 15 Govemment and Agency Obligations, or selec soversgn
b, in accordance with B instial P CRN PR IPEments of thie brokes of
exchange. Futures confracts are marked to market daily and based on such
mawements in 1he price of the contrads, an appeopriate payable or recervabde
for the change in value may be posted of collected by the Fund ("Futures
Variason Margn ™) Futures Variation Margns, if any, ane ditdlosed withan
centrally deared fnandal desivative mstruments on the Satements of Assety
and Liabelities. Gans or kadses are recognized but nol considensd reslized until
the contracts expire or dosé Fulures contracks imohee, 10 varying degrees,
risk of boss in excess of the Futures Venation Margs induded within
exchang: waded of centrally deared fnanoal demvatve nsmaments on the
Sranements of Asters dnd Listdives

Il Options Contracts Certain Funds may write or purchase options to
erihance feturns of 1o hedge an existing poditon or future imesment. Certan
R may werite call and put apions on seunties and Snanaal demrdatve
irsEraments they own o i wiech they mayinvest Writing put options tends
o mnoresse a Fund's expoture 1o the UI'I-H|'|-'I‘1I,'| I SARATENT '-I'err-g call
COEONS tends [0 dedease J Fund s expodure 0 Me undeing inst ment
Wi 3 Fundwntes o call of put, an amount equdl 10 the poemiom fecissd i
reqorged and subsequenty marked to market to reflect the qament value of
thee option writlen, These amounts are imchuded on e Statements of Assets
and Ustalties. Fremivms recedved from writing opons which expire are
treated & realized gans. Premeums received from whling opions whidh are
emrdsed of dosed are added to the procesds o ofset against amaunts pad
on the undertying futores, swap, seqanty of qumendy Iransaction 1o determine
the realized gain of loss, Cestain options may be wiitten with premiums o be
devermaned on & hubare dane. The premiuames for these options are based upan
ienpdied wedatility parameters ot spedfied terms. A Fund a5 awriter of an
apEon hat 1o control cwer whedher the underhing mdrument may be soid
(el ™) or purchased (Cput”) and a5 & et bears the marketrisk of an
wnfaeorable change in the peice of the instrumens enderying the written
cpon There is the risk 3 Fund may not be able to enter into 3 dosing
trasaction because of an illquid market

Certain Rands may Jso pordhase put and call opSons. Purchasing call opsons
tendks fo inease 3 Fund's exposure 1o the underhying enstnument. Purdhasing
[l opticns tends 1o decredse & Fund's exposine 1o e uwderhing instousment
A Fund pard 3 prarium which is induded as an Fssed on the Statements of
Assets and Labilities amd sultsequently marked to markel o refect e
current value of the option. Premiums paid for pusdhasing options which
exphre e freated a5 realized bosses. Cerain options iy be purchased with
premuns o be determined on 3 futare date. The premiums for these optins
e baced upon implied volatity pararmueers af ipecified temns Thi sk
assodated with purchasing put and call options ks limited to the premium
paid. Premiums paid for purchasing oplions which are exerdsed or dosed are
added o the amounts paid or offset against the proceeds on the underying
imeestmen transection to determine the realized gain or loss when the
undeflying Iransaction is edeuted

Credit Default Swaptions Certan Funds maywiite or punchaze credet defaudt
Wvaptions. 1o hedge expogune 1o e aredtndk of an invesiment without
making a commitment to the Enderhing imstrument. A qedit defauft swaption
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s an opticn B0 sell or by credit protection to 3 spedfic reference by entering
ik a pre-defined awap agreement by sorme spedBed date in the future

Fersign Currency Optiens Certan Rind mady wnte of purchase forédgn
curmency options to be used 35 ashort o long hedge against posable
war atons in foreign exchange rates or to gain exposure bo foreign cumendes

Inflatior-Cappad Options Certain Funds may write or purchabe inflagon-
capped options 1 enhance resums of for hedging opoormunities. The pumxose
of purchasing inflation-capped options is 1o protect & Fund from indaton
efosion abowe A Certain rate on 4 given notional eposure. A foor can be
e 0 gpve dowwmaide protecsion B investrents in inflaton-inked products

Invtarest Rate Swaptions Cirtasn Fumds may write o punchase intensst rate
swaptions which are GpHons 10 enter in1o a pré-delned swap sgeement of
1o shorten, extend, cancsl or othensise modty an exishing swap agreemsnl,
by some spedfied date in the futre. The writer of the swaption becomes the
CouUnRErparty bo the swap if Thee Dusyer emercises. The enberest rate Swapbon
Wﬂ.&nrm! ﬁf‘r’w‘ht‘ﬂ! & the bigger of the swaption wall bea fedTate
receiver of 3 fixed-rate payer upon exsrdse

Dptiors on Exchange: Traded Futures Contracts Certain Funds rday wile of
purdhase options o exdhandge-raded fununes conaracs (" Fulures Ophon ™) ta
hiedge an exsling position o fulure investment, K speculative purposes of 1o
FRANGgE expasiine 1o rerket movements. A Futuses Opton 13 an opticn
contract in which the underying instrumentis 3 sngle futures contract

Opriors on Securitles Certan Funds may wiite o purchase options on
SECUARIES. 10 enfanoe retms of 1o hedge an ediing position of fulune
IFTVRARTENT AT GREIN O 3 SECRTY uks 3 Spedfied sequity 5 the wdirhing
Instnurment for the oplion oonirea

i) Swisp Agreements Certzin funds may investin swap sgresments. Swap
agresments are bilsterally negotiated agreements bedaeen 3 Fund and a
counterparty bo exchange of seap imvestment cash Bows, assels, foreign
currendes or marketdinked retams at spedfied, future intervals. Swap
agreements may be privately negotiated in the OTC market of may be deared
thecaigh 4 thind-party, kiien a5 & central counberpadty of dervativies deanng
onganerason ("centrally deaned Saaps ™) A Fund may enter inlo assel, aedin
default, ooss-umenoy. interest rate; tota retumn, variance and other formes of
Siap agreements to manage its exposure to aredt, currendy, interest rate,
commodity, equity and inflatan sk in connection with these agresments,
SecEties of Cash may be bdentfied a5 collateral or margin in aocondance with
the termes of the retpective wwvap agresments 1o prisade assets of walue and
recourse in the event of dedault or banknaptopirescdency

Centrally cedied 9wins e marked to markel daky bated upon vabuasons s
deterrrenid from e undédang contract of in socordance with the
recpuinemeents of e ceniral counterpar by of defivatees dearing organization
Changes in market value, i any, are reflected 35 3 component of net change
in urwealized appreciation eprediation) on the Statements of Operations
[raily changes in waliaahon of centrally deaned avape ("dwap Vanation

Margn “), if any, are dedosedwithin centrally deared finandd derirative
instruments on the Statements of Assets and LiabiliSes. OTC swap pagments
received or paid at the beginning of the measurement period are induded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilides and represent premiumms paid or
fistenvid UPOR ERtenG A0 the Svap agrement 1o Compensate fof
ditferénces between the dated terme of the swad agreement and prevailing
market cond ions (redt ipreads, arrendy exchange rates, inberest rates, and
ater redevant facnors) Upfront premisms received dpald) are inidaly recorded
a5 hatodes (asses) and sulbsequently marked 1o market 1o refledt the umem
walug of the swap. These l,-pflml:p‘.'-':ﬁ'uun'ﬁ e reconded 2 redhzed gans of
bt on the S1atements of OpErations upon TErminatcn o maturity of te
swiap. A Bguidation payment received of made at Se temination of the avap

is recorded a3 redized gain or koss on the Slatements of Operations. Met
periodic payments received or paid by 3 Fund are induded a5 part of realized
gains or losses on the Stabements of Operations

For purparses of applying otaen of 3 Fund's imesiment posides and

s BNy, Swap sgneaments, Bbe olfe derivalios shdrummen 5, iy be
waliped by 3 Fund at market value, notional vale or full exposure value. In the
case of 3 creddit default swap, in apphing certain of the Fund's imvestment

P 10w i resmonons, me Fundwil vaue me oedt defsult PNED AT
rofonal value or its full expossre value ( 2, the sum of the notionl amount
for the confrad plus the market value), but may value the credt default swap
at market value for purposes of apphing certain of the fund's other
imeestment podicies and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value gedit
el ault s aprs a1 Wl exposure value e purposes of the Fund’s credit quality
uicelines. (if any) because wuch value in genera better refleces the Fund's
actual economic dxposune dunng the term of the dedit default swap
agreemment. A5 & result, & Fund may, at dmes, have nolona exposure 10 .an
aset dass (pefore netting) that Is greater of lesser than the stated limitor
FesRmman noded in the Fund's ':'f‘!l.‘llﬁg Memorandum I s context, Doth
the nctional smount and e makel value may be poRive of negative
dependng on whether the Fund is selling or buying protection through the
qedit default swap The manner in which certain sequnities of other
insEnements ane valued by e Fund for parposes of appiving investment
podicies and resinctions may ditfer from the mamer i which those
imeestments ane waued by other types of imvesbors. Entering into a7 ap
agreements imeotves, 10 vaning degrees, elements of inferest, aredit, market
and documentation risk in excess of the amounts recognized on the
Staserments of Asters and Listeities. Sudh rigks imeobve thie pasability tat
s wall be po Bguid market hor these agreements, hal the counleparty to
ther agrsesrrni s may defaull on it abligaton to perform of diagres as to the
meaning of confraciual teems in the agresments and that there may be
wniaearable changes in interest rates of the valipes of e asset upon which
Thoe: g 65 Dasesd

A Funeds madmum risk of boss from counterparty credit risk is the dscounted
net walue of the cash flosws to be recerved from the conterparty over the
confract’s remaning li, o the extent that amount is positive. The risk may
e ungated by haang & master nettng arangemint bedween a Fund and
e commBedpuar by aned by the pesting of collateral io @ Fund to cowver a Fund'™s
exposre (o the counterpatty

Tio thee extent a Fund has a policy tolimit the net amount osed b or 1o be
received from a single counferparty unider exsting ssap agreements, sudh
fimitation ondy applies bo counterparties 1o OTC swaps and does not agply to
Centrally deaned Svaps whene e counterparty 15 4 ceniral counterpesty of
derivathves dearing oeganizatisn

Credit Default Swap Agresments Certain Funds ey enter into credin default
SAps on Ofporate, loan, soversgn, LS munidpal of U5 Treasury ssues o
provide 3 meadire of protection againd defaults of the isasers e, toreduce
risk where 3 Fund gwns of has exposiare i the referenced Qbligation) of 10
Lake & BChve long or short posit on with respect 1o e lkelbood of a
partoular isaser's default Credi default swig Agresments ifvohve one party
making a stream of payments (refered bo as the buyer of protection) to
ancther party (the selier of profeciion) in exchange for the right 1o receive a
spedfied retwm in the event hat the referenced ensity, obligation or indez,
spedfied in the swap agreement, undergoss a Certain redl event As 3 saller
of protection on credit default swap sgresments, a Fund wil generally receive
friorn the buyer of protection a foed rate-of incme Swoughout the term of the
awap prowided that there is no dedil avent As the saller, 3 Fund would
éTietlvdj' A0 leverage 1o it portiodio because, in addtion 10115 total net
s, the Fund wiould Be subyect [0 inywesmen| exposne on the noticnal
armunt of the swap
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If a Fund is a <eller of protectin and a aredit event ooours, as defined undar
the terms of that particular swap agreement, a Fund will either (i) pay 1o the
bupyer of profection an amount equad to the notional amount of the swap and
take delbviery of the referenced oblination, ather deliverable obligatices o
underheng seqanties compasng the referenced index of (B) pay 4 net
seftlement armaunt in e fomm of cash o secuities equal pa the notmal
amount of the swap less the recovery value of the referenced obligation oo
undertying senuanties compeising the referenced index. If & Fund i a buyer of
protecEon and 3 credit event oooss, 35 defined under the e of that
prartacular Swap greement, a Fundwall erther (1) redenve from e sller of
prafecton an amount equal b he notional amount of the awap and deliver
the referenced cbligation, other deliverable obfigaSons or undarhing
sequnities comprising the referenced inde o (i) recetve a net settiement
amount in e fomn of cath or searitied equal 1o the national amount of the
wwvap bess the necovery walue of the reterenced obligaticn ar underying
securities comprising the referanced index Redovery values are estimated by
market makers considering either industny standard redovery rates of enfity
speafic fa0ors and considerasions untl & dect even oomers. If @ credit event
i oooumed, the ecteny value is determined by 4 fadilitated auction
wheteler a rrenimum nuirber of dlowable broker bds, together with 3
spedified valuation method, are used to caloate the setlement value. The
ability b deliver ather obligations may result in a cheapest-o-deliver opdon
{the baryer of profection's nght i dhoose the defiverable obligation with the
lowrestvalue following a cedit event)

Credit default vap agreements on aredit indwes imobee tne party making a
stream of payments to another partyin exchange for the nght 10 receive a
specfied return in the event of awnite-down, pincpal shoreiall, interest
sheenttall or defaultof 2 or partof the referenced ensitiey Comprising the
creditindex. A creditindex is 2 basket of cedit mEmnaTERS OF Expotunes
designed o be representative of some part of te gedit market a5 2 whls
These indices are made up of reference gedts that are judged by a poll of
deaers 1o ke the most lquid engties in the aedit default swap market based
on the sector of the index. Components of the Indices mayindude, bt are
not linwted bo, imeestment grade securities, high yield sequrities, assel-badbed
sequnlties, emerging markets, and'or vanous ceditratings within eadh secior
Credt indices are raded using oredit default swaps with standardized tems
Ircfuding & fied 4pread and standand maturity danes. An index credt defadt
swiap reterendes all the names in the mdex, and (f thene is a detault, the credi
evenl 5 seitled based on thatname's weighl in he index. The compositon of
the indices changes perindically, wsualy every to moaths, and for most
indices, each name has & equal weightin the index A Fund may use aredit
debault swaps on credit indices 10 hesige 2 poetfolio of cred defaudt swaps or
Do, which 15 less opentaae than 1Twauld be 10 buy mamy credit delal
swaps ip achieve 3 similar effedt, Credit default swaps onindices are
Imstrumenits for probecting emestors awning bonds against default, and
traders use them 1o specate on changes in aedt quality

Implied cradit spreads, represenibed in absolute terms, wilizzd in determining
the markel value of credit defaull avap agresments on corporate, foan,
sowereagn, US munidpal of U5 Treasury issues a5 of pencd end, if any, ane
disdosed in the Mobes 1o Schedule of Irvestrents. They Senve 35 an indicaid
of the ourrent status of paymentiperdormance nd and represent the likelibood
oF ik of default for thee referenced endty. The implied dedit 4pread of 2
partioular referenced enfity refects the cost of buying'seling protection and
may indude updront payments required to be made 1o enter info the
agreement Wider aredit spreads represent 3 deterioration of the referenced
entity’s credit soundness and a greater likelibood or risk of default or other
credit event ooourring as dafined wnder the terms of the ageement For credi
defzult swap agreements on asset-backed securifes and aedit indices, the
quoted market prices and resulting values senve 35 the indicator of the qument
sratus of 1he panrenterfoemance rek. indedsing market valued, in Atsolule

terme when compared to the noBonal amount of the swap, repressnt 3
deterioration of the referenced enlity’s aed! soundnéss and a greater
I&elibvood or risk of default or other qedt event ocouming a5 defined under
thees berrees o thie agresment

The msfum patental amount of future payments (undiscouried) that

& Fund 3 a seller of protecton could be required to mabe under @ qedt
defaut 9w 3p agreement equals the notional amount of the agresment
Motionat ameunts of each indivicus! credit GEtalL swap agreement
uistanding & of period end for which a Fund is the seller of protecion ane
disdosed i the Notes to Schedide of Investments. These potential amounts
wipld be partidly offset by any recovery values of the respective referenced
gbligations, upfront payments received upon embesing into the agreement, or
Pt amcunts necened fromm the Setement of biry protection anedit detaull
awap agresments entered into by a Fund for the same relerenoed entity of
enlifies

Imarest Rate Swap Agresmerts Certain Funds are subject 10 inferest rate
visk exposure in the normald course of pursuing Bheir investment objecives
The value of the fixed rate bonds that a Fund holds may decrease if interest
rates rise. To help hedge against this risk and to maintain its abdity to
Qenerane icame 3t privaling msret fates, 3 Fund my enter into indemesl
rane Swap agreemnents. ntenes fabe wydp agreements invohve the eothandge
by 4 Fund with another party fof: their respective Commelment [0 pay of
reoende inferest on the notlonal amount of prindpal. Cervain forms of inferest
Fabe Swap greements may indide (i) imterest rate Caps, under which, in
FRRUM SO0 3 peemmiumm, one Py agreds 10 make payments oo the ather 1o the
exfent that interest rates exceed 3 spedfied rate, or “cap”®, §i) interest rate
floors, under which, in retum for a premium, one party agrees to make
payments bo the other 1o the extent that interest rates fall below a spedfied
rabe, of “fioor™, (i) interest rate collars, under which a party szlls 3 cap and
purchases & floor of vice Wersa in 3n attempl 1o protedt itsel agairt interet
rate mowements soceed ng goen minimum o madmom lewels, (v) callabie
interest rabe wvaps, under which the buyer pays an uplront fee in
conshderasion for the ﬂl;hl L] l.‘\\':l'i',' termirate the svap Tansacion in whok,
Al 2erg 0ost and At & predetermuined date and tene paor o the matinty e,
() spreadiacks, which allow S inlerest rabe Svad whar o lack in the
torwand cittenential (oF spnead) betaeen the infenest rale swap rate nd a
spedified benchmark, oo () basis swaps, under which weo parties can
exchange vanable interest rates based on different segments of money
ke

Total Return Swap Agresmenss Certan Funds may enter into total refum
awap agreements bo gan o miSgate exposure o the undethying reference
Tiotal FRIUFn S 30 Beements ke commatments where Sngle of muliple
cash Sows are evchanged based on the prce of an wnderhing reference auget
and on a Sxed o vanatle interest rate Total refum Swap Agreements may
i COMMiTMENES 10 pay intenest in exthange for a marketinked relum
One coungerparty pays out the tobdl refum of 3 spedfic underhing reference
anssel, which may include 3 single security, & basket of sequiities, of an index,
and i nefum receives 8 xed of wan able rate. AL e matunty date, a netcash
fiowd it eechanged where the total rebon & equivalent 1o the return of the
undeehying reference asset less a finandng rate, if any. As a recever, a

Fund would recetve payments based an amy posidve tolal return and would
ow e payments in the event of a negative (otal reiem, As the payer, a

Furid wioidd owee paytrents on amy posithve tatal return, and would recens
payments i the event of a net pegatve 1olal refum

7. PRINCIFAL AHD OTHER RISKS

o Prircipal Risks I Me nommdl course of business, te Funds (or Aoquened
Funds), If appdcabie) trade Bnandal instnements and enter into finand al
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transactions where ritk of potential koss exists due to such things a8 dhanges
in the market (market risk) or failure or inability of the other party o a
transaction bo perform (oedt and counterparty risk). See below for 3 detaded
descripiion of select peindgal fks

Fand of Fundde Fisk T the éxfient that certain Funds inesdt subdtantaly 8 of
their respective 3515 in Acquired Fund(s), the risks assodated with invessing
In hese Funds will be dosely redated to the risks assoaated with the Serunlies
and other investiments held by the Acquired Fundisy. The abilicy of the Funds
to achiese their respective irvestment objectives may depend upon the abslity
of the Acguired Fund(s) bo achieve their respective imvestiment objectives
There can be no assurange that the invesment objective of any Acguired
Fumd{s) will be achieved The NAV of an Acquiring Fundwill fluctuate in
respancse W changes in the meapecine MAY of the Acquaned Furdis) in whech il
irmests

In the nommal course of Euseness, Aoguired Fund(s) rade fnandal instrements
and enter inbo financial ransactions where rsk of potential loss exists due 0
changes i the mackel (market nsk), o Falure of inadeliy of the alives party &
a ransaction 1o perform {edt and counterparty risk)

Markei Risks A Fund®s mwesiments in inandal derneatne insraments and
affer finandal instruments expote the Fund tovakous fisks wach a4, butnot
liemited %o, interest rate, foreign duon-L0S ) curvency, equity and commod ity
fisks

Inbesest wate rigk 4 the risk that fced income securises and other insuments
beld by a Fund may dedine in walue because of an indeate in interestrates. §
nioeminal imberest rates rise, the value of certan fed income sequnties held by
A Fund would liely decredse A nomanal intered rate can be desonbed ot the
sum of & neal witertsl rate and an expecied inflaton rate, inbérest rae
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may lose money il
thess dhamges ane aot anlidpated by Fund management. A Fund may nat be
able to hedge agamn st changes in inlerest rates of may chogse not to oo 50 for
sk of o er reatons. In addition, any hedges, may Aol work J5 intended

Diur afon is 2 measure used to determine the sensithaty of a secunty's price to
changes in imterest rates tat ncorponates a sequrity’s vield, coupon, final
maturity and call features, among other characienistics. Convesity is an
acdtional measure used o understand a secunly's of Fund's interest rane
sefitivity that measures the rate of change of dwation in resporse o
changes in milered! rates Fooed income secunities wath longer durations fend
1o be more sensitive b0 dhandges in interest rates, wa ally making them mone
wolatle than seqsnties with shofer durstions. A wide vanety of factors can
CFSE INTERES ranes of yehds of US Treasury Seouries (o el ds of oxher
Types o Do) 1o Fise (g, Cendral bank rrometary polices, inflation rabes,
genera economic condifions, etc ). This is espedally ue under current
cond@ons because interest rates and bond yields are near historically low
lessals, Thigs, the Funds currently face a heightened bevel of sk assodated
walh mrang inbensst rates andior bond yields. This coudd be driven by a vanety
of factars, induding but not Emited to central bank monetary polides,
changng inflation or real growth rates, generd economic conditions,
Ingreasing bond issuances or reduced market demand for |ow yielding
Irvethrnents. Further, while U5 bond markets hive Steadly grown over the
past three decades, dialer “markiet making™ abey has remained relately
stagnant. Given the importance of inermedary “markel making™ in ceating
& robust and active market, fixed income secunities are qurrently

fagng increased wolatiling and liquidty risks. All of these factors, collectivesy
andior indvadually, coubd cause 3 Fund 1o lose value. 8 the Fund last enough
wafue, the Fand could face increased Unitholder redempitions, which could
further impair its perfoemance. Abso, the Fund may be adversely affected
when a large Unitholder purchases or redeems Large amounts of units, which
can oooer at any Gme and may impact the Fund in the same manner a5 a high

wolume of redemption requests. Lange Linitholder Iransactions may impact
the Fund's liquidity and net asset value Sudh ransadions may dso inedse
the Fund's fransaction costs or obhenwise cawse the Fund to perform
difterently than interded Mofedwer, the Fund is whgect to the rsk that
ctier Unithodders may make smvestment dedisions based an the chaces of A
large Unatholder

P the extent that certain Funds mury irvest in secutiSes sndinstruments fat
e eConomecally med to Russla, the Funds e Sul‘g?—"- bovanous niks wdh &,
[t not Emited 1o polifical, economic, legal, markes and qumendy fisks. The
risks indhude uncertain pofitical and economic pofiges, shorl-term market
wolatilitg, poor accoynting standards, cormuption and aime, an inadequate
requlatony system, and unpredictable tacation, vestments in Russia ae
particulary subyect to Me fisk that further eoonomic Sanctions may be
irnposed by the United States andior ather countries. Such sanctions, which
iy Bmpact companies in many sedtors, induding energy, finandal sendces
and defense, among ahers, may negaively mpac a Fend's performance
andior atelty (o achieve (iS5 investment objectve. The Russian seaumties
FaEL, 45 compaeed 1 LS markels, has ugmﬁ cant prace volatliny, less
Inquichey, & senller rmaeker CapiRakzanon and & smaler number of raded
secyrites. Adverse cumency exchange rates are a nsk and there may be a lad
of avadabie curency hedging instruments. nvestments in Russia may be
subgect to the risk of nadonalzation o expropn agon of assets. Ol natural
gas, metals, and imber acoount for a sgreficant portion of Russia™s exports,
leaving the country valnerabie bo swindgs in world pices

A Fund may have SJ-\]'IIE{JJ‘-[EIDIIH.I'E 1o i Snets in e Uinited Kingdom. The
United Eingdorn 5 wathidrawal fromm the European Unson may impact Fund
fetums This deosion may cawse substantial wolanlity in horeign exchange:
markets, lead bo weadkmess in the exchange rate of the Briish pound, resultin
a systaned period of marketuncertanty, and destabdize some or all of e
otfwr European Unica member countries andfor the Eurozons

Fereign (nof-U.5 ) securities in this report ane diassified by the country of
imcorporation of 3 holding. In certain instances, a seaurity's country of
incorporation may be different from ite oountry of economic exposure

I & Fund sfaksts directly in fofeion (pon-U5 ) durfemaes of in seosities. that
(ke w, snd recenie fevenies in, Tareign (Ron-U5.) aumendes, o in fnanda
derivaie instruments thal provide exposure to fareign (non-L S ) asrrendes,
Ftwll be sabject 10 the risk that those qumencies will dedline in value relatve
1o e Darse QuiTendy of the Fund, o, in the case of hedging positions, that
the Fund's bate currency wall dedine in walue relative 1o the arrendy being
hedged Currency rates in foresgn countries may fluctuate significantly cver
shoet periods of time for 2 number of reasons, induding changes in interast
rates, mtenanton (of the faslene 10 interaene) by LS. of Tobégn govermiments,
ceniral banks of supeananonsd entities such a5 the intermational Monetany
Fund, or by thee impeiition of arrency contrals of ather palitical developments
in the United Sates or abroad. As arewlt, a Fund's irnestments in foreign
Currency-genominated seourities may recuce the Fund's returms

The market values of equities, such as common stodks and prefered secunties
o equity related investments such as futures and options, have historically
risen aned fallen in periodic opdes and may dedine due o general market
condifions which are nof spedfically related o 2 parfioular company, wdh &
rieal oF peroéved sdverie economec conditions, chandges in the gensral
aulock Tof corparate eamings, dhanges in intenest of curfendy rates, public
health emengendes, sdh a5 the spread of infectious lness of dsease, o
athverse mvesior senliment generally. They may alse dedine due 1o faciors
which aifect 3 partauba indusing OF industries, sudh a5 |abor ShoFtages of
inredsed production costs and compeditve condiBons within an indusiny
Different tyfees of equity Secuilies may read dfferently to thewe
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developments Equity securities and equily rd.ated invesiments generally have
greater market price volatility than fized income seamiBes

Thiie Fusnidts mdy IFvest in Oiflisn InSTuments Bat rely in some Thshion upon
LIBOR LIBCR 5 an Sverage mntenesl rate, determanid by the ICE Benchmark
Admenistration, that banks dhanges ane anothef for the wte of shor -tem
momey. The United Kingaom's Finandal Conduct Authonity, which reguiates
LEBCIR, has announced plans to ulfimately phase out ®he use of LIBOR. There
remains uncertainty regarding future utlization of UBOR and the nature of
any replacement rate (e g, te Secured Overnight Finandng Rate, whidh is
intended bo replace LS. dollar LIBOR and meadures the cost of ovemight
bcemowvings throwch regurchase agreement transacions oollateralized with
WS Treatury securities) Ay pobential effects of e randtion sway fom
LIEOR: o & Fund of o ceftamn instruments in which a Fund invests can be
ditcuit 1o ascenain, and they may vary depending on avanety of factons. The
tranditicn may also redultin a reduction in the valwe of certain insfruments
Field by a Fumd or 3 reciscion in the effectiveness of related Fund ransactions
such a hecges. Ay such effects of the wansition away from LIBOR, a5 wel
a5 otfver undoreseen effecs, could rewultin lesses ta & Fund

Beginning in January 2020, global fnandal markets haw experienced and
may condinue bo experience significant volatility resul Bng from the spread of a
nowel coronavrus known as COVID-19 The cutbreat of COVID-19 has
resulbed in travel and border resticions, quarantines, supply chain
disupticins, bower consumes demand and general market undértainty. The
global economy, the economees. of certain nations and indvidud isgeers have
b and miay continue o be adversely affected by COVID-19, partiodarly in
Ingjhé l!lf'a'h:ll'l[-:fmﬁr-:(ﬂ“ﬁ't&'-'ﬂ'ééll E0OnOTeES and Sinanaial markets, ol of
which muy negatvely impa the Funds' perfoemance. in addition, COVID=19
and govemmenial responses to COVID-19 may negatively impact the
capabiliges of the Funds’ senvice providers and dsrupt the Funds” operatons

Credit and Counterparty Risks A Fund will be egosed to creditnsk o
partses with whom it trades and will ako bear the risk of settement default
A Fumd minimizes concentr agons of aredi risk Ery undenaking a0 Sacmons
wilh & |ange nueber of Cus iomers snd counberpal es on recognized and
FEputalle exchanges, where spplicable OTC denvatn rarsactions
subgect tp the risk that a counterparty bo the transacion will nol fulfill i
contractual cbligations to the ofher party, as many of the protections affceded
t centrally deared denvative ransactions might nat be avalable for OTC
derwative transactions. For derivatives raded on an exchange or through 3
central counberparty, aredit mek resides with the ceditsorthiness of

the Fund's dearing becker, o the dearinghouse itsedf, rather than with a
counderparty in an OTC derivafive ramsaction. Changes in regulation refating
10 @ Fusd's e of derrvatives and relabed instruments could patentialy lint
of Enfuct the Fund's ability 80 inest in derfvatives, bmit te Fund's alality to
efnploy Certan srabedpet that wie demvates andior adversely afisct fievalue
or perfoemance of derivatives and the Fund & Fund could lose money if the
Issuer or guaranior of 3 fied income security, of the counterparty io a
fimancist derivative instnments coniract, repurchase agreement o & loan of
poetfolio secunities, is unale of Lenwilling b make Bmely principal andior
interest payments, of to othenwise honor its obligations. Securities and
finandal derivative instruments are subject to varying degress of aedit risk,
which may be reflected in ceditrating

Sarnilar o credit itk & Fund may be expoded Bo Copnterpanty nak, of The nsk
that an mslilution of ot enttywith which a Fund has unsettied of open
transactions will defaule. FAMCO, a4 the Manager, minami e courlerparty
risks v the Funds thiowgh 4 nsmber of ways. Frice 0 entenng into
transactions with & mew countenparty, the FIMCO Coumeanparty Risk
Comenittes conddicts an extensive dedi review of axth e TR R L TEY
approve the use of such counterparty. Furthermoee, pursuant to the berms. of
the underlying contract, to the extent that unpaid amounts owed to 3 Fund

exgeed 2 predetemmined threshold, such counterparty shall advance collateral
to a Fund in the $om of cash or seamities equal n value to the unpaid
amount awed 1o 3 Fund. A Furd may invest such coflateral in secunities o
ciliver nsarurrents and will tygecally pary inlerest i the CounIeiparey on e
ool aberal recerved N the unpaid amaant owed 10 2 Fund subdedquently
decreates, & Fund would be required Do retum 1o Se oounbérparty 38 o 3
porticn of the collateral previowsdy advanced PIMCO's attempts 1o minimize
counterparty sk may, howeser, be unsuccessil

Al transactions in listed seqmiSes are setfledpaid for upon delivery using
approved counterparties. The sk of default is considered minimal, a5 defvery
of securibies sold is only made once 3 Fund has received payment Payment i
made on 3 purchase once the sequrities have been delivered by the
counterpaity. The trade wall fad if either party bds 1o meet its obingaton

i Oibar Riskx in general, each Fund may be subject to additional risks,
indudng, but not limited Bo, risks related to govemment regdation and
intenvenBion in fnandal markets, operational risks, ddes asodated with
finandal, economic and global market dismuptions, and ofbersecunty risks
Plegae reter to each Fund's offen g documents for & more detaled
desaiption of the ks of imvestng i the Fund

Market Disruptions Rk The funds are subject 1o ivestment and
operational fisks dodated with finandd, econcenic and other global madet
dewelopments and disruptions, indeding theee ansing from war, lernorsm,
rrarket manipulation, govermiment interventions, defaults and shubdowms,
poliical changes or diplomatic developments, public health emengendes
(anch a5 the spread of indeCous diseases, pandemcs and epidemics) and
naturalenndronmental deasters, which can Jl negatividy IMpact e SeamiBe
riadogts, intenett fabes, aucons, secondary radng, ranndgs, cedt nsk,
inflaton, deflation and other factors relating to the Fund's investments of the
Manager's pperations and cause 3 Fund to lose value These events may have
adverse longrterm effedts on the LS. andworld economies and markets
generally. These events can aiso impalr the technobogy and other operational
wysterms wpon which a Fund's senvice providers, induding PIMCO as the
Funds” imvestment adviser, rely, and could otheewize disrupt a Fund's service
providers' abdity to fulfill their obfigations 1o the relevant Fund. For examgle,
the speesd of an mfechons respiratony ilneds coursed by anovel sirain o
coronadrs (eroan 35 COVID-19) hus cauted wolatility, severe rarket
dislacasions and ligudity oonslrsints in many markeds and may adversely
affecta Fnd's investments and aperations

Geverrmant Intervantion in Finencial Markets Fedenal, state, and other
gvermements, their requiatony agendes, or self-regul abory organizations may
lake actions that affect the requlation of the instrements in which a Fund
Irvoests, oo the st of such Enstruments, inwiys that ane unfoneseesbie
LegrBataon of fegulation may ol s change thi way i which & Furd insf is
regulated Such legiskation of ragulation could liret o predude a Fund's
ability to achieve its irestment objectve Furth ermaore, valatile finandal
aes Can expose 3 Fund o greater market and |iqueditg nisk and potendal
diffbaulty in valuing portfolic knsmuments held by the Fund The value of 3
Funds heoidings i5 also generally subject to the risk of future lacal, national, or
gobal economic disturbunces based on unknown weaknesses in the markets
inwhich a Fured invests. i addition, it is not certain that the U S Govemnment
will intenvene in response to a future market dsurbane and the effect of any
sudh Ruture intencention canmod be predicted. Inis difioult for issuers o
prepare fof the impact of future financal downturns, although companies Gn
seek o identity and manage hulsfe uncertainties thedugh rigk management
programs

Ragulatory Fiek Fnanddl entilies, such as rvestment companies and
imeestment advisers, are generally subject to extencive government regulation
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and intenvention. Govemment regulation andfor mitervention may change the
way a Fund is regulated, affect the expenses inoumed directly by a Fund and
the value of its investments, and limit and'or predude 3 Fund's akility to
Achse I ifrvisirnent abjectiee. Governrent regulason ey change
Irequently and may have SgniScant advers oon Sequeftes. Moreower,
goemmient fegulation may have unprediclable and unantended effects

Operational Risk A investment in 2 Fund like any fund, can invibae
operadional niks ising from factars wich as processng erors, homan emons,
inadequate or failed internal or extemal procesees, faliures in systems and
technobogy, dhanges in personnel and ermors caused by third-party sendce
picmbddiers. The aoourrence of Sy of tisse Talures, emors or breaches could
fiesult n & Boss of information, requlatoy scrafieny, reputational darmage o
ather events, amy of which could have  material adwerse eflecon 3 Fund
While 2 Fund seeks fo minimiize sudh events throwgh controks and oversight,
theesre ey 540l be fallures that could cause losses o the fund

Cyber Securiey Fisk As the use of technology has become more prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds hawe become potenBally more wistepiible
1o eperationdl snd infoemataon Le0ity ks resuling from beeachis in oyter
Secuftly. A breach in oyt Secuniy felirs 1o both intenbonal and
unintentbonal cyber events tatmay, among ather Bengs, cause a Fund to
lersie puriypiri e Lary i iration, suler data conupon andior destrudtion oF |ode
operasonal capadty, resdtin the unauthonzed release or other misuse of
confidential anforrmation, of othensise diaupt noemal business operatons
Cyboer sequriy failures or breaches may result in finandal losses 1o 2 Fund and
its Unstholiders. These failures or breaches may also result in disrupfons to
business operations, potentially resulting in finandal losses; interference with
a Fund’s ability to calculate Bs net assat value, process Unitholder
transactions of othenwise Fansact business with Unisholders; impediments 1o
trackndg wolanans of applecable prvacy and otfer laws; requlatony fines,
pematiey repulational damage; remburtement of other Compensation costs;
additional compliance and cyber secunity risk management costs and other
adverse consequences. In addton, substantial costs may e incurred in order
1 privent any cyber incidents in the future

B.MASTER RETTIHG ARRAHGEMENTS

Thie Fusndtt iy b Subijiect 10 various retting amangements | " bt
Agreamenbs ™) with select countérpartes. Matter Agreements govern the
terme Of certain transactions, @nd ane interded to reduce the counterparty msk
ass0c sted with rekevant transactons by spedfing cedit protection

rech anssms and I.'fl?f'i'iﬂ(} standardization hat & intended to impeoe legal
certanty. Each rype of Master Agreement Qovems Ceman ivpes of
transactions. DiHerent Iypes of rarsactions friy b traded out of different
legal entifies or affliates of a parficular organization, resulting in the need for
muktiple agresments with a sngle counterparty. As the Master Agreemenis
are spedfic bo unigue operations of different asset types, they dlow a Fund to
close out and net its total exposure 10 .3 ounberpasty in the event of a default
with regpect bo all the transactions governed under a single Master
Agreement with a counterparty. For fnandal repoeting purpases the
Statements of Assets and Liabaities generally present dervative assets and
Ieabibnes on 3 gross bases, whech reflects the Rull feis and exposures pror o
netling

Master Agreements can alop help limet counterparty sk by spedfing
collateral posting amangements a1 pre-armanged egomre levels. Uncler magst
Master Agreements, aollateral is routinely tansfemed if the toral net exposure
1 Certaen fransactions (net of exising collaters slreadyin place} govemed
under the relevant Master Agreement with a counferparty in a given accoun !
exceeds 3 spedfied threshald, which typically ranges friom zerd o $250,000
depending on the coonterparty and the type of Master Agreement Linited
States Tredsury Bills and U5 dallar cash are generally the preferned fomms of

collaterd, dthough other seqenties may be wied depending on the tems
cutfined in the applicabie Master Agreement. Secuifies and cash pledged as
collateral are reflected as assets on the Statements of Assets and Uiabilites as
either 3 component of Immtsments at value (Seogilies) of Depodits with
counterparty. Cath collateras redenved 15 not typscally held in a seqréganed
acoount and a8 such is refhected a5 a lishiling on the Statements of Atsets and
Ligkfities &5 Deposits from countemparty. The market value of any sequrities
receneed a5 collateral is nof reflected a5 a component of NAY, The Fund's
ouerd| exposure 10 CoUNTeparty risk can change subsianBally witkin 3 shom
peeiod, 5 115 affected by each transaction subject o the relevant Master
Agreement

Master Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Repurchase Agreements
(Aidrdually and oolectvely ~Master Repd Agreements™) govem répundhiie,
riefse repunchase, and sabe-buyback ransactions beteesn the Funds and
select counterparties. Master Repo Agreements maintain prowsions for,
among other things, initia$on, fncome payments, evends of defaule, and
rnaingenance of colfateral. The market value of ransactions under the Masler
Pty Ayreement, oollaters pledged of received, and the pet exposure by
countepany a5 of penod end are dedosed in the Notes 1o Schedule of
Ivestments,

Masher Seunities Forward Transaction Agresments (" Master Forwand
Agreements™) govern cerfain fonward setiling ransacions, auch as TEA
securiBes, delaye d-delivery oo sale-tuybadk transaction: by and

between the Funds and sebect counterparties. The Master Forward
Agreements mantan provizicns for, among other things, initiation and
confimason, [uareenit and warmsder, evenits of defaull, ierminaton, and
roaintemance of collateral. The market value of forwand Seming ransactions,
collateral pledged of received, and thie nel expisuge by counteparty a5 of
pericd end are disdoted in the Nobes o Sdhidube of IS iments

Customer ACoount Agreements and related addenda Qe Cleaned
desivatives ransactions sipch &5 futures, opticns on futures, and deared OTC
derivagves. Such rarmsactions requine podting of et margin as debermined
by each redevant dearing agency which is segregated in an account at a
futwres commission merchant (FCM™) registered with the Commiodity
Futres Trading Cornmession {"CFTCT). In the United $1ates, counterparty ik
ritapy bt rechaced A% creditors of an FOM cannot hunee a dim 10 Fund assets in
the seqreganed aocount. Portatality of expodure in the event of an FCM
default scenanio further reduces sk 16 the Funds. Vanation margn, of
changas in market value, are generally enchanged dally, but may nof be
retled Detween futures and desred OTC derivatives unkess the partes have
agreed 0 3 SEAraNe amangement in respedt of fund mangrimg The madne
walpe or aoosmidated unrealized sppredation (depredation), initial mangen
posted, and any unsettled vanation margn: a5 of period end are disdosed in
the Kotes bo Schedule of nvestments.

ntermeaticnal Swaps and Derrvatives Assodiation, Inc. Master Agresments and
Crecit Suspapct Annesioes (T 1500 Mailer Agreemenis”™) govern bilaneral OTC
derivatie ransactions entered inbo by the Fundswith seled counterpantes
P00 Baster Agreements maintain provsions for general obligations,
representations, agreements, collstersl posting and events of default ce
terrnination. Events of terminasion indude conditions that rrury erilitle
COUnBETpanies 1o elect o termming e eaily and cause seatement of Al
cutstanding transactions under the applicable B0 Master Agresment. Any
eledion 1o erminate ealy could be matenal to the Snandd statements The
b Master Agresment may contain addtiona prosdsions that add
counferpanty protection beyond ooverage of exising daly exposure if the
counterparty ha 3 deding in redit quality below a predefined level or as
required by requlation. Similady, if required by requlasion, a Fund may be
required to post addifional coflateral beyond coverage of daily exposure
Thete pmmountd, sy, may (of if requined by L, wall) e sgregated wath a

Bl Fage | Db 0, 06T b
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Notes to Financial Statements co

9. FEES AMD EXPENSES

dlowing fees payable at the Sllowing annual rates (stated as a percentage of the average daily net asete of each Fund, or Clazs, if

Fees

Fund Manag 1t Acksesory Adminisirative Agency Distrabution
PIMCO Bermuda Emengirg Markets Bond Fund 1l

O TR - 0 35%

& |mat P Hedged as 0 35% i
PIMCO Bermuwda Glabal Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond Fund @8 0 25% 00"
PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A

1 75% - - [ 06% %

76 - - 6% E%

0 eL% U %

s THFT)
PIMCO Bermuwda Morigage Dppertunities Fund

PIMECD Bermuda L5, High Yield Fund B (V] - 15 % 020%™ - -
PIMCO Care Inceme Corparate Bond Fund 202010

* LSO [ 40% = - 0% D%

ipeyal Fagart | Dowber 1, 2103
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Notes to Financial Statements

Fees

Fund Manag Achiisory Adminisirative Agency Disir butien
PIMCO Shart-Term Martgage Incame

= EUR 45%"0 - - 06% na0%™

s PY, Hedged) = = = - =

LI 045%™ - - 0E% 040%™

*  UsD 045%™ - - NES 040%™
PIMCD Workd High Income 0% - - 0 w0 1

* Ui oy oy T Y O TR o e ey e e e e e 0 e Pl iy e o o colarlne by i aprdieq £ J0% o g e thy et 0 mlpe o e P ot mmary, 1 13 o nngm o b s 257 mlom o R
Tel's oy arary o O % e e g o F P e ety e ATV i e oy 0 ach SRR 8 g e 1Y b st nE e e el 0 o v i o ot B

# AEE T Sermanly Skl Ay Frapam Bt Fod (888 b 5 am indracat e o . v, P o el S0 P Pl (8 % e s a8 vt 550 el 5 ' ot s § L5 e v il 3w e
A 257 alon e o v e 7 e o e 0t sl Ty 8 e 400 e

® e (o 7 i £ F B e o L v e o T e vl it e i el VK i v 0 i e B0 00 o Dy ety el £ 5% poe e ey 10 o O ooy o i 2 0 O OF

* Ty oy oy s B o b S v B e e e e e g 0% per v il S A0 00 1 ey et 8 V9 o e g el A0 SN o ey v, a0 P e e sy
Rty 8 e BORG TTR

® e i 1 oy e e oy g 8 e (B 0 T W SV I A (T g T TR BTRT ey B e T 1 e Al 1 B i T b TSR S 0 BECRRT 80  ROER FOPETRT I e e F
£

® Ty Clly or b 0 ¢ it et g 1A v e i S8t vl e Ll i ol B poe e s i St B el f Uls it G5 o dtvee g o 550 il ¥ . a9 g it g 0 ot ST
i e e 1 500% po e e e e 25000 o o (i i, a5 35 e v g oy ot ki ey it ey T il P T ot 1 0I5 0o (3001 Wl T P T 0 T e

® Ty Cily it e 1 it v’

® T oy oy s 0 0 o Sy oyl o v gl vty o e iy v e e sy o vty oy Ul e 8 CFR, B e Baseng ol gnd ey e vt e sy Ty, e oep oy o e Fer e sl oy enienT £
B chagad by P it (o vt Maie T R o it Bt S Bt 1 e SRS ) VTR ST

® ARL T By U/ § Mph Kl ot 7 0 a1 b v 20 i e e worry s’ i i s vl pvde Rl o delipan (1 00 pew v e e g e S enlip v Pl v a8 1% e e gl o e vl 250 omiin
i Moy ooy o il 7% o v appiler o o vl il v e vy e ey o 3 0 milim

P Ol T o ey U R iy sl 50 TIPS e S0 By ) ool Byl Lo (e et b Feancng (oo Mo e & i e T s et by o e v et e e ey
st bk 5% v v et ol i O % ol o ey o i e ey e o e ) TR, it o S e 02T o e et ey o b il ey e e [0 N, o R e e F 0 e T
¥ i diad pody vty @ 3 e J 430N o b el e AT e e v o1 e ey 0P 8 3 N e ot b o e PR e v ey e el e b (R o o v ol B el T Bt gt
RPN SRR

N Ly o T 0 o SR o (Y e R A et iy Sl Pl ity e by she Lo apoan (oot sal San W e e (peratsny Kcpwory mey St oVl Bl 7 e B ey ot Sty opmer mpmat b e ek ray
w o 5% e e o aal e 50 'l oo oy o e sl poly vy o Berwmen P | 80, e e e el e 8T o ey ey ety e s iy e et | 5% 0 400N o b e il ' 6% Ui o e
s s pusiy e 0 3 0O, e rie S sl i 2 iy e ey o iy e ey vt & 5% o e vl i ol B T Ve v vy ke pudey vl e (e i x ovalotly e g el e ppilos
I | e

" ol b B e B R i e i et Vs B ey ) et By et Bl it [k cocwind iy Ll 5 Enpoctnd i o i L d i At s oy it e st F S il iy vty b ) 5%
s shy ol b TV of (e oo ity o 8 sl gy st o e T AT st i e ] o F 112P0 o Uil a0 s iy ot 3 it | P90 % it i e il e 2P (i it o8 3 iy
i bamamn 2 Pl 435% chaw v et wl e O 7% o e o v o she e sy s 0 3 0 it vl e o wal e £ 5 iy v amey. e gy o e ot 3 0 v ncaelanly e b e el £ T O il R B
dwerd pgipy

D (e T 19 3 T Vo R i I 0 T WO A (TR iy 10 ) it By i ek e (e vsetiy £l ogerrod 8 T i T L ey sy S et ot F o sl gy o e )
e the Yol by (1 % of (v ot ey 2 s pdey ity 0 detae 5T 600 o sy o il e O 0P il ety oty v sy ot o b 1 S BHY, i i S il b 0% o Ly 2o oty of Shor e pesley
my i b ] ST BN, pe il der wall e 09K, o S et s of vl avaed ey o'y 0.3 5% o gt o i o all b 0 A (D vt ety ¥l ponly it ey e (i i o sty i ik e il iy o gt o' B
# &y p oy

Ml i i e g S b B S T T AR (i el v | it By 0 Fideial Rt it s 58 S sl 0 Lo i o Vol g R b v ey S e 0 9%, et o e onl B T 0% 1
Ll o e b v ol v o e e [ % v vt o el i o 1 f (T el vl iy o i T30 6% che it e il e F 0 e s e F o i sy e Bt ! S
J iy i riw S uel o £ 0% oF Ul ver ey o v g pedey v @ 2% o e v sy Yow el B 0 5% 0w wer sy b pesdeny e o i ST vy vl i Mmape il N 30 manm 1 S o ey Jp e pam

Y Clay o wpheT £  iSabaion Ny S i himwd e Pl et i (i Ty vty dbiid! By 2 Focleeal Faelh e Rty 0 2 e Sihaf 1 i aviarg v oy Vb propwingi it ¥ Sk i iy it e ) G, et il s 8 19 e
ot vy o i v iy R 8 0 T 0T, i o o il e 0 TS o Tk vy 1 i ey G b Bt | 3% 0 2509 v o e el 0 Tl v ey o DR i ey T o Renisee ) P ) 49T e e Ty
ol 0 300 0 e A i gl W @ 15 o e el ol B el 0% 0 Dl 0 e YN ey o B Tl Ul 0 B el ST R e T VB TR I 9 S

w N&:‘?ﬂl\hrﬂrmx i apvry dow S vaiy A o vy et il o ol Ve  elpan ) 1% e i sl pa Sy ot S0 i 1 20 ot ety el R e e o e ol e Pt ot ot i e
1

& R el Mg et o ikt T e o AT i et 0 S8 S e o' S i Sy 0 50K o it sl 6 e P R il o0 she S 0 ity e () 35 o ot e i o 5 S BV o i
A et

The mansgement, advisory and sdminsirative e, if applicable, are paid monthly in arears o PIRCO for providing or aranging for the provision of adwsory,
adminitrative and third-party services induding audit, artodal, rustes, porthilio tcounting, roptne legal, ransier sgent and printing senices. The agency and
distribuson fees, if applicable, are pald monthly in amears 1o remburse finandal intermed aries that provide senvices and dismibution relating oo e units of fe
appdicable Fund {or Class thereof, a5 applicable). In exchange for sudh fees, PIRACO will bear the cost of various sendoe provdders requised by the Trust snd spplicable

Fund, PIMCO, and not Unigholdiers, would benefit from any price dedease in the cost of sudh Shind-party sendces, induding decreases resulting from an ingease in net
assels. In addition, with respect 1o Funds thal are sublect to an adminisirative fee, PINCO generally makes a profit on such a fee

B Fogae | Dowber 1, 2062 Fod
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Notes to Financial Statements

Asnofed in the table abowe, certain Funds and Classes of Funds are not sub
Led, PRCO' affiliate in Japan, is paid 4 fee from the lapane
such fee is ten dlocated o FIMCO to compensate it for it

o management, advisory, administrative, ag gerecy of st :l.lu:r fees PINCO Japan
Imvestment Tnsts or ather imvestment vehicles that inwest in sudh Funds or Classes and 2 portion of

vices, &5 applicable

o, & appicable) many bear other &penies rdated o the U are ol converied By the manacernent, adviscry, admirisirag

nicluding bt not lirrated ba: [ Liies and gomememental | ) bk age s and comimivs e pof Tl [P anssaction expeiies

apense; () extracedinary expenses :r--‘-;rh‘,r*.ﬂ:s of litigaton and indem expenses: and (V) 2
onal expenses asod #tedwith the geation of the Trust, except for PINCO Sho

Thie Fusnds {of Classes i
Adgency of ditnbution fe

0 has paid the rm;.'u Z3
irational expenses avsndated with the creation of each Fund

FIMCD hars pand the o

Maorg ae Ing

PMCD Barmmuda Income Fund A (the M (FY Advisony) and M (LD Advisony) Classes), PIMICO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10, PIMCO Shoet-Term

Mortgage income (the EUR, IPY, and LD Classes) and FIMCO Wiordd High income pay on-going agpenses related to the public offering of their unitsin fapan

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIORS

The: Irreestment Achiser b5 3 related party to the Funds and is a majonity-owmeed subsidiary of Alanz ssset Management AG Fees paid to the related party if any, are
dischosed in Mote 9, and aooneed related party fee amounts, if any, e dsdosed on the “.*._.—:'r ity of Assets and Liabiliges

Alianz Asset Management A3, 3 related party of the Trst, ewned 0.008% of the net assets of PIMCO Bamuda Dynamec Muli-Asset Strategy Fund, 0 013% of the
net assets of FIMCO Barmuda Morigage Opportunities Fund and O 675% of the net assets of PIMCO Shont-Tenm Morigage income a5 of Oclober 31, 2022

ger ipictied Cond
bey & fured Broem o

procedunes sdopted by o
fund that i of oould be

comsidered an afiliate
21, 2022, the Funds) below engaged in purchases and

sales of sequnities among affikated funds (amounts in thousands)

Fund Purchmm e

FIMDD) Besmady Bark Loan Fund (W0 I- T 3 B as
FIMDD Baemaila Erriperg Mariism Bosd Ford (W 20 130
FIM ) Basmuyds Emaprgeng Maries: Bond Fynd 11 208 4 11
FIMDD ol Apgregam Ex-Japan Bond Fund () 97 b 2
FIMID) Besmasdls Incorme Fund W) 121 e 15506
FIMDD B e pan fecpme Fursd 4410 5517
FIMED E-.'-l."qL'E Hi 10838 12380
i ru‘i‘ 16 g JE72

nd 22010 - 1,48

FIMOD E= r!,- 1 Bored 'r-c ame Fend IMI 1,754 24 800

11. GUARANTEES ARD IRDEMRIFICATIONS

Undier thie Trust's ceganizational documents, certain parties jrdu 'ng the TIJ" b

performance of thelr duties 1o the funds. Additonally, in the ny : ess, e Funds enter inio conraos
Thix Fungs” mnad rmm exposune under these aman QEMENI £ Nkrsam 3 i iy fulure daimes chat may De made &0
accuned However, the Fands have not had poce claime or [osses pursuant 1o these coniracts

and FIMCIO) are indemnified aganst cenain liabilities that may ariss oul of
avanety of indemnification dauses

il the Eunds that have nol yet

12. UHITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

1t of the pet
LA i)

Thie Trust may isaue ug
u;wlx G EE I' cua

2 S04, 000, 000,000 um Ix TI' Fands rmay have o Sgnlficant conoenmation o
¢ Funid .ur'l concentraion of Unitholders' 1s could have 3 ma

:- "_l ||'|?| eyl A o _‘:"!-l’ an ad i‘lN 3' r||'-'-.r" a_.‘_.'. { 'I"-‘r.-

Changes in units of benefidal interest were as follows funits and amounts in thousands®)

s Ended
Oetobar 31, 2022 Getober 11, 3022 Octobar 31, 2022 Detobar 31, 222
[Ter Amsint unns Amount Urits Amount Upits Amoune

Foraipn For i vl amn § BB L = L Hia N L1 £ L

Byl Fgaet | Dowbar TL 2002 xa
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Year Ended itar Endid Year Ended Taar Brded
Dctobar 7, DO Doctobar 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2022 Oetobar 11, W32
Wt Ameuint Lngs Amount wrety Amount Uit Amowurt
F LU m T} [ m 5 il NA [Ty
F (S0 Wi KA 5 i 1] Wi Me 11 M
| LN 1 ] L] Al LI L2 Na R
A 5L WA L] i 2. Hin L] L} [
¥ ohAL) Wik R [ Wi 13 m [T KA
Y G450 Wik [ WA Wi Mtk WA ] 1
Y Wi RIE n | Hid M Nia [0S
Y L W R [ & ] i1 NA L]
Y B WA Lo N& H& & 38 N& R
Y (TR Wik L&) N& Ha 17 128 N ]
[ W [ 1] 48 T e [T} m
Wi W Na L] NiA Na Nz L
LU (LY e & He 37 LT LS
Wi R IH 5,000 N Na Na [T
L] A N& H& 13 643 N& L
K 1] N & 10 1087 N L1
K [T WA W& N e i) 1108
Y LT W KB £ AL Hi MNE N R
¥ LY Wi R [ & a o3 NA, R
Y B Wik [T [T W& i 1045 NA [
W HL Wi K L] H& | 1845 N&E [
Y RIS We R a7 7.0 Nia L] Mz [
Lot of unin reckeemad A2324) 160, 7848 N Wi N N N [
FL Wt R Na 1 (1133 (3| NA K
Wik L LY 126560 119,857 M N N L
W L0 ({1 1B} Ny M N K
L] L] i B, Hik e [T fin
L R N'& W Lk} (LS NiR L
Wi KA N & {383 [30; ey N ]
WA KB Me W& Hid e [t h} a5
Wi 2] 81 .10 N e NR L
W 2] KA & 61 12583 Na [
W s e W L] [ 5140 M R
Y (TRT) Wix [T N W n 14,01 Na e
Y fUSO Wik il [0 29,5501 W e N A
Nt ecrem | rmeding from
Furd unilt Temaotos M4 & (13588 ek | & el ra) (1,560 £ Bosm [{LFy] H 34
Yaar Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
October 3, 2022 October 1, 2022 October 3, 2022 Dchober 11, 2022
Unis Amaunt Units Amount Urits Amount Units Amount
Pecsips for it oid Wik ] 0] N ' Ha& X ] o Nt ' L
i LEPY Win e NE W& " MR i 1850
el Fagary | Tiowber 1, 06T a
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Yiear Ended

War Ended Wear Erded
Dctober 1 . 222 Dichobar 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2022 Detobar 11, 222
Ut Amsiant Unis Ameunt Urits Amount Units Amowurs
) [T [ M Wi m ] ]
W i1 15 9,30 Wi e -1 [
1 .0} N Wi N L3 N L
Wt WA N h& M N (T3 e
! 18 MR W& Nk NE NE [
W KK L] W ] (15 54m L& [
We R L] W& HiA L] 1 1] 16126
Wi 1LY Na & Hid M ] i)
WA iR 2im 17,0 M N NR I
Y (e (i} 1Fyi ] N& H& Hin WA Wia [
Nt idwcrmanl reding from
Furd wnil rewaiions 0i & [E18 ] [ {7,181} Wn & aknm &= 3 (CEELL]
‘Waar Erded Yaar Bnded Yoar Ended Waar [rded
Dctobar 1, 20 Detebar 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2022 Oetobar 11, 2022
e Amsunt unes Amount urits L Linits Amount
Farsipin for unifs i 1.1 ¥ 1THER 552 & Wl 157 & M5S0 137.M5 ¥ LEsgla7
Coxt of unin redesmad 11551 1145, 5880 (<L ] 45,451 {2072 ETATE (25030 (JELEETD
Rt iroremss [daorsasl
msuting freme Frand urit
rarmacsan B & 010 B @ W 538 & s 320 & (1762580
Year Ended aor Ended Yaas Ended Yoar Erced
Qexobar 3, o Oetober 1, 2027 Octobar J1, 2002 Detsbar 31, 222
Urets Amsunt units Amount Urits Aumount Units Amount
Frsips for units osld
o UED W ] R (5] g W& R ] B 50408 NA [ Y
LY 2518 16758 0] i WA L] M [
T 72401 128 [ Ha M MR A R
st LEFY, Hadgn ik Hith s fith ik n o 4
| L ] 154 A W& ik A 0 £
145 171 N K MM N 1 ]
1 35, T8 N'& A Hid '8 MR Rt
aps? B8 s Ha WM s N&, [}
15,151 B, 148 W& s N N8 NR L]
1 [ E ] N L Hi N MR L
WA 1) m 1 N Y NA e
1334 s NA W& N [T NR [
£3 5 BE6 N& Ha Hik L N, [
7000 H.0egh N'& & N N N, W
3 LIFY i I35 N'& W HiK ME MR W

el Fagary || Diowber 1, 20GT m
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Tuar Ended itar Endid Year Ended Taar Erded
Dctobar 7, Dy Ductobar 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2022 Oetobar 11, 32
Wret Amsuint Lngs Amount Lrety Amourg Units Amowurt
U i TR ] N m ik Ty NA [T}
il 52 g™ Na Ha Wi Me 1.1 M
251 1018 L3 W Hi L2 Na R
i = N& & Hin L] LT} [
250 T [ W N he [T N
LEE] 5,06 Na L) LI NA A L]
Y BE 15357 Na W M M 1.1 [0S
Yl y W R 12 51 HiA M NA |}
lerusd s redmomc bt of
darhutions L 2] L3 L] LI Lo Na o]
FLIPY 5 E6D N'& & Wi NA LT} [
[T o wiE [T} TR || [T [T [T
| L) 11 & A W NiA 3] Nz W
) [} 5 56 Na Ha M M 11 LS
13 & 3% L1 W& N [T NR N4
Al 2, Gt N& H& HiA L] N& R
K L1} m 10 W N Nia L
Wik Lo N'& Wi LI [T N [
2,15 (148, 254) A & N L5 N W
01 960 27 548 N& W Hi N& L1 L
W R N'a e M M m (1]
] [T W Ha M W k] T
o)) 3350 N'E Ha LI L L] [S.688)
£l 1] N'& N N N N L]
o 1.285% [T W& M N NA [0
340 [E T N LE N N NR 1]
(5378} 1341, 320 W& A LTS & M= s
R535) (233 BEYy s Wi Wi s N, [
Wi L 2H] L] B.15) N N'R NE L]
4ATH) 2548 N Ha LI N L1 L
) ] M K& Mt /18 [T [0
3 WP B4si (R L) W& Nk NA N& A
T Y] [N 13357 & Hik Wik L N, L
U 50 s [ 35~ N'& & N N NA ]
WSD aan [0, BECR N& LB Hi MR NE L
I k] N8 H& LI N'a N L]
AT 260 [ W ik [T [T [T
65N W20 Nia W& " U N LY
B{H) 1,948 N'A (1] LT M8 N, ]
Wik LAY man 18612 LT N B A
(=1} (k1] N8 lis N Lo Na 1]
Fursaction 52A & 1,080,073 .2 ¢ e n £ (503 {m 4 L]

ipnoal Fagart | Dowher 00, 20T
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‘Waar Ended Yaar Ended “Yaar Ended Yaar Erved
Dctobar 3 , 20 October 31, 2022 Ocbolear 3, 2022 Ociobar 31, W22
Urats Amaunt Linits M mpant Units oyt Units AMGUTR
Pecaigs for it i 280 & 84N v < I | 8455 W & NA 1 f 175
letind i oo Wl of
darhuins ik 1) Na hia N L) 138 70896
(Cexn o unin iduemad [N ES] 12254 [ra ] 15,5401 Nk N [1ke] 22555
150 Wik ) e ] {1,190 70840 NE Nk
Nat Mecren| rmeding from
Furd unit Temactions Wi & ana @ & o LRE ST [ e
aar Ervded Year Ended Tear Ended Yaar Ended
Octobar 3, Doz October 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2052 October 31, 22
(18 Am=ant Linits Amount Units Aomount Units Amowri
T £ ] (¢ SO 1 N 2 1} [T TR R4
Wik [ [ W 0 1] NE& A
Wik R N Hi 18 ] NE [
Wik Kk Na W i ] NA N
Wi KA N& LE & 55 N A
Wik ) N W& MK N B -]
lik i N W ik N B Bl
W L1 Mie W& i yeoxl N LY
Wik Wk NA N | nn N, ]
Wik L ALY N Ha ] 3 NE R
Wik [T} N i i 186 R L]
Wi [T+ [ Wi 14 1044 N Ptk
Wa LY fle lid LY Mla 3 s
n A B N Wi Mk N N L]
Wik Wk NA W 5 280 N ]
Wi A [T Y 15 =8 NA [
Wik 11 N W& ] 11 NA 1]
Wik [0 N s ] Fio ] N Ntk
Wa K Mla lid N M2 ? 1z
Ui U] N lidk N NE 2 1
Wik KAk N Ha 3 164 1.1 [
K R N K& i ol NA hed
Wik K& N& L] i 133 N L
Wik Rk N Hi 1 e NE R
Wik K N& til i Far) N N
J 0 Wik LEL] NA LE HiA NE i 27
(Cont of unit redesmad (7 (12083 65830 (10, ik NE Ni L]
| AL Wik [0 N N 164 L] Na N
| [BAL} Kin 1] [} n& ] .58 N L
[ lik [ Ne lid 14 ns Ni Nk
J [CNH L1 KB MR W Lo ] .33 Nia R
J U] Wik R .} e Mk N na (1]
J GE# Wik [T [T W& (T [T nj 38
el Fagary | Diowber 1, 306T a
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Yeir Ended Yeur Ended Vs Encid Year Ended
Dctobar 7, Dy Ductobar 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2022 Oetobar 11, 22
Wret Ameunt Lngs Amount Wrety Amoung Units Amowurt
m T} N m iE] (] NA [T}
s NA N H& k] (e [T [T
L] 2] L3 L] (1A [ 2] Na R
WA A N& & P 1.5 LT} [
Kk Kin N W& (148 .75 NR N
L= L] 2] Na L] Nk NA na B
Wt Maenas) rading fos
Furd unih T on [ - 6,758 (5,58 § (6 {34 ¢ [HHA ] H 117 ]
Year Ended Fear Ended Year Ended Year Ered
Octobar M, 2022 Dotober ™, 2022 Dctobar M, 2022 Octobar 1, 2022
LRy A Mt Unis AUt Urits LTS 3 Upits AmaLT
Wik & L& 1 % W ! § 1.0 B vx]
| Y Hadged 1] % [T Wi M A [T 1
I3 ] 5186 N W K4 N [T '
Lot of unin mdassad 4 Kb [{F] i) (53 0,547 (53 3Mn
| (0¥, Hedged il e NE W& HiA e MR L
IP¥ (k]:1} 11,283 M & N Mn Nix [
I i ] N s Ntk A ha etk
Wt inrmen ey
retidting o Fare urin
i W2 1M TR (T8 58 & [maew (VI - &)
Yaar Ended Tear Ended Year Ended Year Ended
October 7, 2022 October ], 2022 October 1, 2022 October 31, 2022
Lrits Amaunt LUnits Amount Units Amount Units AMouE
Fwcis kor wis sdd ® F B [T & WA ¢ N 1 T
) [F30 ) Kiy 530 152 M N N [
Y AU Wi [ Na L ] L] Nz MR
¥ i ek [T} N Y ? n LT [
Wik 2] 1] 11 L N N ]
WA [ ] ] 1 LI L] N [
(1) R N & 1 1 NA K
| W e L) hi# Fil ] ] NA L]
lmmd et of
datrhuion e KA Na L] NiA N Nz [
) 0 Wik [T 100 it i N [T [y
Y U Wi A Ne L] L1} 1588 N [
¥ (R m [T NA my B R N [
Y LPY () R i 240 M N N K
¥ P, Hedgad W L] 1] 235 Nia & Na [
¥ Ly Wik [T N W& 1 H LT R
YR Wik [T N W& o 187 NA L
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Notes to Financial Statements oo

Wiar Erded Yiear Ended Yiear Ended Year Drded
Detobar 1, D02 Oietebar 11, 2002 Oictobar 31, 2022 Octobar 11, 2022
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i o e e g
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO World High Income

.= i, CONIac s, unils o

INESTHE
CHORT-TH

JPMsrgan Chaze Bamk NLA

T 5B den 110172022 3 |_# !
Tetal Shart. Term Instruments i
Cast #H)
Tatal Investments in Securities 1
Cust §1)

(1]

0041

OTHER IMVESTMENT COMPANIES 100.2%

IPIMCO Bermuda Emeging Markets Band Fosd W

Cast A5 558) T A5 257
Tatal Irventments is Alfiliats 45,257
Casi 545 558)

Tatal imirstments 1005 % A6Z6B
Cast 345,958}

Diher Asswes amd Llabdlities, ne (0, 2%) l:111_]
et Bseis 100.0% F BT

ROTES 10 SCHEDLLE OF INVESTMENTS

- A zers balanc e may reflect 3ctusl Sssuntl munding te lees tham one thousand,

FRIRUALUE MEASUREMENTS

Tha: foliowrg & - eummay of 1he By vl anone sccordng 10 e rnpus wesd 98 of Ooiober 3. 3037 invwabng 1he Fund's e and bl me

Falr Value at

t.ltrpglnuSuh:.mﬂn' Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Leweld 10312032
Imwri i@ oA B i Seciditiel, ot Value

o Emm e mumens § ) # i & i e
Irwwiimens in AHEates, o1 Value

Drteet B i) Lot punie LX) 2 ] 45 0T
Taial Irvesimans & i5mY & 1 & 8 & 45258
e weae im0 tagnadicil trarsfers i or ot of Lewel 3 duneg e e e Ocicbar 30, 20022

Sen ot viemp aa plag mitn degl B | Domaber 31, 7002 ]
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edule of Investments PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M)

INESTHEN
ANODOLA 1%

Angelan 0 i tlanal Band
B 150 dee DROR0TE ] o 5
9175% des 11262049 m 17
Tatal Angala L1
Cast §530)

ARGENTINA 1.1%

Mrganting Gendameatinternitional Bead

B500% den 67082030 H ]
LR00% doe 07092023 88 £}
1500 doe D05 iur B
1 500% doe DP00HE Fi 1 [h
3 500% due 0707041 =T 03
Pravincla de Bwenas Alres

0 des 00172037 100 an
Pravincia e Entee Rles Afgentina

& T dee DEVDESNI2G La) 135 B
Pravincia de la Rleja

4 5% dee 2UAAT 38 143
Tital Argantin S0E
Lt $1.008)

ARMENIA 0.3%

Armenia Gevernmeat Interna tisnal Bind

T950% dee DA0E09 A0 1E
Tanal Armenis 146
Eest $157)

GOCAR Turkey Enerjl A5

wla Sinas Funding 1 DAC

1.T30% dee 20N 1075 00 4
Seuthemn O s Cedvides CISC
BETH dee (AT40 FiLl 197

[Republic ot Azevbafan Interna tienal Bend

A T50% doe EANE024 Fil 1] 188
Tadal Azerbaijan LLE
Cost 3510}

Bahim it Dewaenment batesu tienal Band

B0 dee 11017000 ] LLH
Total Batamas 182
Cast $300)

Behruin Devarmsant baioms tensl Band

A T50% dee NS00 m iTs
Tatal Bahrain 178
Cont $200)

B Ll CU L

FralCa Al
A NALLE
[ o]

| MO & NOTES 035
Star Energy Gesthermal Darajan il
AESIM due 10147008 1 03 148
Tetal Bermusa 144
Esxn £2000

BRAZIL 0.8

Dfedrechi Ol & Gas Flnance Ld. (i
0000 dum: 1 G020 a ]
E00 due 100172007 07

Beazil Qavarnm ent [medaass sl Band
4 T50% due D8R 47058 kil Full}

Vale 54

1E41% due 03505171 &9 BRL 2810 183
Total Brazil 185
Eost $5585)

CAMERDON 0.1%

Rageblic of Comerenn lamemisiansl Band

8 S50P% e (TRTVNG2 EUR 10 5l
Tetal Camernan (23
TR L]

CATMAN ISLANDS BA%

Bisceanion Severelgn Cortifioate Lid.

0 O00P% e DEOS2004 - Foll 17
Giacd Firsi inwesiment G

5000 due 134302007 30 a5
3T due 1BA3T N 20 167
Interaceanica IV Finance Ld

LD o 1 EIOS20T5 10 Fia] Fir.]
Interaceanica W Finance Led

000 due DSR 52000 f ] 158
Hatis Groug Haldings Led

1. 2500% don BLOBT040 0 0 L&)
Melkc o Resarts Finance L1d

5 T e DAOGCE 2 127
Db rweht Drilling Marks AR Lid.

13500 dus 12817626 k& 1015 L1011

Pitw Enhareed Puss Theaugh Finance Lid.

OB o DSERHTE 0 158 156
Plrmwtila Finance Lid

B X% due DEATRE0N 166 157
5.4 Olebal Sukut Led

1 BI7% dus DEA 1006 o] 175
T E dom 0S4 7600 il 164
Swazen Droug Lid

4 450% doe 070 37005 ool ]
Senac China Heldings Led (a)

73500 due [0 472048 il K]
TS00M due (2012004 Foll ]
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FRACIFA
AT WL
o] T
Thingibieng Oriwg Hildings Lid,
1000% du 070 IHG £ e 11
_ i 2ETd
HSA Subuek Lid.
5 2EE% de 10TSH 03 Fiir)
Tetal Coyman kslands 2,878
Cen1 §3,663]

i X

Bancs Santander Chile

270 A 070 VS @ 150 141

Carp. Macienal del Calire de Chile

LHTS Ao 110U m 164

Embacelladers Anding 5.8

3508 o 0707 LFES0 150 1

Empresa e bos Ferracarriles del Estade

105 due 08N AT i 111

AHHM due 08747057 m s}

Empresa e Tramsgorte de Pasajeres Betra 54,

4 DO e (P10 m 148

Emprena Masianad dal Perrelon

4500 duw (07 7T m 158

1]

Chils Dewernmand ntematisnal Band

440 dow DR0G2047 m 154

Tatal Chibe 1,108

Lot §1,405)

CORPOAATE BONDS & MOTES 0.4%

Ecaprirel 5.

1.375% 4 02N AGT4I P 154

SOVERBCIH I55UES 2.8% . 1

Calambils Quwvarnmant [mismatans] Band

£ D0 dhos TR0 403 384

L1154 due 057 30051 m 106

4 BR300 o ikl

5 GTEN due 020N 500 1

T 375 s (RN BT 309 53
132

Tatal Calambia 1,481

[t 52,0300

Canta Rica Gawermnment Internatiensl Band

SGE due (G204 a0 Fird

Tutal Caxta Rica 282

Cst 5340)

OOMIHEC A Bl. 1.3%

Dominkcan Begublic Central Bank Mafes

12 GO0 e 1OTIRT025 (1.0 S n
degl Bupen | Sovber J1 G2 )
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edule of Investments

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) iCane)

PRk A FraliCiF AL L e
BTN WALLE AT WALLE EMLNT WAL
frect] frert L= na) f il )
Desinican Repeblic batwirusinal Band Total Gatemals &
5 300% che D12172041 ] 00 138 Eost $E5E)
5500% dee (2720 700 175 Leviathan Besd Ltd.
5 550% de 015077 B T ﬁ 1754 e DBDOTS t  MaE 151
80004 do 12027203 m [ = |
B4 IE5H 0 145
L o S Wearang Finance 2017 Cr. Lo ferael Gavernment Band
- : i LS00 doe 1 RIBGOHT : 0 102 11500 s DRBLTE i 1208 ki)
% ; L E
1] Deminiear Rapub e 1,491 Hasres Fingnce 2019 Cs. Ltd. L o
Eost #1758 L105% ds 120073 =0 W et ——
258
SUES 1.8 N 1GSUES 0.3% & INORT COAST 1 3%
Ecusder B £ Interna tisnal Band “'"""“"“*l' 3
OO e OB O g 200K dun NUOAINRE ) 20 18] beary Coust Gevarnment Inteenatianal Bend
1 500% des D7317040 0 B8 TetalbHang Keng Agy, | ciarm s TN EFL 2
: : — 57NA A 12U TR k=
2500% dee 0PN T 8 Cae$5T) h " :
5 5008 e 0710130 L po BB due DTG FIR 103 &
Total Ecusder e AT T Tecal ey Coan ]
East 31,071} BOVEREMIN i5SUES 1.9% Ce1 670T)
Hewag sty Gevernment Interaatisnal Band
1625% due DATHZEDZ EUR # i RN A
1.7 due DEESTETS M 122 SIVEREGH ISSUES 0.8
4 F50R% due (SR RD | 3 0 Jamaizs Cavermmant Interoo tiseal Baed
[Egyp1 Duvwrmmeng Ivprnations| Band 2 ! : _
A T50% con DUECILTE B 1 E00% due DS /204 WO A7 THT b DTS £ W
5855 de DLTE0ND Tetal Hengary |22 Total Jamakea 214
B3T9% des D21 1703 EeandIn st 6200)
T 300% cee RGO #
78294t 850800 CISET R T
T4 e (172045 [ 0% & NOTES 11% CORPIAATE BONDS & NOTES 0.7% |
B300% de ﬁ‘%; Afsnd Transmiasien sup-tlnlnl.lﬂ Mitsublshi llJFIrnr:lltIIrul Ing.
BTSN 4 3500% dn (571036 17 1 RDET due 080 20005 30 4
T
o, :‘-""H Exgertimpart Bark ol lndip Tatal lapas — o8
ot §1,965) 3 350m due DEN5AED 0 18 st 300
Muthast Finance Ld
L400P% dus D273 0 [ETIRLESEY. CIULBEL IELANDE 0 2%
[} Slhﬂﬂn Mmllﬂlhbﬂ\lﬂlﬂl Band Tetal India = T o
T12% den 01 RIS ] W EetisT :';;,"';TT]T',};'W';;M e -
752 der (0172034 100 i} s . =
3509% e OS2 150 5 (CECETEET et ey, Chanl
Tatal B} Sabvadar T, :IH::H:] —
Cast S4BT Fraspart Indaniiia PT e
5 31 5% dos DA L2002 0 164
XTSI ioness st tm riem Prser 1 SeaSH
GOVEREIDN SSUES 0.0% | S450% due (BASE0D 00 178 :man- [;m.;‘;umﬂml —
Republic ot Ghara Internations | Band Pevtaming Persera PT § RS A D TOTETI0 ] 111 249
Q000% dus SAOTNS mo ] B SO0 dus 1LEAR0ME &0 Bl 7 ATE A 10 Q4T 0 &1
T2, den 0815702 0 5] —
125 che QNGB0 0 bl L A - g ot derdn a0
8 575% dhon DAATITH 0 -l ‘ : o Eest 6507
B T50% cee 1 172061 400 118 Peoesabaan Perserean Persers PT Prnsahaan Liswit
Hagara et et R
::::::’:n — 3T e due SR 20 [T M o PE A ATE BONDE & MOTES 1.0% .
Tetal Indanesis 106 Orvelapment Band of Kazakhstan JSC
Bt 1,131 {1258 dm 1007022 w W
C BHES & HOTES 0.4° ! - Katbunrylas Natianal Ca. J5C
Indusirial Simiar Tress IRELAND 0.1% 5375% dos (4400 il 165
5 500% che .mm?' 00 ] GOVEREON iE5U £ 1. £ TR0 e 040 22047 0 13
SOVEREIDN FREUES 1.0% Hﬂlhtrlﬂ"{ﬂlﬂhﬁ'llurﬂlINIIMDM Tengiechevr ol Finance Company Internatienal Lid.
; = BUIM% dos 12400007 ] 58 o =
OQuatemala IIﬂmnnllml v ST o 100 AN i E
1 500% ces BROA/03T w0 74 Tutal Ireland L] B0
£ 1 75% e 080172050 b1 i Fest 51
[T
e e L syl By | Dovabar I 02 F |
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) iCant)

FRNEFE
AnUNT WALE
. . G

Kazakbutan Gevernment Internatisnal Bend

A T3 dem 100472044 ] anE 154
Tatal Kazakbstan 954
Cast HL2H)

Republic of Kenya Gevernment Infernatianad Band

6 300% ces 012370310 Fil 1] 128
B000% der 053272032 k1 1] il
Tadal Henya 18
Cast #545)

EBANON 0.1%

Lebanen Governm st Interna tisnal Bead

1 750 den 050 T3 ) 1o L
Tadal Lebanem 12
Cast 548}

LUXEMBDURG 1.2%

e

Gurars Merte Sarl

5 103% cee DA 52034 187 {LE
Pedraris Luzembserg Trading Sar

B 179 dee DROS076 i 1]
Unigel Lux embourg 54,

B T50% dee 1001720028 0 L]
Tonwl Ligeambaurg 522
Cest §587)

Pedranas Capital Lid

TAD4% coe DATET0G! o 12
Petranas Energy Conada Lid

Z113% den (TN 0 _ 7z
Tatul Malaysia 296
Cust $304)

CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES 2.8

America Mevil SAB de LV,

53T dee DRO40TT Fil ] T

Camisian Fedeval de Beciricided

BTt dee (205052 o 11}

Hipstecara Sw Casita SA. de CV.

S570% du DRI TG ) MEN 3512 ]

[Praraless Mezicames

6 350% dee 020272048 H] k-1 1] 173

B 750 dew 0212047 kil 1] (ki

& 550% des 0128060 T4 s

TN dee DT23050 454 198
1381

Wexice Gavernmend bnivrnatisnal Band

5 150% dee 10N ZN0 Fil ] 153

Tadal Maxics 1514

Cost 28400

B Ll CU L

RIFAL
AN wALE
X0 A
Mumgelia Dwvernment Inievma sanal Bend
15000 dum [7ATRERT i i1 138
5179% due 12050002 11 118
SEI dus (50102073 200 140
B TP dun (CH0S2024 0 _ 188
Total Mengelia 131}
Emt 6725
MORGBLCD 1.3% .
OCF 5A.
AT due DRTATNON 0 130
B LT dus DROST ool jF]
T3
Mereces Owssrnment inigmatianal Bend
4 0% duw 120502050 oo 118
4 500 cum 12010202 o] ]
ik ]
Twtal Maracoe |41

Ewst §780

Namibda Gowernm et Incernatisnal Evnd

57300 due 100972075 il 180

Tetal Namikia 180

Cext F15E)

CORPORATE BONOS & NOTES 1.4

Hazahbatan Temir Thaly Fissncs BY

R0 due TADEME o] 138

Metinvest BV

T Vit due A2 ol 1k

HE Pusperty BW

1 E75% dum 100072608 EUR 180 m

Predus My

1530 due (BEQN08 1 i)

AT don DRABET 8 ol 166
{72

Raegubilic of Angala Wia Sweadr Il BV
]

B0 dim [Fira W 1]

T0L44T% des BODLT0TD 2B M7
T

Tirtal Nathir landy S

Ewar #0234

BO| Fisanes BY

TS00% due I2NE2EQT EUR X0 el
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FRAMGFA
ST WAILE
L] ]
Sr— e rroe

Migeria Gevernment Internatans| Bond

BAT5% due DT A3 8 B3 m
65008 doe 1 10T m 142
14 dow 02TV s 157
B 2500 dow (TS oL n?
B TAT o DVELGN m 142

1,378
Taral Migaria 1,608
Cwi §2,080)

Oman Gawernmeni Intematisnal Band

S 615 due 010 TR i .0
B D00 dhow DBA1TH il 1%
G 500 o 0300MT Ha 185
Tatal Oman Bd3
Cust $E6E)

Paktstan Qevirsment Inteenatisnal Bead

A B7E% du | MOGSIT m fie
AATES due QLD m Be
Tatal Pakistan 168
Cwst $487)

Brrwpueris Infernacionsl de Tecumen 54

51754 e (RN L2051 2 138
Buteridad del Canal de Fanama

A5 Ao DTPRTI5 W m 1T
Eance Nacieasl de Fanama

25000 e 08 LRAD0 Ll 144

Pamnama Daveinmant Insermatisasl Band

4700 dow D4ATRD 0 156
A500% dow 040156 palt (EH]
L 500% doe 01727053 Ml 13
B 700 dos 0180006 1 &

553
Tatal Panama 101
Casd #1,527)

PARAGUAY 0.8%

Pars paay Devernment Interne Ganal Bend

104 G DB it 181

4 TR o 03T AT il Air3

Tatil Parageay 356

Casi 385)

CORPOAATE BOKOS & NOTES 1.6%

ALICDRP SAA

GETS% doe 040 12037 FEN 803 187

Eanca de Credite del Peru 5.4

B30 doe 090 120N =11 140
dong By g | Dowber I, PG ]



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Schedule of Investments PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) iCant)

PRkt Ra
ARTUNT WALE
freet) oo
Campania di Misid Bosnsventurs SAA
S500% dee IR0 8 i ¢ [
InRetail Comsumer
T2 dee IATH0 a0 (b ]
652
[Paru Devernmant bsprss tansl Band
T dee ENET RN m iy
JE00% des 01 NS0T o i
85
Tadal Perw 937

Cest 51,309

IWCHEIGN FoalEs BT

[Prilippines Davernmant Internatienal Band

29500 che ESS045 ] 108
2700 che OPOBHG ] 11

Tatal Philipgines 128

[Cest §499)

1 tar Energy

31 2% ch 07N 22041 0 714
T300% che 0P 22051 00_ .
Tanal Qatas 418
Caat §599)

Ramania Gevermmenl Interna ienal Bend

L1 de 0T EsR o 156
13T des DA 342 Fu i} {13
ATHEN den RO 1] M
A 5% dee DRO304G L] 154
S1000% dee PAQTVNIHG nmm_ s
Tenal Remanis 1]
st §1,114)
th. I!I.E*a

VEREIGH ESSLIES 065
Parssla O owernm et Internationsl Band
LE50% de 110072037 il 1] ]
A JTH dee (3012079 H fil 1] m
SATH dw MANED0D m_ A4
Tattal Russia in
[ =T

5RUDI ARASIA 1.4%

‘Saud Arablan Oil Ca,
3“:41"'& de ‘:I.l.'.‘ln'."l]]‘l] 400 35

i 3
AV B A

Swud Gevemmentintirnational Band

1450% des DR0Z061 Fil i} F: ]
A 500% che 106G £ i} 1n
Il
Tatal Sawdi Arabia 813
Cast 4345}
e el

FralCa A
AMOONT NALLE
[ [

FES L%
Senegal Oevarnment ivismasanal Bend
A4 TP dom DIV 0R ELR 0§ 1682
B 350% due 15022003 ] o0 151
Tutal Senegal n3
Bzt BB
SERBIA 5
Sertls Devernment bmermagenal Bend
1000 due DRTIATE ELR o 40
1ESI% due 02022003 150 B
Tutal Serhia pi ]
Ewn 331)
SIIHHIIE ﬂ?'t. _
Mes Bell Pie L1d
63755 due OEA0E0T - o] 180
Soogagere Birlines Led
J3T9% due DRAGD 20 M
Tetal Singupars — W
Cwan 390

HIIIIII AFRICA i il-k

A-lllﬁllﬂ Ashant Haldings PLC

3]&1]‘)&-:.- 18012630 o] 154
Eank of Ssutterm Adrica Lid

Bﬁl}ﬂﬁﬂu 18T g DR 7580 150

Eskom Haldings S0C L1d

A 31 8% doe DTT3E02T ] 0 68

B3500% due (2N 00CE 500 450

Gewwstbpeint Praperties lateoss Sanal Pry Led

SETE due (REREET ol Fil |

Garsal Financing Internatinnal Lad

4 500 due 1RAA00T 3 EL]
IE:I':

GOVEREION i55UES 1.7% =

Sauth Abricy Gevermsent Interna tienal Bend

BTN due (RO0EMHE L] b1

T30 due (MTOREST bl 158

NS00 dee §2200HG IAR L 114

538
Tetal Seuth Alvica 11

Eest F2EXE

SR LAHKA Bﬁ"i

541 Lanka Gevernmenl Inrmlml Eand fa}

5 T50M% due DAA RS L] W
B 025 due DBEGES ol #
BLESOM due 11632005 20 8
TS50 due 13702000 30 4]
Tetal Sri Lanka ez
Eesn 8325
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FRmLFAE
EMTLNT WARLE
0 L]

SUPRANATIONAL D.4%

CORPD (TE B  MOTES 0 4%

Eastern & Saushern African Trade & Orerdegment Bank

1175 dm 6L H vl Y i 158
Tetal Sug ramativnal 168
Lozt 6200)
E'I'IT'H-I.HIJ 145
Credit Sihuﬂrlq &D
2 ST e DR 1S i1 e
UBS Greug A0
4 40 o DBIETS 0 g
Tatal Switerand [131]
[HARTL]]
Turiskan Millﬁ
ST due 0 TR0 ER 103 T4
B P50 e 103173 103 gl
Tatal Tusisis 166
Cei144)

I.JHI!EI' "35-:

Turk vy Devemment Intenatisnal Band

AT de MO ] 1 171

A BT dus D4 3043 151 il

5250% dos 030 3000 i ¥

G750 doe 05 173047 [11] i

Total Turkey 1.]_!!1

Cast 41,365

I'l’ﬂ IJImm]l

A ATS% da | 1RG0 0 0

Ukraine Gevsonm e Internatienal Basd

AT o DN IR tiR 50 n

TR o 5T 10T ] m £

1. 250 duw 030 57035 m 4

13754 de DTN i n

7 T5(M dhom (RUILARIZS /1] 4

1750 duw 0RO 103 18
251

Tatal Ukraine 288

st §1,563]

Abu Ohabi Crude Dil Hl tline LLT

B0 o 11T m n

NBHK 5PC Lid

1 P o (A 01T Ayl 17
nuz

Flnlml Ihpiﬂllnl ﬂn‘lmllnl ufl Shasjah

3T doe 0300051 g 170

dony By poy | Dowber 31, PG 1]
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2021 10 31

2021 10 31

115 15
76,260 9,950
0 0
0 0
111 14
11 1
76,497 9,981
0 0
0 0
8 1
0 0
113 15
46 6
6 1
33
65 8
271 35
76,226 9,945
115 15
57,364 7,484
76,226 9,945
9,622

7.92 1,033
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2021 10 31

(D)
80,608 10,517
0 0
55 7
441 58
0 0
682 89
52 7
257 34
0 0
TBA 635 83
8 1
1,032 135
83,770 10,929
5,137 670
270 35
15 2
366 48
658 86
TBA 953 124
0 0
111 14
0 0
0 0
0 0
7,510 980
76,260 9,950
81,364 10,616
0 0
56 7
300 39

(23) (©)
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265 35

76,260 9,950
4,154

18.36 2,395
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2021 10 31

0 0

0 0

564 74
403 53
80 10

0 0

46 6

0 0
1,093 143
(1,093) (143)
0 0
4,033 526
0 0

0 0
4,033 526
0 0
1,723 225
0 0
1,723 225
5,756 751

4,663 608
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2021 10 31

()

4,317 563
8 1
4.325 564
0 0

0 0

25 3

0 0

25 3
4,300 561
441 58

0 0
(142) (19)
153 20
217 28
669 87
977 127

0 0
(85) (11)
(158) 1)
53 7
787 103
1,456 190
5.756 751
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(1,093) (143)
4,033 526
1,723 225
4,663 608

(7,018) (916)

(7,018) (916)

745 97

(1,610) (210)

77,836 10,155

76,226 9,945
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)
4,300 561
669 87
787 103
5,756 751
(7,477) (976)
(1,721) (225)
77,981 10,174
76,260 9,950
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2021 10 31
N
8.15 1,063
@ (0.11) (14)
0.60 78
0.49 64
(0.72) (94)
7.92 1,033
(b) 6.01
76,226 9,945
1.36
1.36
(1.36)

n 0.01

@
(b
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2021 10 31
)
N

17.09 2,230
) 0.97 127
0.30 39
1.27 166
18.36 2,395

® 7.43
76,260 9,950

0.03

0.00

5.33

n 0.01

@
(b
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2021 10 31

2003

29

BBH
BBH

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO 2020-10
PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 10 30 2021 10 31
2020 10 15 2021 10 31
US GAAP
US GAAP
US GAAP
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO

PIMCO
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PINCO 2020-10 2020 10 15 (
) 2021 10 31 2020 10 31
2021 10 31 2020 10 31
2020 10 15 ( ) 2020 10 31 2021 10 31
2020 10 15 ( ) 2021 10 31
2020 10 15 2020 11 1 2020 10 15
2020 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
$ 32 3 5,568 $ 5,600
0 865 865
(1,511) 7,654 6,143
(1,479) 14,087 12,608
428,248 0 428,248
0 (75,871) (75,871)

$ 426,769 % (61,784) $ 364,985
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2020 10 31
2021 10 31
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) 2021 10 31

2021 10 31

2020 10 30 ( ) 2020 10 31
2020 10 30 ( ) 2021 10 31

2020 10 30 2020 11 1 2020 10 30
2020 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31

$ 0o 3 837 $ 837

0 (6,722) (6,722)

0 (3,610) (3,610)

0 (9,495) (9,495)

0 0 0

24,690 177,059 201,749

0 (8,486) (8,486)

$ 24,690 §$ 159,078 $ 183,768
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO

B-J 1605

B-J 1605

B-J 1609

B-J 1609

B-J 1612

B-J 1612

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO 2020-10

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO 2020-10
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
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2020 FASB LIBOR

Accounting Standards Update
AsU 2020-04 AsU 2020 12 2022 12 31

NYSE

NYSE
NYSE

PIMCO

NYSE
NYSE

ETF

NYSE

NYSE

NYSE
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NYSE

PIMCO

NYSE
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US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP
US GAAP
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ETF

NYSE

ETF

NYSE

NYSE
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NYSE

LIBOR
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US TIPS
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CMOs
CMOs
CMOs
SMBS
SMBS
SMBS
10 PO
10 10
PO
CDOs CBOs
CLOs CBOs CLOs
CBO
CLO
CDO CDO
CBOs CLOs CDOs
CBOs CLOs

CDOs
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PIK PIK

2021 10 31

GNMA

FNMA
FNMA
FHLMC FNMA
FNMA
FNMA
FNMA

FHLMC PCs

FHLMC

PCs
2019 FNMA FHLMC TBA
UMBS

TBA FNMA  FHLMC
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TBA

TBA
TBA

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
CDSC

CDSC 0.20

PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
UFJ MUFG
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MUFG
PIMCO
0.275
21 2022 21 PIMCO
45,000,000 2021 21
55,000,000
PIMCO

236,435
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oTC
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PIMCO B-J 1605 B-J 1605 B-J 1609
B-J 1609 B-J 1612 B-J 1612
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LIBOR LIBOR ICE
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
2020 COVID-19
COVID-19
COVID-19
CoviD-19

COVID-19
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PIMCO
PIMCO
CoCos
CoCos
(

( )

CoCos
CoCos

CoCos

CoCos

CoCos
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PIMCO

COVID-19

2771439
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250,000

TBA

CFTC FCM
FCM
FCM

1SDA
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1SDA
1SDA
1SDA
PINCO
0.35 0.20 ®
0.35 0.20 ®
PINCO
0.28 0.20 @
PINCO
0.75 0.05 0.65
0.75 0.05 0.65
0.65 0.65
® 0.70 @
® 0.70 @
0.65 0.20
0.60
PINCO
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0.5 ®
PINCO
0.35 0.20 ®
PINCO 2020-10
0.40 0.10 0.65
PINCO
0.45 @ 0.05 0.40 ®
0.45 @ 0.05 0.40 (O
0.45 @D 0.05 0.40 @2
0.70 0.0 ¥ g5 @9
5,000 0.20 5,000
0.15 0.10
PIMCO
5,000 0.20 5,000
0.15 0.10
5,000 0.70 5,000
0.65 0.60 10
0.575 10 0.55 2019 12 1
0.45
PIMCO
5,000 0.20 5,000
0.15 0.10
0.5%
0.30 0.5% 1.499%
0.325 1.5 2.499
0.35 2.5 3.499
0.40 3.5
0.45
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0.275
0.30
0.35
0.40
0.5
0.5 1.499
1.5
0.35
0.40
0.45
10
0.5
0.5 1.499
1.5
0.30
0.35
0.40
11
1.499
1.5 2.499
2.5 3.499
3.5
12
1.499
1.5 2.499
2.5 3.499
3.5
13
0.10
14
0.50
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0.5%
0.5% 1.499%
1.5 2.499
2.5 3.499
3.5
0.30
0.325
2.499
2.5 3.499
3.5
0.25
0.275
2.499
2.5 3.499
3.5
0.5
0.30 0.5
0.325
0.35
0.40
0.45
0.5
0.25 0.5
0.275
0.30
0.35
0.40
0.05
0.55

PIMCO
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PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO B-J 1605 B-J 1605 B-J 1609
B-J 1609 B-J 1612 B-J 1612
0.76 ABSC
PIMCO B-J 1605
B-J 1605 B-J 1609 B-J 1609 B-J 1612 B-J
1612

CDSC CDSC
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CDSC

3.00

2.40

1.80

1.20

0.60

0.00

CDSC
CDSC
PIMCO
B-J 1609 B-J 1609

ABSC 117,397,218

PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2020-10
PIMCO

PIMCO

B-J 1605 B-J 1605
PIMCO
B-J 1605 B-J 1605
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CDSC 14,519,404

2021 10 31
B-J 1605 B-J 1605
B-J 1612 B-J 1612
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2020-10
2020-10
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
0.20
PIMCO
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PIMCO PIMCO
B-J 1609 B-J 1609
PIMCO
B-J 1609 B-J 1609
PIMCO PIMCO
0.20
PIMCO PIMCO
B-J 1612 B-J 1612
PIMCO
B-J 1612 B-J 1612
PIMCO PIMCO
0.20
2021
10 31
PIMCO
PIMCO
10
2021 10 31

PIMCO 0.006
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PIMCO 0.009 PIMCO
0.835
2021 10 31

PIMCO 13,546 163,368

2,358 9,940
PIMCO 21,627 33,177
PIMCO

21,458 1,686
PIMCO 123,179 153,713
PIMCO 52,823 22,174
PIMCO 7,978 0
PIMCO 6,608 28,704
PIMCO 962 2,278
PIMCO 2020-10 9,258 987
PIMCO 3,448 71,026
11

PIMCO

12

10
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO

2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31

1,474 18,661

74 392
15 109
1 115
14 1,067
5 304
1 68
4 87
32 2,463
0 0
252 1,316
762 5,552
18 1,122
103 2,958
232 7,865
51 3,465
21 1,028
145 4,908
219 4,719
113 8,624

(12,558)| (161,262)

@1,031)|  (5,443)

2.531)| (18,453)

e (@,547)

@122)]  (9,505)

©5 @.110)

341)|  (9,659)

(559)]  (19,064)

9| 4,677y

94) (4,747)

(536)]  (18,213)

“10)[  (9,003)

(556)]  (42,510)

(11,084) (142,601)  (2,457) (64,993)  (1,640)| (34,577) 27|  (11,199)
PIMCO PINCO PINCO
PIMCO
DE
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
422 7,643

163 35,229

5 920
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2,037 | 201,739
0 10
0 0
7 382
831)|  (15,120)
@156)  (34,922)
@ (423)
@n|  (8,486)
19) (994)
12) (612) 1,950 | 193,263 09)|  (7.,477) 10 804
PINCO PINCO
PINCO
PINCO
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
3,310 | 534,744 522 | 112,071 | 3,274 | 696,225 | 124,453 | 1,911,365
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(1,002)| (161,890) (489)| (103,812)| (2,026)| (431,420) (156,604) (2,391,742)
2,308 | 372,854 33 8,250 | 1,248 | 264,805 | (32,151)|  (480,377)
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PINCO PINCO PINCO PINCO
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
2,244 | 241,412
1,814 | 152,308
37,500 | 338,344
135 [ 11,900
29 2,682
837®| 76,057
3,842 38,820
13,425 | 1,093,063
7,566 | 568,807
1,172 9,236
3,009 | 40,816
45 4,750
483 | 45,208
31| 36,271
1,804 | 189,765
1,140 | 13,332
6 648
30 2,459
16 1,467
12 669
605 | 50,791
9,006 | 81,639
8 758
932 7,734
175 | 14,204
164 | 14,748
246 | 14,832
(1,103)] (119,340)
B-J 1605 48)|  (452,963)
B-J 1605 a3)|  (126,888)
B-J 1609 @2 @,113,527)
B-J 1609 ®|  (71.873)
B-J 1612 @on)|  (953,800)
B-J 1612 as)|  (130,280)
2,437 (206,601)
(29,702)| (267,065)
1,372)| (123,354)
asy| 7,178
(79) (950)
@ 6@
46)®)| (2,501)®
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(6,967)| (584,139)

2.164)| (163,334)

@180  (9,345)

(4,404)| (45,763)

@y  (11,532)

(2,160)| (235,398)

@351)|  (36,253)

@,97)|  (52,753)

308)|  (3,563)

@® (810)

@.124)|  (92,785)

916)|  (82,628)

@3n|  (50,637)

@6nl  .521)

26,492 | 850,915 9|  (35,245) (303)| (2,849,421)| 1,141 | 122,072
PIM
co PINCO PIMCO PINCO
2020 10
4 5
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
3,529 52,853 93 24,360
3 284
14 1,303

4,282 428,248

0 0 0 0
(10,850)| (163,947) an|  (20,228)
@ (116)
eyl @)
©9)| (6.612)
@36)|  (75.871)
@6yl @.898) (7.321)| (111,094) 16 4,132 3,546 | 352,377
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PIMCO PINCO PIMCO PINCO
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
3 255 5 400 1,770 31,369
6 372
20 455
1 115
0 24
2 163
3 205
1 51
2 66
25 502
170 12,298 76 6,247 0 0
63 4,187
16 384
4 243
5 282
5 289
3 193
114 5,704
9 320
30 654
(700)|  (51,034) @87)| (23.638)|  (7.795) (138,668)
@| a4,676)
66)|  (1,580)
4 (901)
4 (841)
@13) (861)
(10) (721)
33 (16,619)
@9 (,012)
G| (1,140)
G27)|  (38,481) (206)]  (16,991)|  (6,025)| (107,299) @) (24,142)
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o 1HeO PINCO PINCO PINCO
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
1 65 31 6,026
3 167
1 104
3 397
2 194
532 5,759
0 0 0 0
2 164
3 184
2 184
e (2,892) Ih) (331)
(10) (725)
12) (874)
el e
(10) (810)
(10) (952)
(25) (278)
| (@412 476 2,249 @) @827 30 5,695
PINCO PINCO PINCO PINCO
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
3 247 62| 16,288
0 4
0 1
6 300
10 489
42 693
0 0 0 0
84 712
03 4,604
1,443 | 17,136
51 4,633
79 3,990
2 84
48 821
65 (5,388) 66)|  (14,984)
)| (15,625)
)| 4,663)
30| (19,353)
,780)|  (33,436)
o) (17,566)
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@s67)|  (8,394)

(5) (249)
@43)]  (4,149)
o6y (5.141) 6 1,304 466)| (36,613)]  (1,780)| (33,355)
2021 10 31
1,096 9,141
0 0
(1,019)|  (8,39)
77 745
2020 10 30 2021 10 31
2021 10 31 99.99
10
2021 15 2021 10 31
2021 10 31 77.99
10
2020 10 15 2021 10 31
13
14
US GAAP
2021 10 31
2021 10 31
15
2022 25
PIMCO B-
J 1605 B-J 1605 2021 11 PIMCO
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2022 14
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. DRGANIZATION

Each Furd discoussed in this repon {sach a "Fund” and collectrvely, the "Funds™], which also inclsdes each diass of units of that Furd {pach a "Class™ and coffectively,
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the "Classes”), is @ series trust of PACO Bermuda Trust 8 {the " Tnast” ), an open-ended unit trust established under the laws of Bermuda as a mult-series. trust

pursuait 008 triet deed eeduted by Winchestid Global Trest Company Limited oh December 1, 2003 {36 amisndid Teom timd o bme, the ™ Trust Desd" ) Eflemne &

of the chose of business (Eastern tme) on September 79, 2017, Maghes Trustee Senvioes (Bermuda) Limited {ghe * Trustes”) was appesnited as trustee of the Trust

Paahc Imvestment Management Coempany LLC ("PIMCO”, the “Manages™ of the “lmvestment Adwiser” ) is the spomsor of and was responsible for stratturing the Trust

Beown Brethers Hamiman & Ca {BRH") had eniened sl an agreement wath 31abe Steet Coporaton | 35ate Streel” | wnder which 3iabe Street wall scguae BEH's

Imeestie Sendices business: which incdudes its austody, Turd accounting and admnsiration, ransfer agency, depesitany, faregn exchange, tnustee and secunties Jending

services. The tramsaction is expectad 10 be completed mn the fiest quarter of 2032, subpect to ustomary dosing conditons and regulatory approvals
The Trust is subject 10 regulation and supenvsion as provaded Tor in the Imeestment Funds Act 1006 and relafied nules relating 1o slandard funds
The: terrms of the Trust Deed corder upon the Trustee, vath the consent of the Manager, the pawes, in the future, to establish further fumds in addibion to the Funds

currently in operation as of the date of thes report

References to undtholders {each, a "Umithclder”, and colloctively, the *Unithelders™) in, or units of {or an investment inl, the Fund shall mean Unithalders of the Fund

weho hodd units, of classes ol umts (a5 applicable), which ane attmbigable 1o 1hat Fund

The Funds peesented in thas repost ave listed befow

FNCE Barrssdd Bk Logen Fersd &

PINCD Bermedds Bank Loan Furd B

FIMCD Barreedy Bk [ o0y Fusd €

MO0 Barmosty Baskc | ran Fundd )

PAMED Berrets boma Feed 0

PIMCD Bvesoed ireien Fond £

PIMCD Bermes Dynamic Mofo-8zmet Ssanegy Fund
AMC] Berreds L Doraton btom Fasd

AMC] Emargeng Band frepme Fiasd 0

PN Evvargeng Baod Fncome Fund W

Offered anly m Forts werh 3 "hund ol Fusdt” snuetarn, i darteadl o Ol et ©F (he bl imon] Tt Apatdien,
Japan, of i any sthar predesen

PAMED Bermes Bask Logn Furd (M)

PAMC] Barowdds Erond g Marfcats Baad ifund £M1

AMO] Barmeets Glbal Apgragess £ lapen Basd Fasd iM
ANC Berreunds bcome Fesd (W)

FNCD Bareseety U 5. Fagh Yould Fund (M1

PIMCD Bermeds U 5. Figh Yiekd Fund BiM|

AME] Enigug Baad rcorse Fuad M1

Cefpred only o onber Funds 0o oerve a5 an yeedertying evveaome whae fo meh Fnds

PMED Bermoss Ererpmg Marhoets Bast Fund H
ANCO Betreoee Global Aggrmginn Ex-Japa VierHidgnl! Bosd rusd
FIMCD Bormads Global Aggrogas Ex-Japan Boad Fuad
AMC] Bermes lncoma Feed A°

AMCD Buirend Madnabgh Opportusitan Fusd™ '
PAMED Coure bncome Corporme Bond Fond 233105+
ANCD LIS, High Yasld | Yee-Hedged] Fesd i

AMED U5 High Yo Forad B

PMCO 155 Hagh sl Strartagy find

AMCT LS. High Tl Stitagy Fasd

FIMIOD Wisrid High Income™"**

Cfered o Japanese and ster e

FINED Shert Toren Nerighgt Iecams

Cfigrned ra Sapareicd dend ofhel owmiirt Usatg of o EUR, 7T a0 USD Otz mn sind 1 evmell enoiien
o fry vy of pable: p¥wing threegh o detrbano  Japas, and mory be offersd (e other mvesiar ot the
et gl i Mickigai Lseti ol tha CLE. JPY ol KOS Clicias wll bl fisstinclindl 15 68y thesa wiilor wha bl
apgemnd by T Mg

PN Errgeng Bond iris-Hidgail i Fund

AMCD Emargeag Band income fund

PMECD L5 Hagh Yiald [ o Hudiped] Fasdl
FMD0 S High Yisd Fared

i ety T Fod off oty Tept st enolcEmit] Dossi GIGARCRd widil Thl Liny Contmrany Iswiniimeel
Trext ared Inweesmaen Campany il Jsgan 1 lapsnen bwvetment Trosts”) which will ol S osesy 10 the peblc
ik ivihad oy wary of poble Mg 6 piwite plicies] atd wheh asi s by PINED Jige L5 o ot
aralnr I Bnand e EITRENT [TUST PAEARETARS! (ommpieil Bad fubphet w8 v rules of the brommsenr Trome
Bapranes, Jagan

n o el oA
S i ¥ w1l s
i Y i Rt B e A T
™ L 8 By

Ll et | Dessba 3. 2011
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The feflewing is a summarny ol sigrificant acccanting polioes comsistently
Telicwnd by the Trust in the prepacation of &5 brancal statements in
conleemity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of Amenca ("U 5 GAAP™) Each Fund is treated as an investment compamy
under the teporting requiremnints af LS. GAAP. The preparation of finsncial
sratements i aoardance vath U S GARP msgunes ManagEment 1o make
estim:ates.and assumptions that affect the repored ameounts of assets and
ligbisties and disclosure of contingent assets and habdities at the date of the
firancwal stanements and the reporbed amounts of increases and decieases in
net assets from operations dunng the reporting period Actual results could
differ from those estimates

Ia] Acspmived Fumds The Trustes and Manager may apely all &0 a portion of
the assets of () FIMCO Bermizda Bank Loan Fund &, PIMCD Bermuda Bank
Laan Fund B, FIMCO Bermusda Bank Loan Furd C and FIMCO Bermuda Bank
Laan Fund [ {s] FIMCO Werld High Income; (=) PIMCD Barmuda Global
.ﬂ.rﬂrl'\g.lu: Ex-lapan {Yen-Hodged) Bond Fund and PIMCD Bermuda Glgbal
Aggregate Ex-lapan Bond Fund; (v) PRACO Beimuda Income Fund A, PIMCO
Bermuda Income Fund D and FIRMCO Bermuda Income Fund E; () PIMCO U 5
High Vield (¥en-Hedged) Fund, FIMOD LS High Yoeld Fund, PINICO LS

High Vel Saraegy Fund, and AMCOES High Yeeld Strateqgy Fusd 1 [vi)
PINCO U 5. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund Il and PIMCO U5 High Yield Fund
I; Biih PRACO Emerging Bond (Yer-Hedged) Intome Furnd, PINCO Emenging
Band Incame Fund, FIRCO Emeging Bond oo Fund 11, and P
Emenging Bond Income Fund Il feach referred to herein a8 a " Fund of Funds®
or "Anguining Fund®, which imests in cther Funds) to the respectve credit of
(1) PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (8 i) PRACD Bermuda Emenging
Matkets Bond Fund (MY {in} PIMCO Besmiada Global Aggregate Ex-lapan
Beend Fund (M]; {rv] FINICD Bermada Incoene Fand (M (v) FIMCO Besmudia
U5 High Yield Fund (M) {vi} PIMCO Bermuada U5 High Yield Fund 1 (M)
{va) PIMCO Emerging Band Income Fund (M) {refered to herein 2 an

" Aucquired Funds)” . Any assets so applied will be held in such Acquired
Fundls] a5 if recerved dinectly, Where assets ane 50 applied, the Sogured
Furrdfs) val cecoed he imswe of unies o the selevant Acqienng Fund & the
tssue price per unif af such unats and will repunchase such units at the
repurchate price per et 0f such units at the tme of repurchase: Accardingly,
thr by ol the Bciuareg Fund! to acheess it meestmient obpsctnae will
depend upon the ability of the applicable Acquired Fund to achieve its
imeestment ebjective: There can be no assurance that the investment chjective
of 1he Acquited Fund wall be achieved

Ratios shivan in the Finarcial Highlights do not indude expenses of the
Aogpered Fund(s). See Note 9, Fees and Experses, for Further infrmation
reqarding fund foet, a5 spphcabile

[b] Securities Transactions and Invesimant lseoma Secunties ansachions
are recoeded as of the trade date for financal reporting putpases. Securities
purchased or sold on a wherrissed or defayed-delvery basis may be

settled beyond a standard settlement peniod for the secuity after the rade
date Realized gains and losses From secusives sold are recoeded on the
identifeed cost basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date
except certan dindends fom Toceign seasities whene the ex-doridend daze
iy hanee parised, which ate iganded o soon a5 & Fund 1 mfeemed of the
ex-dividend date. Enterest income, adjusted for the accretion of decounts and
amortization of premaums, is recorded on the acorual basis Rom setthement
dare wrh thi EXCERlION of wecunites with & foswand SLAFlifey eflecne dane,
where interest income is recoeded on the aocreal basis from effecthe date For
forwvertible securities, premiums attributable to the conversion feature e not
amertiged Esbmated tax habiliies on gemam I'p'r:qn ot e revanded
on & accrual baiis and are tellected as components of interest income of net

change in unnealized appeediaton (depredation) on imestments on the
Staterments of Operations, s appeopriste. Tax hababties realized & 2 nesudy of
such secunty sdles are reflected & a component of et realized gain loss] on
imvestments on the Matements of Operatiors. Paydown gains and losses on
mongage-related and other aset-backed secunbes, o any, are recorded a3
components af interest mnoome an the Statements of Operations

Dbt ohigations may be placed on non-accrual status and relabed interest
rrcome may be reduced by ceasing cuntent accruals and whibng aff enenes
recefvable when the cofection of all or a portien of intesest has become
doubthul based on consistently applied procedures. A debt obligation s
removed from non-accrual status when the fiswer resumes interest payments
or when collectatslity of imtenen is probable

The financial staberments. of PIMCO Core income Corporate Bond Fund 2000-
10 included in this report are for the persod from Dictober 15, 2020 finception
date) 1o Qctober 31, 2011 Accounting policies were consistently applied Tos
the peroad ended October 31, 3020 and through the year-ended October 31,
2021 Actiity of the fund duting the period ended Ociober 31, 2020 induded
capital contribyfions, investments a0d operating expenses ingutned th Start
and operate the fursd The Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the pediod
from Odiober 15, 2020 (date of inceptian} through October 31, 2020, for the
year-ended October 31, 7021, and for the period from Qctober 15, 2020
{dabe of inception) theough Ooober 31, 2031 is as Tollows

P LT

The financal staterments of PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Mult-Asset Strategy
Furd includied in this teport are for the period trom Coinber 30, 2020
{inception date} to October 31, 2027, Accounting policies were cnsistently
Fpphied Tor the period ended Ocober 31, 2000 and through the year-ended
October 31, 2001 Actity o the fund during 1he period ended Ocober 31,
2030 included capital consnbutons, mvestiments and operating expenses
incurfed to 4o and operate the fund The Statement of Changes in et
Assets for the period from October 30, 2020 {date of incepticn] through
October 31, 2000, for the year-ended October 31, 2021, and for the peviod
frem Ohctobeee 300 2020 (date of inception} through October 31, 2001 B &
Tellows:

il et | Oessba 3. 2071 o
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Fanetisnad
" Fuad Class: MAY Carrency "
. - PIMED Berrrusde Bark fose Fund (W5 U5 dolr IS doliar
. PIMCD Bermuda Bank Loss Fund A
= FILED0} UE dollar L5 dollar
. i : . JUF Jagnect e 115 ol
SIS Japeness yen LS dollar
T DO Jpeoeeyen | U5 dolw
- ¥ v - LR Jaqanems yen S dalar
S — PNCD Berrruds Bark Loas Fund
" o FlAUD Betralan dolar | U5 dollar
e v = . Y IRUDI Jspmecaven | U5 dobar
m I Japanese ye U5, dodlae
= 7N Japanese yen LS doliar
4 5 * TIRUBI Japaness yen 115 doflar
= ¥TRY apanime pen IS dallar
r Ei LLE FIKCD Beerrudha Bank Lises Fund €
— *  YICALD Jaganese e 115 dolar
PIMCO - Berrraxdy Bank Loas Fund [
& Vil g i U5 dollar
le) Cash snd Foreign Carremey  The financial statements of each Fund an FINCD Bermuca Dynamec MuS ke Strategy Fund
presented wsing the currency of the primary economic emssonment in which it = U Jpeetyen | U5 dol
operates (the "functional curency”™). The Functional ourency for each of the + U0 U5 dollar WS, doliar
Funds 15 iited in the below table | NGO Berrrasds Ermargng Markets Bond Ford iMI U5 dollw L5 dol
_ [PANCTH Barreasds Emeegng Markets Bond Ford B
The market values af Barelgn secunties, cuerency haldings and ather assers s st [P Jagerese e % dollat
and liabilities are franslabed mis eadh Fund's functional cutrenty based on the et LY, Hadoad) Jaganese pn U5 dolar
cusrenl exchange rates each business day. Punchases and sales of secunties FINCD Bermuda Glabal Aggregate Ex-Jaan [fen
and incame and Exgenie ibeen denomindted in ‘d|r||||' CuitEacEs, '} iy, e MI Hoed Pt Japanez yan 5. dolar
translated into each Fund's respectve functional cumency at the exchange PIKCT Berrruis Giskal dgeregate Ex-Japan Bond Fund | Japeness yen LS dolar
rate in effect on the transaction date. The Funds do not separately report the PN Berrrade (il Sagregate Ex-Japan Sind Fuexd
effects of changes in foreign exchange rates from changes in masket prices on | Ml Jpeeyen | IS dodw
securities held Suth changes are induded in net reafized and et changes in PIMED Barroda lncama Fusd (M US doller U5 dolar
unreatzed gain or loss from imeestments on the Statements of Opesations PN Barmasds becama fysd A
Thee Funds. may imeest in 1:IIH|?": cyrmency denominalid deouiteis and may - LY JIpaiE i 115 collar
engaqge in forelgn currency ransactions sither on a spot (cash] basis at the = FIB0 U5 doler U dollar
rate prevailing in the currency ewchange market at the time or thicugh a *  JLIPY Jaganeng e 15 doflae
Torward foresge cutrency contract. Realized forsign enchange gains or loises «  JOED dhpnmeyen | UT dollae
ansreg from sabes of spot forelgn currences, curency gains of losses eealized = EiUSh U5 doller 115 dola
between the trade and settfement dates on secunties ransactions and the * MUY Advaond Jaganesy pen 1S, dodar
difference befween the recorded amounts of dandends, inferest, and loreign = MLED Advassiy US dalle U5 dola
wathbolding tanes and the Bunctaonal oumency equvalent of the amoungs = NUM Japanese pe LS. dollr
actually recenved or paid ace ind uded in net realized gain or loss on Tereign +  NilEm Japiness yen L5 dofa
crency transactions on the Statements of Opeiations. Met umaliced foreign +  NHUED US doller US. dotar
exchange gaing and losses aising from changes i Teeesgn exchange rates on = P Japarsesa e U5 dola
Toreign dencemnated asoets and habditsss ather than imestments in Securitiss + QU dpneseen | U3 dolr
held at the end of the reporting pencd are imchuded in net change in s+ RPN dpneeyen | US dolwr
unreatred appreciation of depeecation an foreign curency assets and L dapanesayen | U5 dodar
liahiities on the Statements of Operations = T4 hpnmeyen | IS dolae
. = ) *  UUSH U5, doller U5 dotar
The Net Asset Value ["HAY™) and total retusns. of certain Funeds jor Classes - Wimoi US doler U5 dolar
thermal a5 apphicable) ate pretented in the -;_.urr'm_,-!m wtisch the NAY i . X LB Jagantsa e % doliar
reparted (the " NAY currency” ) as detailed in each Fund's Olfiering = X[ED US dolk % dolar
Memarandum (the ~ffering Memarandum™). For the pupeses of the . YN lnpariesa yen U5 dolar
preseniation of the NAY and the 1otal netum in the HAY curendy, the . ¥ iUsD| Japaness = 5 dotar
beginning and ending MAVs are comeerted using the permod beginning and . TUF Japaness yen U5 ol
ending exchange rates, respectively, and dsirbutions are comverted wsing the FINED Bermida tncoma Fusd O
enchange rale a8 the hime af the deitnbution See the Id!nmm] Sable fod e » MM ALD} Aegveaban dodr | U5 dola
NAY '.u:w'x',.'al ach despectng Fund = FiWeddl Jaganese pm U5 dolar
PIMC] Barrrude Incorma Fusd E
® BJ IS LI Japanese e Japarese yen
* B-J LEDS |0} Jafeness pan Jipanise yen
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Fusciional
FumdiClass: MRV Curessey kit
&« BJIBDRLIP ] JapteE s
s BJ609 S0 Jeparmy yen Japmnes yen
o BJIGIZEIP Jpates yin Japne e
- B.J161] 5D Jpanene yen JnmneEe yer
PEMCT Bermioda Lorw Deration ncome Fund
*  Basd U5, daae L5 defar
PMACT) Bormada khorigage Chporrantios Fund
= 1 LIPY Hedged] Jipariae yen U5, doller
w 4 1P Jopaneme yon 03, doller
= JjUsD Jopatens vn U5 deoliar
L 15 dallar US doliar
| PIMCD By US Figh Vield frd i | U5 dofer [ U5 dofor
PEMCT Bermeada U5 Bigh Yield Fand B (K0 Bowme yon U3 dofr
PMACTY Corn lncome Corporate Bond Fund 2020 KD
L - ] UE dallar 05, doliw
PAMCT) Emaegng Biond [Yien-Hidged) ncome Fusd Jparene yon US dolar
PEMLTH Ermerpeeg Boid lngorm fFund Jepaneis yen [15. dollar
| PAACT) Ermer ey Blond bncorrm sl M 113 dear W5 doier
PEMCT} Emargeng Bond Income Fued 1|
w JIAUDY Jpyatans yon 05, doliar
- JIBARL Joparea yon 03 dollor
»  JiCADI Japanene yen 05, dolar
- JUDA1 Jparese yon U dollr
= J|MRI Japasens yin LS, doliar
s JiERM Japarme yen U5 dodlar
- JINGN| Sphdess i 05, doli
= JiRug| Japanese yen U5 dolir
s JIRF Jpaens yin LS. doliar
PEMICT) By Bl It Fusd (1
*® JHEL= Japarese yen 05 doliar
»  JiGEF Jepareds yen U5, dedar
* Jiush Jipaceme yon B3, dollar
PEMICTY Short: Tenm kortgage intome
« R Ewe WS, dollar
» F Japracens yen B 5. dodlar
IO, Hadoedt Japateas yen WS dollar
= g0 LES. dofle 3. dollar
| PO US Wgh VM enmiedgeaifoed | Jopweneyen | S olar
PEMCTD 1 5. High Yield [¥en-Hecgad! Furd B Jparme yen U5, dollar
PEMICD 1 5. High Yaeld lhund Jpicems yin 13, doller
PAACT 1 5. High Yoeld e Il Jigtens N LS. dolir
PEMED L) 5 High Yl Straingy Fund
L Y] ] LS. dodlr
w JIPY, Hodged] Jprme jon U3, dofar
= Jiusm % deflw 05, doller
- ¥ LIFY) Jogarans jon U3, dollor
w  YLIFY He Jepssens yen K5 dodiar
PIRACT) 015 Hgh Yosld Sorortegy Fund I
* Y [ALDH Jopatens yen U5 dollar
»  YiERl Jopasens ven 1S, dodar
= YR Jpaez yon US dollar
| = YITAY] Joanme yen 5. dollar
| PRMCI) Wiorid Hagh lcome 15 detr U5, dofis

|d] Muitickass Dpsrations Each Class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
raghts o the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the same
Fund, except for specific assens and gars and losses designated 10 a Class
refating to cusrensy hedging aperations. income, non-Class specifc expendes,
and ron-Class specfic realized and unrealized capital gars and losses are

aliccated to each Claws of wnits based on the relathe net assets of each Class
al the netpective Fund Clats specilic experses asrently includee
management, advesory, administrathe, agendy, and distribution fees, whee
aplicable

{a) Diaribution Paliey The following table shows the anbiopated frequency
of disgnbutions Tor each Fund Distrbutions from each Fund m.n'br: declared
and distributed ta Unitholders only upon the authanzation of the Mandger
aticn ey b withiheld at the Managers disceetion

Declared and Paid Monthly:

PYMLD) Bormracla Bark Loan Fund A
PIMEC D Bormagly Bank Loan Fund B
PIMCT) Bermuds Berk Loan Fund G
PN Berrrstls Bk Lsan Fusd [0
FINC ) Bermidia Income fund &
FLIPTI
F IS0
J U
JRLED)
NP
M FLEEE0
MR S0
S1P
£ Y]
X [LED
¥ 1Pl
¥ ILEDI
PMCT Bermeds breome Fard 0
FINCD Bermods Margage Dpporennies: Fund
= JuM
® JiUsdl
- {1575
PINCT) Emergang Bond [Yen-Hedged Ircorma Fusd
PN Emarging Bond Incoma Fund
PINLT Emeegeng Bond lncoma Fusd I
AMCD Emerping Bond Incorma Fund [
PINCD 115 Hagh Vil Fen Hadged] Fund
PNCD LS Fagh Yield Fusd
ANCO LS Hagh Vel Srmnagy Fusd
PIMCD LIS Fagh Yield Stratsgy Fueed Il
PINE 0 World High Incoma

Deelased and Paid Duarterly:

PIMCT Berrrds beorre Fued &

= Qi
PINC) Bermeadis lecome Fnd £ {proveded that the dendend yiskd shal be r bigher than
5% e BOBUM (ve By ne-yeae paling pened!

PNCD Bermedla Dynamic Mals- Az Sowingy Fusd
PMCT) Bervraads leeorms Ford &

- B LY

AP
PINCT Shors-Term Momgags income

which gus

® 4 & & & & & & § & & @
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Thay Mapager dees not eupecd to deglare distributbens with respeet to thege
Fundt lor Claees thereol, |f applicablel, but may, in it discretion, declare and
pay ditlributians to the Usitholders at i,

PRACD Bermuda Bank Loan Fand (M)

PIMC] Barmuda Emerpng Markits Bond Fund [ M

PCD Bprmuda Emerging Warkets Bond Fund 11

PACD Bermuda ikl Aggregane Ex-Japan [Yen-Hedged Bond Furd
P00 Beemsuds ot Aggesgete Ex-Japan Bond Fard

PCD Bermuda Giohal Aggregate Ex-lapan Bond Fend (M

PRAC Bermuxda Income Furd A

- (A1)
- M P Adewory|
- M LB Advanry|
l T LIF]
- wiuEm -
- WIS
* 2LFY]
PIMEO Bermsuda Income Fund (W8
PRADD Bermuda Low Dumine bxome Fund
P00 Barmoda klorigage Doporiunities Fund
It LIPY Hedgedll

PIMCD Bermuda U 5. High Yiedd Fund i

PACD Barmerda U5 High Yieddl Ford B I
PRLD Corg income Corporyte Bosdl Fund 2030-10
PAC0 Emergry Bond incoma Rard (M
FIRICT 1 5. Highs Wil (Yer-Hedgedsi Ford B
PRMCD 1 5: High Yinkd Frnd B

* Movy rtriburans with respect 1o Class U (LSTH Units of the Fuse well be dockered n
pecordarce with B lrier sgeement benween the Mrager snd the srvetor i nech Gy

Distributsans, iF amy, will generaly be made from the refevant Fund's {or
Class's, i applicable) net investment income. In addition, the Manager may
authonre the payment of ret realized capital gaird available for dissnbanion
Additenal distrbutons may be declared as the Manager deems appropriate
Distributions paid with respect 1o 3ny Fund (o Class thereod, if applicable)

wall reduce the NAY of such Fund (or Class thereal, if pplicable) 1 the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash disteibutions from a Fund {or Class thereed,
il applcabilel may ether be reimvestad in additional undts of a Fund (or Class
theseol, d applicable) or paid 1o a Unitholder in cash. Cash payments will be
paid in the NAY cumency of the Fund Each Fund {or Class thereal,
applicable) may declaee further distributions i considesed necessary n onder
o mantam a reaonabbe kel of dutnbaniens Tor a Fund (ar Class thereol i
..Iﬁ:'ll:..'b'l:":' In thip event that thend i inddegaate net ingome a0d net realded
capital gains to pay a distribution of a Fund (or Class theread, if applicable)
requeed by the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may pay a distribution
contrsting of a potion of the capital of such Fund (or Class thereal,
applicabie) Distributions not coflecied within st years. from their due date
will Lapse and will accrue to the benedit of the relevant Fund (or Class thereaf,
il applcable]

1N New Accounting Pronowssamonts and Rogulatary Updates In Manch
2020, the Finandal Accounding Standards Board (" FASE™) issued an
Amountng Standards Update (TASU™), ASL 7020-04, which prondes
optional gudance 1o exe the potental soouring burden asocued with
transitaoning away from the Londan Interbank Offered Rate {"LIBOR"} and
other reference rates that are expecied to be discontinged The ASL is
effectve immedistely upon refease of the update an March 17, 2000 through

December 31, J023 At this time, management is evaluating the impfications
al these changes on the inkecal statements

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

2 Investmant Yaluation Policies The price af & Fusd € units is badsd on
the Fund's NAY. The NAV of a Fund, or each of s Classes, as applicable, s
determaned by danding the total value of portlolio irvestments and other
asees attributabibe o 1hat Fund oo Class, less any liabilities, by the total
number af wnits cuistanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealieg
Dy (a5 described in the curment Offering Memceandum of the

Trusth, Fund units ane crdinandy valued a5 of the dose of requiar tradng on
the Mew Yok Stock Exchangs |"MYSE Close™) Infarmation that becomes
Erscrvn 1o the Funds or thelr agents after the time as of which NAY has been
cakoulated on a particular day wall not genevally be wsed o retmactvely adpust
the price of & security of the NAV deteimined earlier that day. Each Fund
resaves the nght bo change the time as of which igs NAV is caloulated d

the Fund closes. earfier

Fee purposes of cabculating BAY, portbalia securities and other assets fer
which market quates ane readily available ate valued at market value. Market
value is gererally determined on the basss of offical dosing prices or the kst
reporied silE prices, of d no Lhfes me repaitid, babed an quotes cblaned
firaim estabSshed marker makers o prices (ncluding evaluated peices) supplied
bry the Funds’ approved pricing senvices, quotabion meporting systems and
ather thed-party sources (Rogether, ~Pricng Senvices” ). The Funds wal
nammaly use pricing data foe damestic squity securties neceved shorthy after
thie NYSE Close and do not normally take inte acoount frading, dearanges o
settlerments. that fake place after the NYSE Close. f market walue pricing is
wsed, & fareign (non-U 5 ) equity security traded om a foregn exchange or an
more than one exchange i typically valued using prcng infoematon from the
euchange considered by PIMCD to be the primany exchange. A foreign {non
US| equety secunty will e valued as of the dase of g on the fn'ul:]u
exchamge, of the MYSE Close, if the NYSE Close oocurs befeee the end of
trading o the foreign exchange. Damestic and foreign (non-L 5. ) fmed
oM secunifes, non-exchange taded derrates, and equity options ane
romealy valued on the basis of quotes obtained from brokers and dealers ar
Pricing Sersices using such data reflecting the principal markets for those
secunties. Prices obtained lram Priging Sennces may be baied on, amang
aiber thargs, information peavided by marker mabers or estimates of market
values obiained from yielhd data relating To investrents of secutitess with
samiar characienstics. Certain foeed income securities purchased on a

ey -Gl vy bugrirs are marked 1o market daily until sefbement o thi
forward settlement date Exchange-traded options, except equety options,
futwres and options on futunes am valioed at the settlement price dedermined
by the relevant exchange, quotes abitamed from a guatation repanting system,
estahlished market makers of prRoing sendces. Swap agreements ane valued
on the basis of market-based prces supphied by Pricing Services or quotes
obitared fnom brokers and deafers & Fund's imvesimenss in oprrend
managqement vestinent comparnes, otk than enchange-traded Tunds
{"ETFs™), arevalued at 1he MAYs of such irvestments

H a faraign {non-L.5.) equity seoumty’s value has matenaly changed alter the
chose of the secunty’s pimary exchange o principal market bat before the
NYSE Close, the secunity may be waluwed at fair value based on procedures
witablished and approved by the Manager. Foreign [non-U15 ) equaty
secuiities that do not rade when the NYSE & apen ane aiso valued at far
value With respect 1o foreign (non-L 5.) equity securities, a Fund may
determane the far value of investiments barsed on information provided by
Pricng Sevecied and other thind-party vendors, which may recammend fair
value or adjustments wath reference 1o other securilies, indioes or assets In
considering whether ke valuation is required and in determining lair

il it | Oessbe 3. 2011 0
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walaes, a Fund may. among othet things, consider significant events (which
iy B cordadesid Lo include changes m the value afl WS, sequritied o
securities indioes] that ooos afer the dese of the relecant mathet and belore
the NYSE Close A Fund may utilize modefing tooks provided by thied-party
weridans 1o determine fait values of foneign {non-U 5] securibes. For these
purposes, any mevement in the applicable reference index or instrument
["zero trigger” ] between the earlier dose of the apphcabile Toresgn market
and the NTSE Clase may be desmed to be a ugnifscant event, prompticg the
applicanion of the peicong model (eflectrvely resulting in dady Tair

waluations). Foreign exchanges may permit trading in Soreign {non-U.5.)
equity secuities on days when the Trust i5 net open lor business, wiech may
feslt in @ Fund's portlolio imeesiments being aflected whin Unithalders ane
unabfe to buy or sell units

Senior secured fleating rate loans for which an active secondary market exists
1o & reliable degree will be vatued at the mean of the Last available bidrisk
preces in the market foe such loans, as pronadied by a Pricing Senvice. Senioe
secured fioating rate loams Tor which an aceve secondary markes does not
041 1o a rehable disgras wll b valoed at fair value, which it imtended 1
appronmate market value Invalung a semior secured Moating rate lean a1
faar valuse, the factors considensd may indhude, bt are not imited to, the
Telkowing: (a) the creditworthiness of the borower and any intermediate
participanis, (o) the tevms of the loan, (¢} tecent prices in the maket for
similar laans, if amy, and {f) recent prices in the market for instements of
similar qualdy, sate, penod until ned mlened rate nifed and maturity

I tmends valosd in curmencies offer chan the furchions Curtency

of a Fund are converted to the funchional osrercy wing exchange rates
ebiained from Pricing Senices. A5 a result, the value of such investments and,
in purn, thee MY af the Fund's unith mary be affected by changes in the value
of currendes in relation to the functional currency. The value of investments
teaded in Soneign markets or denominated in ourrencies other than

the functional currency endy be affecied sigmficantly on a day that the Tiet i
not open for business. As a result, 1o the extent that a Fund hodds foreign
[ron-UL% ) investments, the value of those imestrents may change at times
whin you canrgl punchase, redesm or exchange unith and the vilue of such
imvestments will be rellected in the Fund's et caloulated WAV

Imvestmends for which market quotes or market-based valuations are not
readily available are vatued at fair value as determined in good faith by

the Manages of persons acting a1 thes direction The bManager has adopted
methads for valuing securities and other assets in ciroumstances where
market quotes arg nat readily available, and has delegated to PIMCO the
respansibility Tor apphang the s valoxiion methads. In the event that market
quetes or market-based waluations ate not readdy available, and the security
or asset cannol be valued pursuant to a Manager approved valuation
misthod, the valoe of the secuty ar asset will be deteemined in good Fath by
the Valuation Commitiee: Market quotes are considened not readily available
in oreumstances wheie theve is an absence of nament or religble markes
based data (e q. vade information, bidlask infarmation, mdicative market
quenations [*Broker Quotes”), Pricing Services” prices), indudng whese
events oocur altes the dose of the rebevant market, but prior 1o the NYSE
Clase, that materally affect the values of the Fund's secunties ar st In
additian, macket quotes ae consadeted not readdy avalable when, due 10
extracedinary oroumstances, the exchanges or markets on which the
secitities Srade do not open for Trading for the entire day and no ather
markeq praces are reailable The Manager is resporabie for monitaning
significant events that may matenally affect the values of the Fund's securites
or assets and bor determaning whether the value of the applicable securities or
asgets should be resvatuated in Bght of such significant events

‘When a Fund uses faer valuation io determine the vaiue of a portiolie seowity
or other asset for purposes of cakulating s MAY, such ewestments will not

be priced on the basis of quotes bom the primary market in whith they ae
traded, bt rather may be priced by another method that the Manage: o
peersoer acung At thedr dinection believe reflects fair value, Fair valuaten may
require subjectve determinations aboust the value ol a secuity. While

the: Trust's pelicy o interded 10 result i 8 calculation of a Fund's RAY that
Tairy reflects security values & of the teme of pridng, the Trust cannat ensuze
than fair walues determired by the Manager or persons acting at their
ditection would accurately reflect the peice that a Fund could obtain foe a
secunty i it were 1o dspose of that tecurity a5 of the tme of pricng (o
irestance, in a foroed or distressed sale}. The peices used by a Fund may differ
fram the value that weald be realized if the secunties were soid

) Fair Valoe Hisrarehy U5 GAAP descrbes fair value as the price that

A Figd veoield riciennd ba dall an didet .'sru.r,".p'.la'l:.hn & el 1n i iderly
Transacton babween market patbopants at the measusement date
establishes a lair value hierarchy that pronitaes inputs to vahuation methods
and recuites diickosune of the Fair value hierarchy, separately for each majce
cateqary of assets and habilitses, that seqregates far value measurements imo
fevels {Lewved 1, 2, o0 3) The inputs or methodolngy used forvaluing seourites
aie nok necessanly an indation of the rsks assoosted with Evesting in those
secunities. Leveds 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hietanchy ane defined a5 follows:

® Level 1—{Quoted prices in active markets or emchanges for identical assets
and liabikties

® Level 2—Significant ather shiaercablie inputs, which may mdude, bt ane
not imited to, quoted prices for similar assets or Eabilites in markets that are
actrve, quoted prices for identical or similar assets o liabilities in markets that
ate nod ek, inputs other than quoted prices that e obiercable far the
assets o Rabilities (such as interest rabes, yield cunves, wolatiities, prepayment
speeds, loss seventies, oredit risks and default rabes) or other market
conobarated mputs

# Level 3—Significant unobsenable inputs based an the best mformation
available in the crcumskances, to the extent obsenvable mputs ane not
available, which may indude assumptions made by the Manager or persons
aching at their desctan that are used in determining the fair value of
ivestments

Assets or hiabilites categorzed as Level 2 or 3 a5 of penod end have been
transfened betwesn Levels 2 and 3 sinos the prior period due 1o changes in
thax meshod wtilzed in valuing the investments. Trasalers from Level 2 to Level
3 are a result of a change, i the namal course of business, Inom the wse of
vilyation methods weed by F!u;ln_; Seraioid (Level 20 1o the e of o brober
quobe of valuation technique which utilizes significant unobsencable inputs
due to an absence of curent or rebiablie market-based data (Level 3]

Transhers from Level 3 1o Level 2 are 3 result of che avslability of current and
teliahle market-based data piowaded by Pricirg Senvices or other valuatian
techriques which utilize significant chservatde inputs

In accandande wiih the requeements ofUs GAAF, the amounis of transfers
in and oot of Level 3, f matenal, ate dischosed in the Notes to Schedule of
Irivestments for each respactive Fund

Foe Fair valuations wiang sigraficant unobservable inputs, U 5. GAAP jequres
1o declose transfers into and out of Lewel 3 of the fair value hieraechy and
purchases and issues of Level 3 assets and liabilities during the peniod
Additionally, L5, GAAP requres quantitative information regarding the
sagnificant uncbservabile rputs used in the desermination of Tair walue of
assets of Rabilities categonized as Level 3 in the fair value hiesarchy. in
acnsdance with the requirernents of UL S GAAR, a fair value hierarchy, and if
mabenad, details of -.qnll'u;..nl yngbisenvable mputs, have been incduded i the
Botes to Schedule of Enestments for each respactive Fund
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Ie] Valuation Techniques and the Fair Valus Hiararchy

Lewed 1, Laval 2 amd Lewal 3 tvading assets and trading Rabilities, a1

fair valon The valuation methods (of " techriques™) and wm‘.l:al'. infuts
usad i determheng the far values of portiabe secunties of ather assets and
ligbities cabegorized as Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hiesarchy
ane a5 ollows

Fruid inccemi securilied inchpdng oompocabe, comsembie 03 muncipsl Bonds
and rates, U5 govemment agencies, U 5. treasury obligations, sovereign
1ssues, bank lpans, convertibie preferred secunties and non-ll5. bonds are
noemalky vidued on the basis of quates cbtained Biom brokers and dedlers o
Priging Services that use broter-dealer quotations, repored trades of
walization estimates froem their inbemnal pricing models The Pricing Senvices
inpernal models uee mputs that aoe obsencale such ik nduer defals, intenest
rates, yield ounes, peepayment speeds, cred nisksfspeeads, default rates and
quoted prices for similar assets. Secunities that use simila valuation
techniques and inguts a5 described above are categored 2t Level 2 of the
Tasr walue Bheraichy

Faed income securities purchased on a defayed -delivery basis oras a
repurchase comemitment in a saée-buyback ransaction ace marked 1o markel
daily el serthement a1 the Terward sertemant date and are categanized &
Leseel 2 of the fair value hiesarchy.

Mottgage-telated and assef-bached securitios ane usually ssued a5 separate
panches, of dasdes, of secunites within cach deal These weourities ane 3450
normalky vabued by Pricing Serdices that use beoker-dealer quotations,
reparted trades or valoation estimates from their mbennal pricing models. The
pricang madels for these securties usually consider tranche-level atinbutes,
ourrent market data, estmated cash flows and market-based yield spreads for
eath tranche, and incompaorate deal collateral perdormance, as available
Maorgage-telated and asset-bached securities that vl similar valuation
technigues and inputs a3 described aberve are cabegoned o Level 2 of the
Taar walus hierarhy

Cammen stacks, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and linangial derratne
instrumens, such as fugures gontracts, nights and waerans, or oitions an
futures that are traded on a national securities exchange, are stated at the
last meported sale or sestlement price on the day of vatuation To the extent
these secunties ane aotmedy raded and valuation adjustments are not appled,
they are categovized as Level 1 of the Fair value hierardhy

Imvestmenas valued {dencminated) in currencies ather than the functional
OEnengy of a Fund 3¢ comened to the funclional cuinendy uhing exchangs
rates [curency sped and Sorward rates) ob téned from Pricing Sendces. As a
result, the NAWY of a Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value of
gurrencies in relation ta the functional cumency. The value of securities traded
in fereign markets or denaminated m cumencie other than the functional
currency may be afected significantly on a day that the Trust is not open for
bugiretid. Valudtion adpusiments may be dpplied 80 oorlain securties that ane
soledy maded on a foreign enchangs 1o sccount fal the market movement
between the dose of the foseign markes and the NYSE Close. These seourities
are valued wsing Pricing Services that consider the carmelation of the Tading
patteres of the foelgn secunity 1o the intraday adng in the U 5 markets for
imestments. Securities wsing these valuaton adjustments are categorized as
Level 2 o the fair value hierarchy. Prefesred securities and other equities
readid on inactae markest o valoed b(rrl['léﬂﬂr.!‘_. TRl INSLILMmEnTS e
also categorized as Level 2 of the fair value herardhy

Equity-linked securities are valued by referencing the last reporied sale o
settlement price of the linked referenced equity on the day ol valuation
Foreign exchange adjustments ate applied to the Last reparted price to

comvert the linked equity's trading cutrency o the contract’s settling camendy
Thiede mvvestminls ot cateqonged as el 2 ol the Tair value hierachy

frrvestrnents in registered open-end rvestment companees (othes than ETFs)
will be valued basad upon the NAYS of such investments and aee calegotized
a5 Level 1 of the Lad value hierarchy Imogstments in unregistened open-tnd
irnvestment companies will be caloulated based upon the MAVS of such
irvvestments and are considered Leved 1 providied that the MAVs are
oesenable, caloulatied |:.1|I','.:1d are thevalue at whech both puechaset and
salees wall be conducted

aluation adjustments may be applied to certain exchange traded futures and
apticers b9 actount for market movesent between the exchange sefilement
and the WY3E close. Thess secunties s valued using quates obtaned from a
quotation reperting system, estabished markat makers o peicing senvces
Financial dermvatroes wsing these waluation adfustments are categoeized a6
Level 2 of the far walue begeandy

Equity exchange-traded opbons and over the counter Bnancial dervatrve

irstruments, such as forwaed fareign oumency contrads and oplions. contrads,

e thedr value Tram widderhang asset phoss, endiies, relprenoe fanes, and
ather inputs of a combinabion of these facioes. These contracts ane normally
valued o the basis of quates obtaned Trom a guotation reparting system,
et1ablished market mabers o Pricing Services (nomally determined as of the
MYSE Close). Depending cn the product and the terms of the tramactan
financial derirative instruments. can be valued by Priong Sendces using a
setie of techriques, indudeng amulatsan prcing modess The prcng models
use inputs that aee ohiered from actrvely quoted markets such a5 quoted
puices, issuer details, indices, bidfask spreads, interest rates, implied
volatdities, yield amves, dividends and exchange rates. Financial dervatne
untruments that we airmila valuation fechriguais and inputs & disenbed
abive aee categonzed as Level 2 of the lair value hierasthy

Centrally dearad swaps and over the counber swaps derive their value from
ufiderhyng aiet pioed, indices, relerenol rales, and alfer INpULE of a
combination of these Tactors They are valued using a broker-dealer bid
quekation or cn market-based pnces provided by Pricing Senvices (nomally
deteimaned o5 of the NYSE Clodsh Cerral b cheated fwapd and over the
courer wwaps can be valued by Pricing Services wsang a senes of techniques,
including ssmulation pricing madels. The pricing models may use inputs that
ate observed from actvely quoted markets such a5 the overnight index swap
rabe {"005°), LIBOR forward rate, inbedest rates, yield cunves and credic
spreads These sequities are categotized as Level 2 of the far value hierarchy

Whin a Exr valuation method is applied by the Manageer that uses sagfhicant
unobiercable inputs, snestments will be priced by a method that

the Manager or pedsons acting at their direction believe reflects fair value and
ane calegonzed as Level 3 of the fair value hierardhy

Pecey pricing prooedurnes s61 the base poce of a hined Bcome ecuity and
subsequently adjust the price proportionally to marked vabue changes of a pee-
detemened security deemed to be comparable in deration, generaly a LS
Treasury o soveteign rote baed on country of issuance. The base price may
ke & broker -dealer quote. transaction price, of & internal value & derved by
analbysis of market data. The base price of the security may be reset ona
peviodic basis based on the availability of macket data and procedures
approved by the Valuation Oversight Comerittes Sigrafcant changes in the
unobsercable inputs of the prooty pridng process: (the base price) would resull
i direch and peopaitional thanges in the fair value of the secundy These
securities ane categoried a5 Level 3 of the far value heeraochy

H thed-party evaluated vendor pricing is not avallable ar pot deemed 10 be
inchicative af L value, the Manager may ehect to oblain Broker
[afT5 108 dllcﬂl‘,“lbﬁ 1he Be ok er-thealer of F\.h.wd-'.hluuqh Broker Quate from
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Notes to Financial Statements g

a third-party vendor. In the event that Tair value is based gpon a sngle
spueced Broker Quate, these securines are catigonzed a5 Level 3 of the Tair
walise hieranchy. Broker Quates are typically recesed from established marked
participanss. Although mdependently received, the Manager does not have
the transrangngy to view the ||njrrh-1nf_| mpans which suppon the market
quedaton Signilicant changes in the Beoker Quote weould have deect and
proportional changes in the fair value of the security

Shon-term debt instruments (such & comeneroal [apt] hamang a rsmaining
mabunty of 60 days of less enay be valued at amonized oost, 56 long &3 the
amartied oost wafise of swch short-term: debt instruments is approximately the
same & the Fair value of the instument as determined without the use of
amortged oo valsplion Thse wxcunties aie categonded as Lol J of Lisael
3 of the fair value hierazchy depending on the source of the base price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

|a] Delaryed Dafivery Transactions Ceman Funds may purchase o sell
seouities on a delayed-delyery basis. These transachons imoke a
gommitmend by a Fund to purchase oo sell sacurities far a predetermined price
o yekd, with paymens and delvery 1aking place bepond the tuslomnany
settlement petiod. When delrped-delevery ransactions. are utstandng,

& Fund wall designate or recenve a5 collateral hgued assets in an amount
suflicient 1o meet the purchase price or respective obligations When
purchasing a securnity on & delaped-delivery bass, a Fund assumes the nights
and risks of ownerihip of the secunty, inciud ng the tisk of price and yiekl
Mueciustions, and takes such fluctuations nte acoount when detemnmng ils
MAY. A Fund may depose of of tenegetiate a delayed-delieny transaction
after it is entered into, which may result in a realized gain or loss. When

a Fund hars sold @ secunty on a delayed-defery basis, the Fund does not
particpate in future gains and hosses waith respect to the security

(b} Inflation-Indeed Bonds Covtan Funds may st in inflasion-indensd
bords Inflation-indexed bands ace foed income secuntes whose principal
walae is periodically adjusted by the rate of imflation The eterest rate on
these bonds is generally foed 3t issuance at & rate kower than typical bonds
Ot thee Ie of an inllasion-indexed bond, however, intedest wal b-rpad
based an a principal value, which is adjusted for inflabon. Ay increase o
decrease in the princpal amount of an inflasson-indexed bond will be induded
a4 innedest scome on the Statemens of Uperabions, éeen though mmestons do
nid recere their prircpal untd maturity. Repayment of the angiral Bond
prricipal upon maturity (35 adjusted for inllabce] is quatantesd in the case of
U5 TIFs Fed bonds that 3 not prowide a srmidar quarantes, the adjusied
prncipal walse of the bond repaid a0 maturity may be bess than che ongingl
principal

Ie] Loan Participations. Assignments and Oviginations "ertain Funds may
et in deresct debt insinuments witich ane inbenests in amounts owed o
lendess o lending synchcates by cotpesate, governmental, or ather boemowers
A Fund's envestments an loans may be in the forms of participations in loans o
assigremenits of all or a portion of Ioaes from shind parties or irvestments in of
enginations of laans by the Fund & boan is often administered by a bank or
other Enandal institution (the “lender”} that acts as agent for all holders. The
agent administers the terms of the koan, as spedhed in the loan ageement

A Fund may imeest in muhiple senes or franches of 4 loan, whach may have
waning terems and caimy different assonated ricks. When a Fund purchases
assigrmenils from benders 1 acguires direct rights against the borowers ol the
loans. Thisse baarrs may incude pariopations in bindge oans, which ang ok
taken out by bonowers fiar a shoit period (typically leis than one year)
pending arangement of more permanent finandng through, for example, the
wsuance af bonds, Trequenitly high yield bonds issued for the puspose of
BOGUSTIOnS.

Thee types af loars and related imestments in which the Funds may st
mclude, among ofthers, seniol Kang, boidndtied oand {indudng second
Tieny laeres, B-Mates and mezzaning kaans), whole kaans, commencial real
estate and other commercial loans and structured Yoans. A Fund may
aniginate laans o aoquate dinect injenests in loars theough primany loan
destrbuticns andon in private ansactiors In the case of subordnated loans,
there may be significant indebtedness ranking ahead of the borower's
obligation 10 the holder of such a loan, indudeng in the seent of The

B eaer's insoheemy. Merzaning laans are typecally seouted by a pledge of
an equity interest in the mortgage borrowwer that owns the real estate rathes
than an interest in @ morgage

Ieveerarnints in boans may include unfunded koan commimments, which ane
contractual obligations Bor funding. Unfunded loan commitments may include
revoiving credit facilibes, which may obligate a Fund 1o supply additional cash
15 the boereraer on demand Urdunded baan commitments regresent a future
ohligation in full, even thaugh a percentage of the commitied amount may
nat be utilized by the bormwer. When imeesting in a baan partiopation,

& Fond hag the rght 10 recehn: paymients af principl, mlengst and sy fees 10
whach it = entithed anly from the lender seling the loan agresment and only
upon receipt al payments by the lender trom the bomower. A Fund may
receive a commisment fee based on the wndrawn partion of the underhying
lieee of ceedit porsan of a loan. In cenain arcumstances, 3 Fund may recene a
penaity lee upon the prepayment of a loan by a bomower. Fees eamed or
paed are cecorded a5 & component of inbetest moome o interest Exense,
tespectiely, an the Slatements of Operaborn. Unfunded loan comermments
am reflected a5 a lisbfity on the Statements of Assets and Leabditees

{40 Mortgage-Ralated and Other Asset-Backed Securitios Cectain Funds may
st in mortgage-related and cther asset-backed secunties that drecthy o
mdrectly represent a partiopation in, o are secured by and payable fram
fouans on real property. Morigage-related securities are created from pools of
residential o commercial moangage lean, induding morgage foans made by
siangs and loan issticunions, morigege bankers, commercial banks and
others These sequrities provide a monthly payment which consists of bath
ireresd and puindpal. Interest may be determined by fooed or adjustable rates
The tate of prepayments on underying mertgages wel affect the price and
yolablity of a mortgage-refated seomty. and may have the efled of
shartening or extending the eflecive duration of the security relative 1o what
wirs anbopated ab the time of purchase. The timely payment of principal and
intenest of cemain morgage-related secuites & quarasieed waith the full Tath
and credit of the U 5. Government Poels created and guaranteed by mon-
gqn.'r:fmnrnt.f L b :n;ll,u!lru; govetnment spansoned corporations, may be
supported by vanows Torms of insurance o quacantess, but there can be na
assurance that paivate insureds of quarantors can meet their obligations under
the insurance polices or guaraniee amangements. Mamy aof the nsks of
Ieviesing i morgage-related seournities secuned by commercial mangage
Toares reflect the effects of local and cther economic cenditions on real estate
matkets, the abdity of tenants to make lease payments, and the ability of a
property 1o amract aned retden tenants. Thede secuntees miry be be bguid and
may exhibat geeater price volatling than other types of marigage-relsted o
oiher asset-backed secunties. Other asset-backed secunties are created from
rnany types of asdets, inchuding, bt mot limited 16, auln kaans, accounts
recefvable, such as oedi catd recetvables and hospital account recervables,
home equity loans, student loars, boat loans, mobile home Joans,
recreationgl vebucle loans, manulaciured howsang boans, areralt begdas,
compuier sates and syndicated bank loans The Fund may imeest in amy level
ol the capstal structure of an ssuer of merigage-badked or asset-backed
secursties, including the equety o "l loss” trandhe

{nh Collateralized Mortgage Obligatiens (" CN05" | are debit cbligabens ol a
Il ity 1Rt ane collmerakbed by whiols mamgage loand of pineale
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merigage bonds and drvded it classes. CMOs ane struchared into multiple
chinses, alten refermed 1o &% “ranchis”, with each dass beaning a diffesent
stated maturity and entitled 1o a different schedule far payments of prinopal
and interest, inchuding prepayments. CMIDs may be less liquid and may exhibit
greater price valatlity than other types of mergage-related or asset-backed
sarurities

Ifl Sirippad Mortgage Backed Sacuritins [*SMES™ ) are denvatne suln-class
mirtgage secunties. SMBS are usually stnachwred with two classes that receive
different proportions of the nterest and principat distributions on a pool of
mertgage dsets An SMES wall have one class that wall regene all of the
interest {tfe imenest-onky or "I0" cass), while the ather dass wall recesse the
entire principal {the principal-cnly or PO dass). Payments recerved for 10s
ard included R s e on he Statementd of Cpecanond, Becaise no
prancipal will be recenved at the magunty of an 10, adjusterents ate made 1o
the cost of the security on a monthly basis untd maturity These adjustments
are inchuded in in%erest incoes on the Statements of Operatices Payments
receved fior POs ane treated as reductions o the ost and par value of the
saCurities.

Ig) Collataraliced Debt Oblipations | C00:") mnclude Collateraloed Bond
Dbligations ("CBOs™), Collateralzed Loan Obbgatiors {CLOs") and other
similay structured securties. CBO and (L0 ane types of asset-backed
sacorities. A (BO is a trust which is backed by a diversified paol of high isk,
below imvestment grade fived income securites & CLO is a trust typically
collateal@ed by a pocd of loans, which midry inglude, among others, domeilic
and borenyn senior secured haans, senier pnsecured lnans, and suboedinate
corporate loans, induding loans that may be rated bebow mestment grade o
equivaient unrated lpans. The ks of an evestment in 3 CDO depend Laigely
on the type of the collateral securities and the dass of the CDO inwhich

a Fund irepsts. In addition o the normal risks assodabed with fioed income
securities discussed elsewhere in this repert and the Funds™ Offering
Mesnarandum (eq, prepayment mk, eredd nsk, lgodty rick, markes mik,
structural nisk, legal risk and inserest rate risk (which may be exacerbated il
the imlenest rate payable on a sinctured fnancing changes based on
mulepies al changes i irined ries of imveesly 50 charges in infedist
ranesh, CHOs, CL0s, and other COOs camy additional rigks induding, but not
limited ta, (i} the possiility that distrbutions from cofl ateral seourities will not
be adequate b make imberest or cther payments, (1) the guakty of the
collatesal may dechne in value or defaul, (in) the risk that a Fund may imest
in CAOs, CLOs, or other C00s that are suboedinate to other dasses, and (W)
the comples structure ol the secoeity may nat e Tully undesstood at the tme
of eveestment and may produce desputes with the Bauen of unepected
imvestment resulits

[ Paysseat bn-Hind Secuditien Certain Funds may invest in payment in-tind
securities (" PIKs™ ). PIEs may gree the ssver the oplion 38 each interest
Py date o snaking intetest payments in dither cash andior sdditional
debt securities. Those addibonal debt seouritses usually huree the tame teems,
inclisding maturity dabes and inferest rates, and assooated nsks as the
enginal bonds The daly market quotations of the aaginal bonds may includie
the accrued inbesest {refermed 1o 25 4 "dirty prace” ) and require a pro rata
adjustment from the unrealzed apprecation or depreciation on imvesiments
ta interest receivable on the Statements of Assets and Liabidites

[l Retricted Securitier Certan Funds may hold investments that are subgedt
1o degal or contractual restrachionds on resale. Thise securities may be sold
prevately, but may be required 1o be registered or exemnpted from such
regrstration before being sold to the public. Private placement seounbies ase
ql,lllrm'iy coriciered ta be reinetnd Dispeosal of festricied imaepiments mapy
imoghve ene-consuming regatiations and ependes, and prompd sale at an
acceplable price may be difficult to achieve Riestricted investments. el by

tha Funds at Dctobier 31, 2021, as appficable, are dsdosed in the Notes 1o
Schidule of brrestments

0 Stroctured Notes Certain Fumds may invest in structured nedes and ather
related instruments, which ae prevately negobated debt sbligations in which
the principal ared! of interest i determened by reference 10 the perloemance of
a benchmark assey, marked or interest rate (an " embedded ndex”), such &
sebecied securnities, an index of secunites or specified interest rates, o the
deffierential perlarmance of two assets of markets, such a5 indies reflecting
baonds. Struchared instruments may be issued by corporations, induding
banks, as well as by governmental agences. The tems of such structured
irsstruments ngrmally provide that their prncpal andfor infesest payments are
1 ke acusted uprwards o dowmwands (hut ordinanly mot below pers) to
teflect changes in the embedded index while the struchured instnamenis e
outstanding As a result, the intenest andior paintipal payments that may be
made on a siruciured preduct many vary wadely, depending on a variety of
factors, induding the volablity of the embedded index and the effoct of
changes in the embedded index an prancipal andfor intenest payments

&) US, Gavernmant Agenties or Government-Speadarad Entarprises
Certain Funds may irvest in secusities of U S Government agendies o
gawernment-sponsored enterpreses. U5, Government sequrities are
ahligatiors of and, in cetain cases, guaranteed by, the U 5. Government, its
Bgencies of instrumentalies. Some U S, Geverrenent seountes, sudh as
Teeasury bills, rotes and bonds, and secunitees quaranteed by the Government
Natwonal Moctgage Assocation (T GNMA™ or “Ginnie Mae™), ate supported
by the Tidl fath and credha of the U S Goetrenent others, soch a5 thods of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supparied by the mght of the issuer to
oo from the U.S. Department of the Treasury (the “U 5. Treasiry™k and
athers, juch ag those of the Federal Natianal I\.l"a:qg.)ql_' Assoaahon | FNMA®
of " Fareie Mae™). are supported by the discetonary authority of the LS
Givpmment to purchase the agendy's chligations. U5 Goverement securities
iy indude 2600 Coupan secuibes, wich do nol detnbute injenest on g
curtent basis and tend 1o be subject 1o a greater rak thas intenest-paying
securities of simdar maturites

Govermment-telated guatantars {i e, nat backed by the ful faith and cedit of
the U 5. Govemment) incude FRA, and the Federal Home Loan Mongage
Cewpoeation {"FHLMC™ or *Freddie Mac™). FNMA 5 a govemment-sponsored
corporation. FNMA parchades comventional {1.e, nat insuned or guaranteed by
Aty goveerrenent agency) residential momgages from a list of appeoved
sellarsfsaniicers which include state and federally chanered sxangs and loan
assocabons, mubkal srvings banks, commencial banks and credit unigns and
mgigage bankers. Padg-through secuntses situed by FRIMA are quaranbesd o5
1o timely payment of prncipal and irerest by FMA, but are not backed by
the ful faith and credit of the U.5. Gowernment. FHLME rsues. Particpation
Cartificates ("PCs™), which are pass-thisugh securities, each reprssanting an
undiided interest in a pool of residental mongages. FHLMC guatantees the
timely payment of intevest and ultimate colection of principal, but PCs are not
bascked by the full faith and coedit of the U % Government

I bune 2019, FNALA and FHLMC started isguing Uniform Mestgage Baded
Siecuritses {"UMBS" } in place of their curent alferings of TRA-slighde
secunties {the 'Slm]le 'quunr,' nrtiatnee” ) ﬂwi:ngeﬁcm'lt:,- Initiatme seeks
1o support the overall bauidity of the TBA market and aligns the
characteristics of FNMA and FHLMC cemficates The elfects that the Single
Security Initiathe may have on the market for TRA and other mortgage-
bpckied seouibes ae yncerian

Redl-timing sirategies can be used where a Fund seeks to extend the
expitation o masurity of @ posttion, wkch 25 a TRA security on an underlying
assrl, by chofang oul thee poston l:r‘rl:l'l'l"lr.lr-llll:ﬁ and ppening & nisw
peosition wath respect 1o substantally the same wnderhing Fsset with a lacer
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expiration date. TEA securities purchased or sold are reflected on the
Statements of Azsets and Liabalibies a5 an asset or kablity, respectnely

Ml When-lssued Transactioas Certain Funds may purchase or sell sequrities
o 3 whirrisised basis. Thede tratdadsant e made :.b'id:llml.,llh- Becaute @
spcurity, alibough authorized, has not et been dsued in the markes
Transacticns to purchase ca sell sequrities on a when-ssued basis imvolve

a commitrent by 3 Fund ta purchase o sell these seamties ke a
predesemingd price of yild, with payment snd delreeny taking place beyond
the customary settlement pedicd A Fund may sell when-issusd sequrities
before they are delivered, which may result in a realized gain or loss

Im] Bank Dbligationa Bank chiligations in which a Fund may imvest mclude
certificates of depost, bankers’ acceptances, and foed time depouts
Certificates of deposit e negotiable certificates ksued against funds
depesited in a commercial bank for a definite period of time and earning a
speabied retum. Bankers Teplances &g n{‘};‘lhﬂj!{' drafts or balls ol
exchange, rotmally drawn by an importes or exportes bo pay Tor speafic
merchandise, which are "accepted” by a bank, meaning, in effect, that the
bank uncondisonally agress 1o pay the face value of 1Be irtrument on
matunty Fived time depesits are bank obligations payable at a stated
maturity date and bearing interest at a foed rate. Fined time deposits may be
wathekimn o demand by the smvestar, But miy be subjed 16 ealy

wathd vl penaliies which vary depending upon market coaditions nd the
remaining maburity of 1he obligation

|n} Pas{armance-Linked Mates Certan Funds invest in perfoemance-linked
nodes that aci isued by Credit Suisse International (the ™ Fee .l'l.gml'] and
spek 1o track the pedamande of the FIMOO Bermuda Income Fund (M)

[" Pesformance-Linked Neges™) In the case of the IFY Perlormance-Linked
Nortes isswed, the perfcemance al such notes will be hedged 12 the lapaness
win by Credit Sumse [nbemabdngl uiing d:llw'li‘l.r_.".m-'luh A eplimned sh
greater detad in Note 9, the Fee Agent will finance the payment of platement
Tes to certain Japanese destibubons. In onder for the Fee Agent to hedge
certain of i3 epoduates under the Fee Ager Appasnitment Agreement [
defined in Mote 9}, i is expected that from time to ime certain Classes of the
PINGCD) Bermunda incomse Fund E will invest in Perfformance-Linked Nedes in an
Ao ',p-l:~;_1||cd Iy the Fis Agient A1 the temie af evintt rcluding, But mat
limited o, ary redemption of units of the PRMCO Barmuda Income Fund E
amd a step-down of the applicable Percentage Contingent Deferred Sales
Charge {"C05C"), a5 defined m Note 9, the Pedorance-Linked Notes held
by the Fund will be parially redeemed accondngly in arder to mamain the
total vatue of Performance-Linked Motes in the Fund's investment portislio
equal ba o blow the amount of the COSC applicable ta th respective
Classes of the Fund plus 0 20% muloplied by the AW of the respecve
Classes of the Fund. Perlormance-Linked Motes are valued daly Thes value s
based on the pnor day BAY of the PIMCD Bermida Income Fund (M) With
nespt o the vl of the &Y Performance-Linked Mates, a proginetan
hedging iormula is also appled The Fund carnot transfer the Perfoemance:
Linked Mobes to any other party aside from the Fee Agent without the prior
waitlen ageement af the Fes Agem

5. BORROWINGS AND DTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The Tellgwang desclosyres contain indormation on the Funds” ability 1o bend o
borrow cash o securites 1o the extent pesmitted under the OFering
Memorandum, which may be viewsed a5 boercwirg or finanong transactions
by the Funds The location of these instruments 15 described below: For a
detaded desenption of credit and counterpaety ks that can be assocraied
wath bewmawangs and ather financing transactons, please see Nate 7,
Prancipal and Oitheer Risis

fa) Repurchass Agresments Certain Funds may engage in reputchase
agreements. Linder the terms of a typical repurdhase agreement,

a Fand purchases an underlying debt cbfqation (collateral) subject to an
ohligation of the seller to repurchase, and a Fund 1o resall, the obligation at
an agreed-upon prce and time In an cpen matunty repurchase agreement,
thene is no pre-determmed repurchase date and the agreement can be
terunated by the Fund or coustematy at anyg time. The market valoe of the
collateral must be equal to or euceed the total amount of the repuichase
obligatiors, induding ivterest Repurchase agreaments, nduding accrued
imenest, are included on the Statemenss of Assets and Liabiities. Ingenest
eamned is recorded 3 a companent of inberest imgome on the Statements of
Cperations. bn periods of increased demand for collateral, a Fund maypay a
{iei fior receapl of eollateral which may hisull 0 Ingenest expenda o the Fund

%) Roverss Reporchase Agresmsats Cerian Funds may enter info reverse
repurchase sjpreements In a reverse epucchane sgreement, a Fund delhvers a
sequnty in exchange for cash to a finanaal institution, the countesparty, wath
A simultaneous agreement 1o repurchase the same or substanbially the same
SECUty M an .aq‘l:-rd upion prce and dae In  apen MUy tere
tepurchase agreement, there 15 no pee-determaned repurchase date and the
agreement £an be terminated by the Fund or counderpasty at any tme

& Furd 15 entrled bo receive principal and intesest paymends, f amy, madi on
the secunity delvened 1o the countesparty duting the term of the agreement
Cash recemved in exchange for securities delversd phus acoued inferest
payminls b be made by o Fund fo countecparties e reflecied a5 a2 Inablity
on the S1atements of Assets and Liabilnies, Imerest payenents made by a Fund
iz counterparties are recorded a5 3 compaonent of inerest expense on the
Snaberments of Operations In periods of increarsed demand for the security,

& Fund mary recene & Tee Tor e of the secunty by the counterpary, which
may result in irterest income toa Fund A Fund will seqregate assets
determaned 1o be gqued by PIMCO or will cthenwise oover i chiigations
undler tiverse repurchate agreements

fed Saln-Buybacks Crertain Funds may enter inta financing transactam
refierted o as "sale-buybacks’. A sale-buyback financing ransaction consists
of a sate of & securnity by a Fund to a financial insttution, the counteipaty,
with 3 smidianeous agneement 10 nepurchade the same of substantially the
same sequrity at an agreed-upon prce and date. A Fund is nat entrtled 1o
eecedve prinopal and Enterest payments, if any, made on the securiy sold ta
the counterparty during the teim of the agreement The agreed-upon
preopid fod securitied vo be repurchased by 2 Fund e reflecied a5 a lakelity
on the $atemsents of Assets and Liabilities. A Fund will recognize net inoome
represented by the price differential betwoen the price receved for the
trafsfened swouity and the agresd-upon repuichase prce This i commanly
eeferied to as the 'price drop’. & price diop corssts of (i) the laregone inerest
and inflationary income adprstments, @ any, a Fund would have otheraise
el had the secunty nat besn sold anad (il the nigotiated F|:'s°1r'r:|m:| i
Esetwipen & Fund amd cousterparty. Foregone intetet and inflationary incoene
adjustments, if any, are recorded as components of interest income on the
Staterments of Operations. Intevest payments based upon negotiated financng
terms made by a Fund to counterparties ane recoeded a5 a companent ol
imerest axpense on the Statements of Dperatons. [n peviods of inoeased
demand for the security, a Fund may receive a fee for use of 1he security by
the countesparty, whiach may resalt in interest meome 1o 4 Fund A Fund wall
segreqate assets determined o be bgued by PIMCO or will othenwse cover its
obibgaticrs under sale-buyback trarsachions

W) Shert Salex  Certan Funds may enter into short sales transactions. Shost
Lales i Haribchond n which the Fund 2ells 2 Sicurety that it mdy Aot own
A Fund may make short sales ol seountees 1o (i) offset potential dechnes in
loeng positions. in semilar seowritees, (i) to inrease the flewlility of the Fund
(i) for imvestment retum, (vl as part of a risk arbirage strateqy, and i) as
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part of its overall portfolic management sirategies invabing the use of
dermaive islruments. When a Fund engages in 8 short sale, it oy boriow
the security sokd shaet and delrer it to the counieipaty, The Fund wall
ardinanly hawe to pay a fee or premium to bomow a seawity and be obligated
ta repay the lender of the security any dividend or imterest that accrues on the
sacurity during the pericd of the Jaan. Securities sold in sheet sale ransactons
and the dividend or interest payable on such secwities, if any, are reflected as
pryabile lor shon saled on the Staterments of Asiets and Liasbikties. Shor sales
expode the Furd 10 the risk that it will be requined 1o cover its short position
at a time when the security or other asset has apprecated in vafue, thas
resaiting in losses ta the Fund A short sabe is " against the box” if

the Furd holds in s partfelio o ke the right 10 soquire the seounty sold
shost, or securities identical 1o the seourity scld short, at no additicnal cost

A Fund will be subject to additional risks to the extent that it engages in short
sales that e not " agmsndt the box ™ A Fund's loss on a shom sale could
thecwetically be unlimited an cases wheee the Fund is unable, for whatever
reason, bo hose out its short positon

{#] Lime of Credit FINCO Bermoda Bank Loan Fund (M) entesed inso a 364
day sensor unsecured revobing cred? agreement with the Bank of Tokyo-
Mirtsubigha UF), Lid {"MUFG"] and othé commenoal banks 1o be utlized for
temparany purpeses to fund Unithalder redemgitions of for sther shor-berm
liquidity purposes. MUFG serves a5 both a bank and a5 an agent for ather
banks that ane paities 10 the agreemeny. AIMOD Barmypda Bank Loen Fund
(M} pays Fnancing charges based on a combination of LIBOR-based variable
plus a credit spread. The Fund also pays a Tee of 0 275% per annum on the
unigied commament amounts. The spreement wad rendwed an Auguat 21,
2021 and expires on Ausgust 21, 2022 unless exterdad of renewed. There s a
maxemum aealable commitment amount for PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan
Fund (4 equal to S45 000,000, Prigv 1o .ﬁ.l.t.]u:.t 21, 2031, the maxesium
avalable commitrmesn amount for the Fund wars $55,000,000 and the Fund
paid a fee of 0 275% per annum on the unused comemitment amounis.
Commitment, uplront and interest fees of 236,435 pasd by PIMCD Bormuda
Bank Loan Fued (M} e included m ntens spense in the Stamementy of
Operatices

Dunrg the penod, there were no bdmawangs on 1his hne o eredit

B. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fellewing desclosures canain infsrmation on how and why the Funds ue
Tinancial desivative instruments and how fnancial decvative insoruments.
aflect the Funds” financial pasition, results of operationd #nd cash Tlows. The
locanion and Tar value amognts of thise mstruments on tThe Statements of
Mssets and Liabilities and the nef realzed gain (loss) and net change n
unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on the Statements of Opevations, sach
careganged by type of financial dervatiee contract and related risk expoture,
are imcluded ina table in the Notes to Schedule of Imestments. The financial
derivative instruments cutstanding as of peniod end and the amounts of net
realined gann {losd) andl et change in uregalzed apprecation fdepreciation)
on financal dersvative instruments duting the periad, as declosed in the
Nodes o Schedule of Imvestments, serve a5 indicators of the vohame of
firgecial derreatroe activity for the Funds

|s] Forvaard Foreign Currency Contraets Certain Funds may engage in
feewand I'un-:q‘l CITency COnlEacts in canmection wath Lemthng pu-mruJ
purchases or safes af sevuntes, 1o hedge the curtency expasune Fssocated
wath some or all of 2 Fund's securnities or a5 part of an imvestment strategy. A
Torward foneign currency conlrach is an ageoemint between two partes 1o buy
and sell & currency at a et price on a future date. The market value of 3
Terwiand foreign curency contract fluctuabes wath changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Foreard foveign cumency contracts are macked to market

dady, and the change in value = recofded by a Fund a5 an unnealized gain o
fos. Peafized quns o losses ate equal 1o the difference between the value of
the contract at the teme it was opened and the value a1 the time i was dosed
and ane recorded upan delivery or receipt of the curency. These contracts
ity imegrhee mar ket risk in exoess of the wreealzed gain or less refiected on
the Statements of Assets and Lishdities In addition. a Fund could be exposed
1o risk if the counterparties are unable to meet the terms of the contracts or if
the value of the ourency changes wavarably 1o the functanal currency, To
mmitigage such sisk, cash or sequnties may be exchanged a2 collateral pursuant
1o the terms of the underhying contracts

Certain Funds, having a hedged Clads, may atso enter inba Tosward foreign
cuitency ceriracts designid 1o offset the effect of hedepng at the Fund leved n
ordiar to leave the hedged Class with an exposure 1o currencies other than the
functional curency. There can be no guarantee that these Class speahc
Torevaed Sareign currency contracts will be saocessiul

) Futures Contramts Certain Funds may emtes imndo fuliees contacts A
fubures conbract is an agreement o buy or sell a seourity or other asseq for a
set price on 3 future date and is traded on an exchange. A Fund may we
Tutunes conbiacts 1o Mansge is expasune 10 the secunites markets of 1o
minerments in inlerest rates and cuntency vatses The primary risks associated
with the use of futures contracts ase the impesfect comelation between the
chandge in martket walue of the secunities held by & Fund and the prices of
futures contracts and the possibility of am dliquid market Futunes contracts
are valoed based upon their quoted daly setflement prices. Upan entering
ety a futures contracy, 2 Fund it reguared 1o deposit with its fotures broker an
amount of cash, U5 Gowernment aed Agency Obligations, or seled soverengn
debit, in acoordance with the initial margin requirements of the broker or
euchange Futures comtracts ane matked to market daily and hased on such
miwermeris in the price of the contracts, an appropriace payable or recewvable
for the change invalue may be posted or collected by the Fund [ Futsres
‘ariation Margin™ ). Futures Yariation Maegins, # any, ane dischosed within
cenirally deaned financisl derrsatme instiuments on the Sarements of A
and Liabdites. Gains of losses are reqogrized but not consadered reafized unbl
the contracts expire or dose. Futures condracts involve, 10 vanying degrees,
sk of logs in encess of the Futures Vatiation ".'!.b'.]ln mchuded wathin
exchange traded or centrally deared financial dervatie instruments on the
Saatements of Assets and Liabikties

le} Optiona Contraets Certain Funds may wnte or purchase options to
erMance reluns of o hiddge an exisling positen or {utune irvestment. Cemam
Furds may weite call 2nd put options on securites and financal detratie
imstruments they own or in which they may invest. Wiiting put options tends
12 increase a Fund's expasune 1o the underkang instrament. Writing call
apticrs tends to decrease a Fund's exposure to the undethying snstrument
Whien a Fund wiites 3 cafl or put, an amournt equal to the premium recesed is
recoeded and subsequoently matked to marke] o tefiecy the curient valis of
the cption weriten These amounts aie indaded on the Statements of Asets
and Lesbalithes. Premiumss reveseed from writing options which axpire are
treated i realeed gains. Premiures recerved from waiting options which are
exeicrbed of closed are added to the procesds o offset agarnt Enounts paid
an the underying futunes, swap, securdy of curenty transacton to determing
the reafed gain or boss. Certain options may be written wath premiums 1o be
deteimaned on & futee date The premiwns o chise optians ane based upan
imphied velatdiny parameters at specilied terms A Fund as a weiter of an
opticen has no control over whether the underdying nstrument may be sold
{"cal"}or purchassd {"put”™) and a5 a nesat bears the market risk of an
unlavorale change in the prece of the instnoment underhying the whitten
opticen There is the risk a Fund may not be able to enter into a daosing
Transacton because of an digud market
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Cevtain Funds may abio purchase put and call cptioes. Purchading <all options
perds 10 inknisine & Fund's exposune Do the undething sstrument Fuschaiang
put epsons tends o decrease a Fund's exposute b the undering instument
A Fund pays a premium which is induded as an asset on the Statements of
Assiets and Liobilgies and sbsequensly marded 1o market 10 neflect the
current vabue of the option. Premiums paid Tor punchasies options which
expire are treated as realized bosses. Certain options may be purchased with
premnans 50 b detemined ona future date. The pmiumS {or thase ool
are based upon implied volatibey paramebers. a specifed tems. The ek
asseaated with purchasing put and call options is limited to the premium
paid Premiums paid for puschasng eptions which are exesoued or dased ane
added 10 the ameurts paid or alfbet againgt the procesds on the uedeting
imvestment transaction to desermine the realized gain or loss when the
underlying bransacton is executed

Cawdit Duliault Swaptions Certaen Fundh many wreibe or purchase credss defaul
swap afrs. bo hedage expaiure 1o the credit isk of an imeeiment withioul
making a commitment 1o the underlying instrument. & credi default swaption
is an ogtion to-sell or buy tedit protection 1o a specilic mlerence by entering
it & pri-defined e aqreement by some spscrfied date & the Tutune

Foreign Curremey Options Certan Funds may wiite of puichase foregn
fuerendy cptions 1o be used as a short of long hedge against possbile
variatices in foreign exchange rates o 1o Gain exposere 1o Torsgn owrencies

Inflation-Capped Dptiene Certain Funds may wite or purchase inflation-
Capped obans 80 enhande hebutng or o hedging cpportumtars The pupose
of purchasing indlation-capped opbices is 1o protect a Fund from infation
eicson above a certain rate on 3 given notional exposure. A floor can be
usid 30 gve downiide protection 10 imvestmens in nllaton-linked products

Imnrmst Rate Swaptiens Ceitain Funds may wiite of purchase inbisest tate
swap bons. which are options 1o enser info a pre-defined swap agreement of
bo shorten, extend, caocel or athersse modify an exsting swap sgreement,
by some specihed date i the Subure. The writer of the swaption becomes the
counterparty 1 the swap if the buyer exeroises The inferest rate swaptaon
agreement will specify whether the buyer of the swapbon will be a fved-rate
recexer oo 3 fued-tate payer upon exendse

Dptions sn Exchanpe Traded Futures Contracts Cotan Funds may wile o
purchase optiors on exchange-traded futuees contracts {"Fufures Option”) to
hedge an existing positon or futune investment, for speculative pumoses or fo
manage expoiure 1o market movements. A Futures Optian 15 an opbon
coriract im which the underkrng instrament is a single rtures contract

Dptions sn Securitins Certain Funds may waite of purchase apbors on
securities B0 enhanoe returms of to hedge an exsting position or fuhare
imeesment An oplion on & security wes a ':.p{'{lfil:\d secutily a5 the l..-,‘i:rhmg
instiument fat the optan cantrac

[] Swinp Agresmswts Certan Funds may arest in swap agreements Swap
agreements ane bilaterally negobated agreements between a Fund and a
CounhEpaty i ['Joqh.]n.]-:-:t WP icvestment cash flcvas, a5t I'n'l:v.qn
currenoes or market-linked requrns at specified, futwre intenvals Swap
agreements may be provabely negotiated in the OTC market or may be deared
throagh a thand party, known a5 3 central counserparty or detivatioes Clearing
GOgantatan :'crnl-alh cheaned swaps™ ) A& Fund iy Bnbe inD asiet, credi
default, oss-amency, mfenest rate, total return, vanance and other forms of
SWap agreements 1o manage its exposuee b cedil, curency, inberest rate,
commodity, equity and inflation fisk In conmection with thése dgreements,
securines of cash may be identified as collateral or mangs in accondance with
thee terms of the respective swap agreements o provide assets of value and
recaurse & the event of defauh o hank ngiopirmohnngy

Centrally cleared swaps are marked o market daily based upon valuaticss a5
derermaned from the undiedying contract of in scooidaece with the
requiremsenis af the central counterparty of derwrabives deareng organizatssn
Changes in market vakse, if any, are rellecied a5 a compenent of net change
n unrealied appreciation [deprecation) on the Statements of Dperations
Duady changes in valuation of centrally deared swiaps (™ Swap Vanaton
Margin®}, if any, are disclosad within centrally deared finandal derivative
wrtruments on the Strements of Assers and Labilimes QTC S Pyt
receoed or pand at the beginning af the measusement petiod ate induded on
the Statements of Assets and Lisbditees and represent premivens paid or
received upon enteding o the swap ageeement 10 compensate fos
diflerences betaenn the stated teims al the swap peement and prevailng
market conditions [credit spreads, oumency exchange rates, interest rates, and
ather relevant factors). Upfent premiums recerved (paid) are inttially recorded
a5 liablinies (rigets) and subdequently matked to marked bo reflecy the ouent
value of the swap These upfromt premiums are recorded s realzed gains or
hoessies on the Statements of Operations upon termination or maturity of the
pwap. A liquidation payment recened of made ot the erminatich af the NP
i recorded &5 realized gain o loss an the Statements of Operations, Nel
pevindic paymenss recesed or paid by a Fund ase induded a5 part of realized
gas of losses an the Statements of Dperations

For pusposas of apphong certain of a Fund's imestment policies and
restrctions, swap agreements, libe other derrative instruments, may be
wilued by a Fund a1 market vabae, notional value o Tl exposyee value En the
case of & coedi defuh swap, in applyng cenain of the Fund's imestment
palicies and restrictions, the Fund will walue the credit default swap at its
naticnal value of it full exposune value fi.e, the sum of the notienal amount
o theé cantise Pl the market valuel, bt iy ik khe cridht delimlt fEE L]
at market value for purpases of apphying certain of the Fund's other
rmestment policies and restrictions. For exampla, the Fund may valee credit
dedault vovaps at Tull expersure value fo purpeses ol the Fund's eredi qualing
quidekres {if any) because such value i general better reflects the Fund's
actudl economa: exposure duting the term of the credit default swap
agretment A eult, 8 Fund mapy, o hmes, hied rdtidnal sxpdsune 16 @
st clarss (befone pettieg) that b greater of lesser than the stated limit o
restriction neted in the Fund’s Offering Memorandum. In thes contet, both
the notignal amaunt and the market value may be posative or negative
depending on whether the Furd r sellng or buying pretection thicugh the
crecht default swap. The manmer in which certain secunites ar other
wntruments ane valusd by the Fund lee P al om.\_rnq mvisiment
policies and restrictons may differ fram the manner in which thee
ervestments ae valued by other types of mvestods Entering inba swap
agreements ivobves, fo vaning degrees, elements of imterest, credit, market
and documentation risk in exgess of the gmounts regagniped on the
Statermenis of Assets and Liabikties Such risks imvolve the posshiley that
there will be no boguid market for these agreements, that the counterparty 1o
the agreements may default on s chdgation 5o perform or disagree as to the
mieaning of contraciual teims mn the agreements and that thene may ke
unfavorable changes in intenest rates or the values of the asset upon which
Tha s i based

A Fund's maamum risk of borss from countespaty credit risk i the deoowned
et value of the cash flows 1o be received from the counterparty over the
consract’s remaining life, 1o the extent that amount is pasitve The risk may
ke mmiitigated by hening & maste: netting aerangement between a Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collaterat 1o a Fund to cover a Fund's
exposure o the counferparty

To the extent a Fund has a pelicy 1o b the net amount gwed 1o or 1o be
recened Tram a Single counterpany under easling Secp agreementd, such
lirmitation onby appfies o counterparties to OTC swaps and does nat apply to
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centrally cleared swaps where the counterparty is a central counterparty or
derrvatrees cheanng oigand ation

Cowdit Dafault Swap Agreemests Cestan Funds may enter info credt defac
Swaps on cofporate, baan, sovereign, US mummopal of U5 Treadury ssues te
provide a measure of protection aganst defautis of the issuers {i e, o reduce
nisk where a Fund cons or has mposure 1o the referenced cbligation] or to
rake ar setive long of shait podition with regpect o the Bkelihood of a
particuiar fssuer's defauly Credd default swap agreements mmobe ong party
making a stream of payments (refemed to as the buyer of protection) to
andther paity (th felled of pratection) sh exchunge e the nght to e a
specified rebum in the event that the referenced entty, obfgation cr index, as
specified i the swap agreement, undergoes a certam credit event As a seller
of pretection on credit delault swap agreements, a Fund will generally recene
Tram the busser of protection a fowed rate of income througheut the teem of the
swap pervided that these is o credit event As the seller, a Fund would
effectronty 33d leverage to s partlolio because, in addition ta its otal net
asets, the Fund would b subjisct 1o mestnint sxpodure on the notional
amount of the swap

I a Furnd i & seller of protection and a oredit event oours, 35 delined undes
the terms of that pariodar swap agreement, a Fund wall either (3] pay 1o the
buyer of protection an amount equal to the noticnal amaunt of the swap and
takce delivery of the referenced obliqation, other debverable obfigations o
underknng scuntes comphing the el enced i ce {ub fulry & ol
setlement amount in the form of cash of secuntes equal o the rotional
ameut of the swap less the recovery value of the referenced cbdgation or
||ru:cr.‘pm; SeCUNtiEs compeising the rederenced index If 3 Fund 15 a bruryer af
pratection and a credit event oocurs, 2 deflined under the tenms of that
partiodar swap agreement, a Fund wall either (1} recesve from the salier of
protecion an amount equal to the national amouns of the swap and dislnoer
the referenced cbhgation, other delverable cbligations o urderlying
sacurities compresng the referenced index or (i) recesve a net settiement
ameunl i the farm ol canh or securities equal 20 the netsonal amount of the
s heas the recovery vilue af the relerenced abligation or underhing
sacurities compresing the referenced indiex. Recovery valses are estimated by
markes makers considering eitter industry standard recoveny rates or entity
speatic factors and considerations untd a credit event oocurs If 3 credil event
has acomred, the recovery value is determined by a lacilnated sucben
wherelry a minimum number of dlowable broker bads, together with a
-.-L:l:'n;l.‘r-dv.lll,:.l'.-:u method, &0 wied o calculate the seitbement value The
ability 1o delrver sther abiligations may eesult i 2 cheapest-1o-delbver apticn
[the buyer of protection’s right to choose the deliverable obligation with the
kwwest value Toflowing a creckt eventh

Credin default swap agreements on credit indoes srecive one party making a
stream of payments to another party in exchange for the right to receive a
spedfied rebum in the event of a write-down, primcipal shostfall, interest
shortlall or delault of 2l of pan of the referenced entities compriuing the
creditindax. A credit index is & basket of credit instruments or exposuees
designed 10 be representatee of some part of the credat market as a whale
Thesse wnndicess are made up ol refenence credits that ane judiped Bry & po af
dealess o be the most liguid entities in the oedit default swap mariet Based
on the secior of the index. Components of the indices may indude, but ae
nof limited 8, mvesimen] geade securites, hegh 5'.1.‘||1 i, fisel-hacked
securities, emerging markets, andioe vanous cedit ratings within each sectos
Credit indices are traded using credd default swaps with standardized terms
inchading a fixed spreaed and Sandard masunty dates. Anindex cridit default
sweap references all the mames in the sdex, and if there i a default, 1he aedit
event is settled based on that name’s weight in the index. The composition of
the mdices changes penodically, usually every six months, and for mest
indices, each name has an equal weight in the index & Fund may use credit

default swaps on credin indices 1o hedge 2 pontfolic of aredit default swaps or
bands, whech i less expensive than & would ke 10 buy macy credit defauli
waps b achieve a similar eflect Credit default swaps on mdices are
instruments for protecting investors cwring bonds against default, and
Tradeis use them 1o speculabe on changes in credit quality

fmphied credht spseads, represered in absolute terms, wiilzed in determereng
thee market value of oredit default swap agreements on (omorate, loan,
sovgresgn, L 5 mumicps o U 5 Treasuny issus a5 cfpt\'lm'.qr\d_ i ary, ahe
desclosed im the Motes 1o Schedule of Imvesteents. They serve as an indhcatol
wf the turrent status of payment/performance risk and repaesent the fikelbood
arrisk of delaulr for the relerenced entity. Fhe mpled credit spread of a
paiticular referenoed entty rellects the cost of buyingtseling protecion and
may indude upfront paymens required 1o be made to enter it the
agreement Wider credit spreads represent a deterioration of the relerenced
eritity's ceedit soundmess and a greater ibelihood or nk of defauly or ot
cred event pocuming as defined under the terms of the agreement For cradit
delault seap agresments on asset-backed securties and credit indices, the
quotisd maket proes and tisulting vitlues sered o the indcatoe of the current
starus of the paymentiperdormance rek Increasing market values, in absolute
1ems when compared 1o the notional amownt of the swap, repeesent a
detencnation of the relerenced enlity's oredit soundness and a greater
Rkelihood o ek of default of cther credit event ocourting as defined under
the terms of the agresment

The mam mm posertial ameant of Tature punymEngs (undiscounted) that

& Fund a5 & selfer of pratection could be requined 1o make under a credd
delault swap agreement equals the notional amount of the agreement
Notonal amounts of each inderidual credit delault swap agreement
outstanding i of peiod end Tos which a Fund is the seller of protection e
disclosed in the Mates o Schedule of Imvestments. These patential amounts.
would be parbially oifset by any recovery values of the respectave referenced
obligatiors, upfiont payverents seceived upon entenng into the agreement, of
e ammounts Tecerved Trom the settlement of buy protection cedit defaubt
Swap agreements enteved inkg by a Fund for the same relerenced entity oo
e

Intarest Rate Swap Agroaments Cesnan Funds ane subjec to intenest rate
risk expasure in the mormal course of pursuing their imestment, objectves
The value of the fued rate bonds that a Fund holds may decease if interest
st fise To help hedge agendy this figk v 19 mainkaEn i ability 1o
generabe income af prevailing marker rates, a Fund may enter into intedest
rabe swap agreements. Interest rale swap agreements ewobve the exchange
by a Fund with ancither party for their epspectnoe commitreent 40 pay of
FECEnE meiEs] on the notional amocnt of Fr.:‘x.'||.|.1| Ceradn foems af intesest
rabe swap agreemants may include: (i} interest rate caps, under which, in
retuan for a premium, gne party agrées o make payments ta the other o the
extent that intenest ranes excesd a speafred rate, or “cap”, (i) intenest rae
floors, undes which, in return for @ premium, one paity ageees to make
payments ta the other to the extent that interest rates fall below 3 spefied
rate. ar “flooe”, {in] et cate collars, under whech 3 ety sl o cap and
purchases a foor or vice versa in an atiempt to protect dsell against inteest
rate movements exceeding given minimum of madmum lizvels, {iv] callable
ere rale swaps, under wiach the biyer pays an updiont foe n
consideration Tor the right 1o early terminate the swap transaction in whake,
at rern cost and at a predetermined date and time prior 1o the matunsy date,
) spreadiacks, whech allow the iraeiest rate SV LS 00 ook in the
forevaed differential (or spread) bebasen the interest ate Swap rate and a
specified benchmark, or () basis swaps, under which two parties can
exchange variable inenest rates baved on different segments of money
matkits
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Tetal Aeturn Swap Agrewsseats: Cetain Funds may enter into botal return
S agEEements 1o gain or mitigate exposunt to the underbying reference
Total retatn fanp Syneements imdhe oommitments whine tinghe o smultphe
cash flows are enchanged based on the price of an underfying reference asset
and cn a fed or variable snterest rate. Tofal retum swap agreements may
imeabee commmitmiens to pay milenest in exchanos for & market-linked return
One counterparty pays out the total reveen of a speofic underling reference
assel. whith may inchade 3 single security, a basket of secunities, or an index,
and i eenatn eocened 3 Tooed o vaniable rate A2 the mabiity date, & net cish
Thews i3 exchanged whese the wotal retuin is equivalent b the retum of the
underkaing reference asset bess a financeng rate. if amy. As a receiver, a

Fund woudd recenve payments based an any positive tolal retum and would
o payenents i the event of @ negatie total retuen As the payer, a

Fund weoudd cwe paymenis on any positive to2al retum, and would recene
payments in the event of 3 net neqatie total retum

7. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

{a] Prineipad Riake In the normal couese of business, the Funds (o Acguied
Fund(s], if applicable} erade financial instruments and enter into financial
pansactions where ik of potenis loes it due 1o such th figh a6 chandges
in the market {market resk) or failure or inability of the other party to a
transaction o perform (credit and countenparty risk). See below for a detailed
deseripiion of sehect princpal ks

Fund of Fands To the dxchéng that cestien Funds imaes) wiatantially al of thsir
respectve assets i Aoquired Fund{s), the risks assocated wath investing in
these Funds will be dosely eelated to the risks assooated with the securities
and other imeegtments hidd by the Acquined Fundish The ability al the Funds
to achieve their respectnee investment objeciives may depend upon the ability
of the Acquired Fundis) to achieve ther respective investment objectsves
Thesres cain b nd Surancd that the imsistment obpsctime of army dusquined
Fund(s] wall be achieved The WAV of an Acgaring Fund will Ruciuse in
respanse to changes in the respective MAY of the Acgured Fund(s) in which it
ImaisTs

In the nermal coure of bisires, Aogured Fund(s) trade fnandal insthamenis
and enter inta finandial transactions where nisk of potential loss exists due to
thanges in the market (market risk), or failure or inabdity of the other party 1o
2 trarvaction 10 peefoem (credi and courterpasty nisk)

Parformance-Linked Notes Risk To the extent sach of the B-1 1605 [1PY), B
1605 (USD), B-1 1609 {IPY], B-1 1609 (USD), B-) 1642 (IPY) and B-) 1612
{USD) Classes of the AIMCO Berewda Income Fund E imest in Pedomance-
Linckef Blabes, Thay wall f-:uth}n- gt imastment oppaitunities, which fould
neqatiely impact the performance of such Class. In addition, such
Perlormance-Linked Nates are unsecwed cblgations of Credd Suisse
Insernasanal and 1o the Cladse ae epased to the credd nsk of Credht Suisse
Inpetnatanal Furhesmare, the Performance-Linked Notes will be adversely
affected in the event of a default, reduced credit rating, or deterioration in the
sobvincy ol Cridt Suisie Inteinadianal

Miaskoet Risdy & Fund's sveitments m hinancial detmeatree instruments and

other Enandal instruments expose the Fund to vasious risks such as, but ot
limited g, interest rate. foreign (non-U% } curvency, equity and commeddity

ik

Interest rabe nsk is the nsk that Toced ncome secunites and other mstruments
held by a Fund may dedine invalue because of an ingrease ininferest rates. If
nominal inenest rates rive, the value of comain fooed income secunties hakd by
a Fund woild 'b.rh' deciede A nominal intesest rane can be debenbed a5 the
sum of a real interest rate and an expected inflation rate Interest rate
changes can be sudden and unpeedictable. and a Fund may lose money o

these changes ace na!t antopated by Fund management. & Furd may not be
able 1o hedge against changes i interest rates of may choose not to do o fos
o4t of ather reasons. In addition, any hedges may not week a: intended

Duration is a measune umed to determans the sersitivity of a seourity’s price to
changes i intenest rates that inconponaties 3 secunty s yield, coupon, fnal
maturity and call features, among other charactenstics. Comexily 5 an
additienal measure wed 1o understand a secunty’s or Fund's interest rate
senisinaty That measunes the rate ol :hauqvul'dul.ﬁnn 10 fEEpondE 10
changes m anterest rates Fioed moome secunties waih longer durations terd
1o b more sersilive 10 changes in inferest rates, wually making them mose
volathe than secutites with shomer durations. A wide vatiety of Tactors can
cause inbitedt rases o yiekds of U S, Tressury securties [or yelds of other
typess of bonds) to rise (e g, central bank monetary polices, inflation rates,
general economic condibions, ete ). Thes is espacially true under curent
conditions because interest rates and bomd pelds are near histoncally low
fevels Thus, the Funds currently face a heightensd bevel of risk associated
with resing interest rates andior bond yiekds. This could be driven by a vanety
of factors, mcluding ban non fimited 10 central bank monetary polices,
changing anflaten of teal groeah rates, general economic condithars,
increasing bond isuances or reduced market demand for fow ywefding
irnvestments. Furthes, wisle U5 bond markets have steadily gown oves the
parst three decades, dealer "market making™ abibty has remained relatively
stagnant. Given the importance of intermediary " market makang™ in creating
a robarst and active market, foed income seombes are currently

{acing snereaded volatding and haudny ssks. All of thes lactars, collectrmly
andfor individually, oould cause a Fund to bosevaloe I the Fund lost enough
value, the Fund could fage increased Unitholdes redemplicns, which could
{urther ifmpair 124 |:|:1‘.¢r'n.’u||;r Alig, the Fund may be sdveitely afected
when a lange Unitholder purchases or redeems lange amounts of units, which
can pocur at any Bme and may impact the Fund in the same marner as a high
wolume of redemplion nequeats. Laige Unithalder transsctiond méy impact
the Fund's biquidity and ret asset value Such transactions may also mreae
the Fund's transaction casts or otherwise cause the Fund to perform

d 1||:'n:n‘.h".hun infindid. Moredver, the Fund r subpect to the nsk that
ather Unithalders may mate imvestment deceaons based on the choices ol 3
Laege Linitholder

A Fund may have signiicant miporure te issuens in the United Kingdam. The
United Kingdom's withdimval fram the Eurapean Linion iy mpact Fund
retwns This decision may cause substantial velathity in foreign exchange
markets, lead to weakness in the exchange rate of the British pound, resuit in
& sisraned penad of market uncenamnty, and destabilize wrme or 51 of the
ather Eurapean Union member countries and'ce the Eurozane

Foreign (pon-U05 ) secunties in thes ieport e dassfied by the country of
TROparation ol a holding In certan EvEiandes, & ounty’ s Sountny af
imcorparation may be different from its countny of economic exposure

B a Fund irmvests directly im fonesgn {noneLL S | ooerercies or in securities that
trade in, and recene pevenusd in, foresgn (ron-U8 S }currencies, of in Saancial
desheative instraments thal prode axpasure 1o fonengn {Roa-U 5 1 oenencie,
it will e subject to the risk that those currencies wall decline n value relatve
10 the e cureency of the Fund, ar, in the case cf‘ﬂ'&qnu portations, hat
the Fund's base cumency will dedine invalue relative to the qurrency being
hedged. Currency rates in Soreign counties may Hischeate signibcantly over
short periods of time for 3 number of reasons, induding changes in interest
rabes, intervention (o1 the fallure 1o imervene) by U5 o fategn gorennenents,
central banks or supranational entties such as the Internatonal Monetary
Furd, o by the impadiion of camendy controls of ciher political developments
i ik United Sates of abeoad Ag b resuly a Fund™s imaetments in Sareign
curtency-denaminated securfties may teduge the Fund's returms
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The market values of equeties, such 25 common stocks and prefiered securities
or equity related smositments such o luures and options, hive Feitorically
resen and Fallen in periodic opces and may decline due ta general marker
conditions which are not specifically related to a particular compary, such as
real oo percened adverse ecanemic condtians, changes n the general
outlook for corparate earnings, changes in interest of ourency fates, public
health emergendes, such as the spread of infectious iness or disease, or
i imoesice sentienent genetally They may dso dechine due 1 factors
which affect a particula indusiry o industries, such as labor shortages or
increased production costs and competitve conditions within an ndustry
Different types af equaty securities may react differently 1o these

dissdl opamnity. Equity Securiied ansd equity telinsd imvestmints Qererally s
greater market price volatility than fiwed income sequrties

The Funds may imvest in certam instruments that rely in some Tashion upon
LBOR LBOR 15 an average senes rate, detemined by the ICE Benchmark
Administration, that banks change one anather for the use of shoet-term
meney The United Eingdom's Financial Conduct Authonty, which reguiates
LIEGR, hag announced plans 1o utimately phase out the use of LIBOR These
remaien uncertainty reqaldeng future utilzaten of LIBOR and the nature of
amy meplacement rate (e g, the Secured Overmight Finanding Rate, which is
intereded 1o replae U 5. dollar LIBOR and measures the cost of overnight
barrowings theoiagh repurthiase agreement transactions collateralined with
LS. Treasury seceritiesy Any potential effects of the transition away from
LIBOR on a Fund or on oirtan sstruments in which a Fund imsests can be
difficult 16 ascerain, and they may vary depending on & vasiety of factors. The
transiton may aloa result in a eeduction in the vafue of oevtan instruments
held by a Fund o a reduction in the effectiversss of related Fund tramsactions
ich i hediges. Any fuch iflmcrd o the trasdimon ey Tran LIBOR. & wll
as other unforeseen effects, could result on losses toa Fund

Begireirg in lanuary 2020, global finencad markets have experienced and
may conzinue o expersence sgmificant volatlity resuling feom the gpeead of a
nowvel coronavieus known a3 COVID-19. The outherak of COVID-19 has
resutted in travel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply chain
disruptooes;, koweer conspmi demand and gineral marked uncertanty. The
glabal ecanamy, the economies of cenain nations and indnadual Esuers hae
been and may conbinue 1o be adversely affected by COVID=19, particularly in
light of the interaormectivity between economies and financdial markets, all of
which may negatively impact the Funds” peformance. In addition, COVID-19
and grvernmental responses to COVID- 19 may negatively impact the
capablitiess of the Funds' senvice providers and desnpt the Funds’ cperations

Cowdfit and Countorparty Risks A Fund wil e sposed to credif sk 1o
parties waith wiarn i rades and will aleo bear the sk of wsimbeme defaul

A Fund mandmizes concentrations of credit nsk by undertaking transadions
with & Lege rumber of oustomers and counteiparties cn recognized and
reputable enchanges, where applicable, OTC dernative transactions are
subject to the risk that a counterparty to the transaction will ot fulfill its
contractual obligatioes to the other party, 2= many of the pratections aflorded
o centrally cheared dematve transactions maghl pal e alasle foe OTC
dertvatrve fransacthions. For demvatives traded on an ewchange or theough a
ceniral counterparty, credd sk resides with 1he areditworthiness of

ther Fursd's chearing braked, or the |;|r:.1||n]hww|::,l:-{_ rather than wath &
counterparty v an OTC dervatree transaction. Changes in regulation relating
ter 2 Fund's use of derivatives and related instruments. could potentially limit
of impact the Fund's ability 1o ifreest an dermeatress, hmit the Fund's sbibty 1o
employ cenam stabegees that e derncatives and'or adversely afiect the value
o periamance of dervatives and the Fund A Fund could kose money if the
issuer of guaranter of a fived sncome secufizy, of the counerparty to a
financial dervalne indtnumints contract, repurchass g eemint of & oan of
portiolio senurities, is unable or umwiling to mabe timely principal andfor

imtedesd payments, of 10 otheratse honer its oblgations. Secunties and
Tinancral derhratnee insliuments ace subject 1o vanng degrees of credit ik,
which may be reflecied in cradit ratings

Similar to credit sk, a Fund may be exposed to counterparty ek, or the risk
1hat an ingtibation o other entity wath which a Fund has unsettied oF Open
transactions will defaule. FIMCO, as the Manager, minimizes countesparty
risks b0 the Funds through 3 raenbar of wiays. Prior fo enbering info
Trafsachions with & new coumlanparty, the FIMDD Counterparty sk
Committee conducts an extensive credil feview of such counterparty and muss
approve the use of such coanterparty. Furthenmore, pursuant 1o the teems of
thar unededtying consfact, to the extent that unpad amounts owed 1 a Fund
exceed a predetermined thiethold, such counterpary shall sdvance colliers
1 a Fund in the form of cash or secunties equal in vafue 1o the unpaid
amount owed toa Fund. A Fund may emest such oollateral in seoxibes o
ather instuments and will yrpicaly pay inteest 1o the countesparty on fhe
collateral recened If the unpaid amount ewed ta a Fund sutsaquenthy
decreases, 3 Fund would be tequired to retum 1o the counterparty al or a
pamion of the collateral preveoushy sdranced PIMCO's atbempts to minimize
courterparty sk may, howvel, be unsucoesshul

Cantingent comvertible securities [ Colos™ ) are a form of hybrid debt security
evund primarily by nen-Ul S, msuers, which have loss abrsorption mechanisms
Biuitt into these terms. Colos have no stated maturity, have fully dsoebonary
coupons and ate typically ssued in the form of subcedinated debt
mtruments. Colos ginerally sither cormren] inlg equity of the st or have
thetr princpal weitten down upon the ocourrence of cerain DgRening events
{"tiggers”) kelked 1o requlatory capital thresholds of requlaiogy actions
relating to the isauser’s continged viability. A5 a cesult, an imvestment by a
Fund in CoCos if subject 1o the ik that coupon (e, interesr) Panyrberls. My
ke cancelled by the issuer or a regulatary autharity in order fo help the issuer
akrsorb losses. An imvestment by a Fund in CoCos i5 2850 subject bo the nsk
that in the event of the liquidason, desolunon of windng-up of a0 msuer
peior to @ trigger event, a Fund's rights and claims wall genesally rank junioe
1o the dlaims of bolders of the issuer’s other debt obligations. In addition, i
CoCod hisd by a0 Fund ane conwaited inta the sswer's undithang equity
secunties fellowing a tregger evenit, the Fund's holding mary be furthes
subordinated due to the comversion from 3 debt to equity instrument In
ceitain soenasios, investors in Colos may suffer a loss of capital ahead of
equity halders or when eguity holdess do not. Thene = no guaranfes that a
Fund wil receree a return of prncipal on CoCos. Any indication that an
automalic write-down or comversion event may ooour can be expected {0 have
an adverse effect on the market price of CoCos. Colos ane often rated below
enestment grade and are subyect to the nisks of high yeld securities. Because
Colos are msued prmanily by financial irtitutions, Colos may presen
substanbally increaded ruks at tmed ol frarcal turmoil, which could affect
financial institutions mare than companies in ather sectors and industries
Further, the valse of an investment in Colos is unpredictable and will be
inflluenced by many factors and risks, including interest rate risk, credit risk,
market risk and bapusdiry risk An imvestment by @ Fund in CoCos may resultin
Torsses bo the Fund

AR raractions in lsted securities are settbedipad for upon delivery uung
approved counterparties. The sk of default is considered minimal, as delvery
ol seaurites sold is oofy made coce 8 Fund has recerved payment. Payment is
made on a purchase once the secunties have been delnserad by the
courdespasty. The trade will Tail i either party Tails 1o meet its shligaton

1) Othar Risks In genesal, each Fund may be subjec o addinonal risks,
mcluding, but not limited o, nisks related to government regulation and
imenvienhicn in hinandal markets, operational risks, s assocaied with
financial, economic and global market desuptions, and oyberecuting miks

Ll it | Oessba 3. 2071

318/439



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to Financial Statements g

Please reder 5o each Fund's offenng decuments for 2 more detailed
description af the msks of imvestng n the Fund

Madkat Disruptions Risk The Funds ae subect no imeestment and
operational risks assoniated with financial, economic and other global market
dewelopments and disrupbions, induding thase ansing from war, terronism,
marker maripulation, government merventoed, defaclis and shutdawns,
politcal changes o dpfamatic developments, pubibe health emegendes
{such: as the spoead of infectious deeases, pandemics and epidemics) and
naturalferraronmental dsasters, which can all |:r‘|].1tw.".‘, impect the secusilins
markess, miededs fa%es, aucnons, secondary trading, ratings, credi msk,
inflation, deflation and ather factors relating to the Fund's imvestments oo the
Manage:'s operations and cause 3 Fund to kose value. These events may have
advesse long-tem efiects on the U S, and world economéss and markets
generally. These events can also impair the technology and ather cparational
systems: upon which a Fund's senvice providers, induding PIMCO as the
Funds’ imestment sdaser, rely, and could othenwie disnupt & Fund's seance
providers’ ability to fulfill thesr ohligatans to the relevant Fund. For example,
the spread of an infectious retpiratony lness caused by 3 novel strain ol
ez (o e COVID-19) ks Caimad wolatdity, sbvent macked
dislocations and Hquidity corstraints in many markets and may adversely
affect a Fund's imvestmenits. and operations.

Goversment Interveation in Finaneial Markets. Fedenal, state, and other
qireenments, Ther cequlatody agencuss, oF wll'-qu!.a:Dr,':l::].u'ui'.:'.l:m. ay
take actions that affect the regulation of the Estruments in which a Fund
imests, o the issuers of such estruments, in ways that are unforeseaable
Legislation of nequlation mary also change the way in which a Fund itseHl is
regulaied. Such legilation o regulation could limit or prediode a Fund's
ability to achieve its iwestment objective Furthermese, volatile finandial
markets can egpose a Fund 1o grester macket a0d hiquedity nik and patential
difficulty in valung porfiola mstruments held by the Fund The valiue of 2
Fund’s holdings is ako generaly subject to the risk of fubwre local, naticeal, or
global economic desturbances based pn unknown weaknesses in the mackets
i which & Fund imvess Bn addimdn, il ok ol ceman that the U 5 Govednment
wall inlervene in response bo a futuse market disturbance and the effect of any
such foture intenvention cannat be predicted. It is difficult for sssuers o
prepate far the impact of fusure financial deowntunm, although compasees can
seed 1o dentify and manage future uncertainties through risk manapement
programs

Regellatery Rlsk Finandal entities, such as imvestment companies and
imngsdment adveiins, oo gencrally subject 10 extendive goveiment regqulation
and infervention Govemment regulation andior intervention may changs the
wiy 3 Fund is requilated, aflect the expenses inoumed dinectly by a Fund and
the value of it meesimients, and limit andfor preciude a Fund's abilty 1o
achheve s mvestment obpaciive. Govemment requiation may change
frequently and may have sgniicant adverse consequences. Momover,
goveinment regulation may have unpredictable and unintended effects

Dparational Risk An imeetment in & Fund, hle any fund, can rrole
operational risks ansing from factors such as processing enroes, human erors
inadequate of Tailed internal or external processes, Tailures in systems and
pechnology, chingit in pertonnel and engis cauted by thed-pary senice
prowiders. The eccurrence of any of these Faluses, errors or breaches could
result in a loss of nformation, requiatony scutiny, reputational damage o
othes events, any of which could have & material adverse effect on a Fund
While & Fund feeks to mifeme such enshts theough contok and oveiigil,
there may sl be faifures that coubd cause ksses to the Fund

Cybae Sacarity Risk As the use of technology has become more prevalent in
the coursie of Businisss, the Funds have become potentally more sustepiible
1o operationsl and mloemation security tisks resulting from bresches in cyfber

secunty. & breach in oyber secunity relers 1o bath intenticnal and
unifigndional cyber events that may, among ather thangs, caube a Fund to
lerse propnietary inforeation, sufler data coeruption andier dessruction of ke
operational capadity, result in the unauthorzed release or ather misuse of
confidential informatsan, or othenwse disrugt nammal Business opasan
Cyber secunity Balures or breaches may result in financial kosses to a Fund and
its Urithclders. Thesa failures or breaches may afso result in disruptions to
Erusinirss ot atanns, [!l:l'll:‘ﬁl'.d::j' tesultang in financial losses: mieference with
& Fand's ability to calouiate s net et value, process Unstholder
transactions of athenwise ransact basiness with Unitholders; impedenents 1o
trading: vialations af applcabile prvacy and other laws; regulatory fines;
b rrpu.’.i‘.lau.ll dharmusgie; reimbuesement of atkar COMpEnLahcn Lod15
additional compliance and oybser security risk management costs and other
adverse corsequentes. In addibon, substantial costs may be inourned in onder
1 preveni amy cybet incaients in the fulure

8. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subject to vanious nethng arrangements [ Maste
Agreements”) with select counterpartes. Master Agreements govem the
temes of certain transactions, and are intended 1o reduce the counberparty risk
atsocabed with releant fransactions by spectking credit pratection
mechanisms and peovedang standardization that is intended to imgrowe legal
ceitainty. Each type of Master Agreemsent govems certain types of
transactions. Diflerent types of transactions may be traded out of d¥lerent
fegal ertities or affifanes of & pamicular onganization, resulting in the need for
multiple agreements with a single counterparty. As the Master Agreements
e speade ta unique cperations of different st types, they alow aFund 1o
chose o and net it total expasune 1o & countepanty in the event of & delaull
with respect 1o 3l the transactions governed under a anabe Masber
Agreement with 3 countesparty. For fnandial reporting purposes the
Saatermerits of Assets and Ligbhdnes qeneraly present demvatne asets and
habelities an @ gross basis, which reflects the full nsks and expasunes priot to
netting

Magter Agreemints can 4o help ke countesparty nisk by ecifyng
collateral postng arangements at pre-arranged exposure levels, Under mort
Master Agreements, coflaberal is routinety fransferred if the total ret expasure
16 ceitan transachions (nel of ensting collateral already in phate) govened
under the relevant Master Agreement with 3 counberparty in 8 qhven ocount
exmeeds a gpecified threshold, which typscally ranges Trom zero to 5250,000
depending on the countemarty and the type of Master Ageement United
Snabes Teeasury Bils and U5 doflar cash ane gemerally the prefiesned foomes of
collateral, althcugh other securities may be used depending on the terms
outlined in the apphcable Mastef Agreement Seduntbes and cash pledged as
collateral are reflected o amsets on thie Statements of Agoets and Liabilines &
either a companent of Imestments a1 walue (securities) of Deposits with
coundexparty. Cash collateral recedved is not typscally held in a segregated
aceeant a0 a5 such 1z reflected a5 a labilty on the Statements of Assets and
Lihilities as Deposits from coynteparty. The market value of any seoatites.
received as collateral is nod reflected 3s a component of MAY. The Fund's
oeeral eposure to counterparty risk can change substantially within a shonl
peviod, & it s affecied by each rarsachon subject to the celevant Master
Agresment

Magter Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Repurchase Agreemnénls
{indnacdiualy and collectrvely Murter Repo Agreements” ) govern repurchase,
reverse repurchase, and sale-buyback ransactions between the Funds and
sebect counberparties. Master Repo Agreements maintain provisioers foe,
among other thirgs, initagion, inoome payenents, events of delauly, and
maintenance af collaterdl The market value of ransactions under the Mastar
Repo Agreement, collateral pledged or received, and the net exposure by
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B. FEES AND EXPENSES

rig anniual rates {stated as a percerdage of the average dafly net assets of each Fund, o Class, if
Fors
Fund Manapssant Advisary Administrative  Agescy Deatribuiion
MMCO BEsrmuda Emerging Markets Boad Fund |1

= lanl LYY 05% 020%

& gt JPY, Hedgad} = 0.35% 0 20% = =
PIMCO Esrmuda Globsl Aggregate Ex-Japen Bend Fund (M) = 0% 0.20% = -
MMCO Bermuda Income Fand &

= FUPYI -

& FuEg) - - = = -

= - JUPN

= Jush) - - = = =

& K QsH

w W UPY Advinary | [ T5% - - 0

& W USh Advimargd 0T5% - - BI5%

=  HUFT

= HuEni = = = =

= NN u5DE E

= P UPY) 65% 0UB5%

& DU = = = = T

= R LF

= 5 — = = =

= TuryH® 0708 =

w U puEm 0LT0%W

= WS - BE% 020% - -

= KUPH DED%

= N uE = = = =

& ¥ UFY]

= ¥ {UsD - - - - ~

& TP - - - -
PIMCO Eprmada Merigage Oppartenities Fund

= st LPY Hedged e = = =

& JUP

= JRUED - - - - -

= U5 - -
PIMCO Bermuda U.5. High Yoeld Fand I i) B3E% A20%

PIMCO Core Incemas Corporate Bend Fuad 2020-10

= Ush 040% 00 10% DB5%
PIMCO Short-Tarm Mortgage [scoma

= R [&5% = 005% 0&0%

= J1IPY, Hedgodh

- Y 045% D5% A0%
& W50 025 - - 0i05% 050%
Rl Rapeet | Db 71, 200
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Fund Managamani Adwitary Administrati Agrnty Dty ibastion
PIMCD World High kncema 070% 0010 055%
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Years Since of Each Class Puicentaps COSC
| macheding frst yew anneversaryh 300
2 nackediog sicead paic swivaiiany] T4
3 achediog Uhd yeit arsiverin) 1.60%
4 inciading foarth yar smniveesany 1.20%
B lmacheding Iifth yaar soni il 155
Tharealter 0007

With tespect ta the calodatgn of the COSC. the walye of the redempsian amount will be the ther-gumment KAy of the units btsng repurchased. Furthermong, sy
applicable CD5Cs wall be deducted from the repurchase proceeds and wall be payable to the Fee Agent For the year ended Octabe 31, 2021, the B-1 1605 (IFY), B-I
1605 (USDY, B-) V609 (PY), B-) 1609 (LSO, B-1 1642 UPY). and B- 1612 (USD) Classes of the PRACD Bermuda Income Fund E paid W117,397, 118 in ABSC and
¥14.519,404 in CD5C to the Fee Agent

The Funds tar Classes thereal, a5 applicable) may bear ather experses related to their operation that ate not covered by the management, advesary, admirsstrat e,
agency or distribubion fees, induding bat not limited toc (i} taxes and govesnmental fees; (i) brokerage fees and commissions and other portlolio transattion expenses;
{in} costs of bomowing money, induding interest epense; (w) extraordnary expensies, including costs of Bigation and indemnification expenses; and (v} any experes
allocated of alfacable 1o & gpecifc Chass of units. PIMCO has pand the cegamzational expenses assoctated with the creation of the Trust, except far PRACO Sha-Term
Maongage Income. PIMCO has paid the onganzatonal expenses assadated with the meation of the Trust AIMCO has paid the arganizatonal expenses asocabed wath
PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2000- 1075 initial set-up, except for the formation expenses associated with PIMCO Cone Income Corporate Bond Fund
2020-10° initial pubi offening of Uniss and related Secunties Registranon Statement Bings, which include costs of prsling the prospecius and the sakes materials
thait are ralated 1o the FIMCO Coee Income Cotpoeate Bond Fund 2020-107s sale of Units n Japan Such fermabion eqpenses e reflected as Organizatian Casts in the
Statement of Opesations

The Trustes and the Manager have apponted Credit Suisse Intemational a5 the agent ot the PIMCD Bermusda income Fund E Tor purposes ol Sinancing placement foet
to be paid to certain detrbutoes. Under a fee agent appointment ageement entered ic amang the Trustee, the Manager, and Credit Sursse Inbernational {the °Fee
Agent Agpointment Agreement” ), Credit Suisse knternational has been appointed to: (1) elfect payment of certain distnbution fees to the lapanese dstnbutors in
accondare with the Fee .ﬁ.-;qn'l Apegintrment Agteemint and the e of vanous II|"".ID1| fee legiers, and (u) make all cakoslancns and determenations required 10 be
made under the Fes Agent Appoiriment Agresment

FINCE) andfor s affiliates will intially advance to the PIMCO Bermuda Ircome Fund E begal expenses inoumed in connection with executing the Fee Agent
Appointment Agreement and assocated legal agreements for the B-1 1605 (IPY} and B-1 1805 (USE) Classes of units of the FIMCD Bermada Income Fund E (the “Fee
Agent Legal Expenses™). AL the end ol these Classes’ initall afferng perads, the Fund vall be requered toc () rewmbuzse to PINCO andior igs aflikates the greates of (a)
W0 millian o {b) 0 20% of the aggregate amaocnts rvested in swch Classes during their initial offering penicds (such @mount not to excead the Fee Agerd Legal
Expenses advanced), and (i) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses to the relevant Class over the first fiscal year of #s opesations. All or a porticn of the remairing
Fee hgern Legal Expenses achvaniced may be expensed 1o Tuture B share dasses added 10 and offered by any senes of the Teust, FIMCO Bermuda Toust, AMCO
Bermuda Trust IV, PIMKCO Cayman Trust andior PIMCOD Cayman SPC Limited withen one year fiom the end of the iretial offering periods of the B-F 1605 [IFY] and B-1
160% (LIS0) Classes of units of the AMCD Bermada Income Fund E of sisdh other peviod of time that the kneestment Adviser determines in its discretion

In addetion, PRACD andior its alfdiates wall initially advance 1o the AIMCD Bermuda Ingome Fund E legal expenses inturned in conrection with emecuting the Fee Agent
Appoiniment Agreement and mtodaed begal agreements fee the B-0 160 [1F¥) and B-1 16053 (USDD Classes of units of the FIMCD Bermoda Income Fund E (20 2
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses) At the end of the B-1 1609 (IPY) and B-1 1609 (USD} Classes’ mitial offening penods, the FIMCO Bermizda Income Fund E wall
be requaed &o; (1) reimbarse te FIMCD and'or s athhiates the greater of; (a] ¥10 million oo (b) 0 20% of the aggregate amounts imvested in such Classes duning their
initial effering peviods (such ameurt not to exceed the total of the Fee Agen Legal Expenses advanced and the unseimbursed portion of anry Fee Agent Legal Experdes
prevously advanced in connectson with the creation of any B share class of any senes of the Trust, PIMEO Bermuda Trust, PIMCO Bermuda Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman
Trust andfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within oee year from the respectve ends of the initial ofering or such other period of time that the Investment Adviser
detecmings in 5 decenon), and (i) amomine such Fee .!uj:-r.'. I,ﬁ'_,,].! Expaenes 10 Ehe nedewant Cliss over The frsr Trcal Yo of it aperatians Al o a poetion of the
remasrersy Fee Ageen Legal EBxpenses advanced may be expensed 1o fubwe B share dasses added 10 and offeted by any senes of the Trust, PIMEO Besmuda Truse
PIMCD Bermunta Trust IV, PIMICO Cayman Trust andior PBMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respectsve ends of the mitial offesing periods or such
other period of time that the frvestment Adviser detenmines in its distretion

FIMCO andlor its affiliates will @l initially advance 1o the PINCO Bermuda Income Fund E legal expenses incured in connection with execsting the Fes Agent
Appointment Agreement and assodated legal agreements for the B-1 1612 (IPY) and B-1 1672 (U50) Classes of units of the FIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E (a0 a
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses) At the end of the B-1 1612 (IPY) and B-1 1612 (USD} Classes’ matial offering periods, the FIMCD Bermuda Income Fund E will
be resqueted 50: () reimbarse 1o FIMCO andlor ins sffikates the grester of: (2} ¥10 million ee (8] 0 20% of the agqregate amaunts imvested in such Classes during the
initial oflenng periods (sudh amount not 1o exceed the total of the Fee Agent Legal Bxpenses advanced and the urreimbursed portion of any Fee Agent Legal Expences
previously advarced in connection with the creation of any B share diass of any series of the Trust, PINCD Bermuda Trust, PIMCO Bermuca Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman
Tt ardfor PIMCO Cayman SRC Limited within oo e from The pestpectse ends of the mitial [:.‘!l,':llu] of sch other poeiod of e 1hae the investment Aduiser
determines in it discretion], and (i) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses 1o the relevant Class over the first liscal year of its operatons. All oe a portion of the
remarirg Fee Apent Legal Bxpenses advanoed may be expensed to fubwe B share dasses added to and ofered by any series of the Trust, PIMCO Besmuda Trust,
PN Bermusda Teust 1V, PIMACO Cayman Trust andior PIMCD Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respectave ends.of the initial alfering periods o wch
other period of time that the | mestment Adviser detemmanes in its discretion. For the year ended Ooober 31, 2037 these wene no more Fee Agent Legal Expenses
Iemaring
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P Bvisony) and M [USD Advisoey) C
MG BREETSEs reldti

MMCD Bermuwda Bncome Fund A
P ) K High Incame pay o

lrieesh PRBACO Shart-Term .‘.’n".]u:jr Incgme {she ELUE, 17Y, and USD Classes) and
wq ol gheir 2 .'

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The In ok Advried 15 0 riladed paty o the Fursd and s ay-owmed b
disclesed in Note 9, and aocnsed telated party Fee amaunts, if any, are dedosed o

Astet Ma
5 of Asgats

Feirs pand 10 the refagec

il arey, ane

Alliarg Asset Management AG, 3 related party of the Trust, swned 0.006% of the net assats of FIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund, 0.0059% of the
net assets ol PIMCD Beirmpda 'w."\-"].'x|r Dppo ites Fund and 0 B835% of the net assets of PIMCO Short-Teim Morigage bnpomee a of Octaber 31, 2021

Cetain Funds are permitted 10 purchase or sell secunties Trom o to cenain related afffiated furds under speaiied condtions cutlined in |. eocedures adogied by the
Imvestmend Adviser. The peocedures have been desigred o ensure that any pusthase of sabe of secunites by a fund from or 1o another fund Irar: is ot could be
cocviadeing 30 athihate by wirtise af hipang & common advser pc althated wvestment adwisénd) o eidied Dictobd

) i effected at the cureent macket paice D

. 2021, the Fund(s) below engaged in purchases and sales of sequeities smong afikated Tunds [amounts in thousand)
Fersd adar
ML Bt Bk Lioan Fund |M § § 6368
PRMCD Bormu Emprgeng Markes d Fund |G 5,840
PML0 Egrmgdha Emengeng Markts Sond Fund Il 1[N

IMCO) Barmots Glated Apsyregace Ex-Japas Boed Furd M 163
PV Biervrcat incorme Ford (4 15310
PNV Barmodhy Low Duraion incose Fund T
ML Bermda Merigage Dpport = Fund ]
PAMEE) B 11 S Hagh Yiedd Fordd (M| B
PANIC0) Biormcada L 5. High Yiedd Fond B (4 T I8
PAMCT Cons income Coeporate Bond Fund A120-00 my
PIMVCT) Ernn g B Iseoins Fusd (M) 11,6

11. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

Juding the T Putiee vl PINCD) e indemnified agarst certain habelities that Ay dicig ot of

¥ d : ormal Lourse o business, the F | Y Ty |; rdemnilication dauses
Tro Funds’ masimum n.-:,.rs-.'e under '“m amangements is unknoven as this veould invoive futwre dams that rna-. e made againgt the Funds that have rot yet
ooourred. However, the Funds have not had pries dlaims of losses pursuant 1o these contracts

12. UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The Trest may issue up o S00,000,000.000 units. The Funds may have a significant concentration of rsk, as certain Unitholiers own more than ten percent of the net
assets of each respective Fund Such concentration of Unitholders' interests could have a material effect on the Funds in the event these Unitholders request to
wathdkaw substantial amounts of capital at the same time Subscnptonrs and redemptions of units of the Funds are denceminated in the Funds” NAV curency and
coenented bo the Furds’ funchonal oumency at the spot rate on the tansaction date. Urets of each Fund are issued without par value. The Trustes, with the corsent of
the Manager, may in the Tuture create and ofler an additional Fund o Clas o Classes of units

Changes in unitt af beredcaal senesy veere a4 Jollows (unis and amounts i theusands®)

Yiar Ened Four Ended Your Enved Toat Ereded

Dot 31, 2621 Oetsber X1, 2021 Diessber 31, 2021 Qetebar 31, 221
Usiey Ansotc L] Rereasl ] Areure Ly AT

14T4 4 1BEBI N L) Kk KA Wik Wik
Wik Wik L] L] i ¥ 2 Hik Wik
m Wi [ e [ [ m ik
Kk [T 1 115 [T [ ) ik
Nk Wik t 1067 Kk A HiA Hik
Hik KA -] o Kk KA Wik Rk
Wik Wik 1) Mk 1 =] Wik Wik
Kk [T [T NI q (1] A ik
Hik Hik 32 LJE_ Nk l!‘-i_ Hik HiA
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Notes to Financial Statements co Detaber 31, 2021

Viar Eradd
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Tearel omm redwrnid 17,0055 k-]
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Furdd it tammetion ] i 145

13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS
The Funds ase ned named as defendants in ry madedial btigatnon or aritraton proceedings and ane not awane of 2y matenal libgaton o claim pending o
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2022 10
45,289 5,909
142 19
45,147 5,890
8,421,210
5.36 699
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1470 80
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850,000
90,956.64
850,000
250,000
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150,000

150,000
1,250,000

2019 156,055,242
2020 606,851,577.58
2021 778,167,993.64
2022 807,608,901.74
2023 798,537,475.45
Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement
2023
L

Adam Gubner

Adam Shukovsky

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandolfi

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls

Andrew R. Jessop

Anna Dragesic

Ayman Hindy
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Brett Condron

Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. Ilvascyn

David L. Braun

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

Elizabeth Cantrill

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

(Eve Tournier)

Frank Witt

Geraldine Brigliadori-Walsh

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz

Jason Mandinach

Jason R. Steiner
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Jerome M. Schneider

John Devir)

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Korinke

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Clavel

Michael Chandra

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

Nadia Zakir

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau

Pramol Dhawan

Qi Wang

(Rene Martel)
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(Richard Clarida)

(Richard Colasuonno

Richard R. LeBrun

Rick Chan

Robert English

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

Ryan Korinke

(Sachin Gupta)

Sharad Bansal

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sudi N. Mariappa

Sung Hee Suh

Thibault Stracke

Tiffany Wilding

Yacov Arnopolin
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1971
1940

60

PIMCO
PIMCO
BMA
BMA

2023 336
728,990,289,310

118 437,089,313,555

21 14,026,292,980

15 20,142,357,723
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70 174,266,625,547
9 8,048,065,719
30 18,342,792,643
36 18,614,823,651
15 22,677,551,066
4 812,290,767
5 2,336,004,508
13 12,634,171,152
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2020 12 31 2021 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2023 31
130.47
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
2(c) 721,198,092 94,094,715 670,905,056 87,532,983
2(d),3 29,741,057 3,880,316 30,870,470 4,027,670
2(e) 993,957,179 129,681,593 798,701,996 104,206,649
2(e) 317,540,465 41,429,504 314,822,326 41,074,869
47,497,769 6,197,034 45,702,592 5,962,817
2(e) 21,577,432 2,815,208 23,912,871 3,119,912
2().,7(c) 32,250,845 4,207,768 19,755,282 2,577,472
6 33,463,658 4,366,003 17,306,918 2,258,034
54,848,716 7,156,112 64,128,683 8,366,869

2,252,075,213 293,828,253  1,986,106,194 259,127,275

2021 12 31
230,285,768 2020 12 31
213,677,355 2(0),4 111,294,054 14,520,535 121,111,682 15,801,441

2(1),9 173,842,283 22,681,203 195,322,419 25,483,716
2(j).7(c) 1,140,825,289 148,843,475 855,055,452 111,559,085

2(h) 30,865,176 4,026,980 30,865,176 4,026,980
2(9),5 32,984,825 4,303,530 35,265,467 4,601,085
2(b) 36,988,617 4,825,905 14,710,139 1,919,232

8 61,620,430 8,039,618 51,541,356 6,724,601

1,588,420,674 207,241,245  1,303,871,691 170,116,140

3,840,495,887 501,069,498  3,289,977,885 429,243,415
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2021 2020
444,187,520 57,953,146 398,802,753 52,031,795
7(c) 301,432,498 39,327,898 216,289,372 28,219,274
81,689,779 10,658,065 122,043,872 15,923,064
2(i).9 31,437,762 4,101,685 33,157,779 4,326,095
6 95,602,945 12,473,316 37,379,146 4,876,857
2(r),7(c) 32,250,845 4,207,768 19,755,282 2,577,472
10,676,405 1,392,951 4,928,294 642,995
997,277,754 130,114,829 832,356,498 108,597,552
2(r),7(c) 1,140,825,289 148,843,475 855,055,452 111,559,085
2(i),9 182,746,288 23,842,908 204,137,201 26,633,781
7(c) 138,931,408 18,126,381 152,799,181 19,935,709
4,046,469 527,943 4,306,979 561,932
1,466,549,454 191,340,707  1,216,298,813 158,690,506
2,463,827,208 321,455,536  2,048,655,311 267,288,058
850,000 (6,433,247) (839,346)  (103,214,782)  (13,466,433)
150,000 1,333,506,696 173,982,619  1,308,035,518 170,659,394
2021 12 31 74,205
2020 12 31 58,608 69,610,604 9,082,096 43,399,986 5,662,396
2021 12 31
102,231 2020 12 31 148,726 7(a) 32,693,374 4,265,505 37,843,422 4,937,431
2(0) (52,708,748)  (6,876,910)  (44,741,570)  (5,837,433)
1,376,668,679 179,613,963  1,241,322,574 161,955,356
3,840,495,887 501,069,498  3,289,977,885 429,243,415
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
2(e) 4,520,575,834 589,799,529 4,012,403,139 523,498,238
2(e) 1,166,893,208 152,244,557 1,095,151,513 142,884,418
2(e) 1,272,072,660 165,967,320 1,155,727,878 150,787,816
2(e) 350,424,117 45,719,835 360,487,808 47,032,844
2(e) 32,477,418 4,237,329 46,057,465 6,009,117
7,342,443 ,237 957,968,569 6,669,827,803 870,212,433
7 2,695,488,619 351,680,400 2,283,500,614 297,928,325
666,590,135 86,970,015 777,771,809 101,475,888
2(s) 633,462,121 82,647,803 605,822,180 79,041,620
233,154,167 30,419,624 235,901,474 30,778,065
4,9 179,499,423 23,419,290 168,804,503 22,023,924
2(n) 105,285,247 13,736,566 108,835,693 14,199,793
47,627,284 6,213,932 43,316,136 5,651,456
48,672,649 6,350,321 44,512,301 5,807,520
4,609,779,645 601,437,950 4,268,464,710 556,906,591
2,732,663,592 356,530,619 2,401,363,093 313,305,843
126,921,569 16,559,457 52,168,123 6,806,375
2(i), 9 (5,545,277) (723,492) (6,676,919) (871,138)
2(b) (1,327,780) (173,235) (1,321,069) (172,360)
2,852,712,104 372,193,348 2,445,533,228 319,068,720
8 107,478,838 14,022,764 103,991,820 13,567,813
2,745,233,266 358,170,584 2,341,541,408 305,500,908
2(0) (7,967,178) (1,039,478) 13,877,124 1,810,548
2,737,266,088 357,131,107 2,355,418,532 307,311,456
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2021 2020 12 31

2019
12 31
850,000  (683,902,349) (89,228,739) 150,000 1,288,040,853 168,050,690 48,876 28,952,832 3,777,476
1,694,470,162 221,077,522 520,315,348 67,885,543 126,755,898 16,537,842
(1,133,305,426) (147,862,359) (500,320,683) (65,276,840) (116,146,639) (15,153,652)
12,785,179 1,668,082
PINMCO
6,737,652 879,061 3,837,895 500,730
2020
12 31
850,000  (103,214,782) (13,466,433) 150,000 1,308,035,518 170,659,394 58,608 43,399,986 5,662,396
1,942,092,906 253,384,861 614,678,821 80,197,146 188,461,539 24,588,577
(1,861,825,611) (242,912,387) (589,207,643) (76,873,921) (171,157,203) (22,330,880)
8,451,432 1,102,658
PINCO
8,062,808 1,051,955 8,906,282 1,162,003
2021
12 31
850,000 (6,433,247) (839,346) 150,000 1,333,506,696 173,982,619 74,205 69,610,604 9,082,096
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2019 12 31
PIMCO
2020 12 31
PIMCO
2021 12 31

2021 2020 12 31
153,400 32,591,945 4,252,271 (58,618,694)  (7,647,981) 607,064,587 79,203,717
2,341,541,408 305,500,908
(1,749,772,748)  (228,292,850)
12,785,179 1,668,082
15,827,024 2,064,952 15,827,024 2,064,952
(10,575,547)  (1,379,792)
13,877,124 1,810,548 13,877,124 1,810,548
148,726 37,843,422 4,937,431  (44,741,570)  (5.837,433)  1,241,322,574 161,955,356
2,745,233,266 358,170,584
(2,622,190,457)  (342,117,189)
8,451,432 1,102,658
11,819,042 1,542,030 11,819,042 1,542,030
(16,969,090)  (2,213,957)
(7,967,178)  (1,039,478) (7,967,178) (1,039,478)
102,231 32,693,374 4,265,505  (52,708,748)  (6,876,910)  1,376,668,679 179,613,963
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
2,745,233,266 358,170,584 2,341,541,408 305,500,908
11,600,078 1,513,462 15,508,853 2,023,440
65,880,266 8,595,398 65,464,604 8,541,167
5,545,277 723,492 6,676,919 871,138
1,327,780 173,235 1,321,069 172,360
1,665 217 12,114 1,581
29,028 3,787 (44,308) (5,781)
4,206,963 548,882 14,256,907 1,860,099
15,036,589 1,961,824 15,010,423 1,958,410
(13,788,912) (1,799,039) (11,695,316) (1,525,888)
(108,645,764) (14,175,013) (146,673,050) (19,136,433)
(5,545,277) (723,492) (6,762,761) (882,337)
(194,961,547) (25,436,633) (130,819,174) (17,067,978)
(18,406, 245) (2,401,463) (25,708,793) (3.354,226)
180,065, 741 23,493,177 103,679,079 13,527,009
63,479,303 8,282,145 10,538,563 1,374,966
2,751,058, 211 358,930,565 2,252,306,537 293,858,434
(144,367) (18,836)
6,500,203 848,081
(17,229,114) (2,247,883) (7,078,726) (923,561)
(4,902,545) (639,635) (13,730,247) (1,791,385)
(23,500, 150) (3,066,065) (18,000) (2,348)
(45,776,176) (5,972,418) (14,326,770) (1,869,214)
337,000,000 43,968,390 416,000,000 54,275,520
(337,000, 000) (43,968,390) (644,000,000) (84,022,680)
(2,622,190,457) (342,117,189)  (1,749,772,748)  (228,292,850)
8,451,432 1,102,658 4,984,931 650,384
(33,282,796) (4,342,406) (30,720,464) (4,008,099)
(2,647,021,821) (345,356,937) _ (2,003,508,281) _ (261,397,725)
(7,967,178) (1,039,478) 13,877,124 1,810,548
50,293,036 6,561,732 248,348,610 32,402,043
670,905,056 87,532,983 422,556,446 55,130,940
721,198,092 94,094,715 670,905,056 87,532,983
2,547,664 332,394 1,300,045 169,617
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2021 2020 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2021 12 31 74,205
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
Pl LLC 1934
FINRA
2021 2020 12 31

0.00319 0.00206
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PIMCO

PGA

FINMA
PIMCO 2021
PEG
PIMCO
AREO0A
1ASB IFRS

IFRS
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2022 25

PIMCO

PIMCO

AAM LP

2021 2020 12 31 323.9 347.1

2021 2020 12 31 807 2.3
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FDIC
FDIC

PIMCO

PIMCO
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2021 2020

12

12
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IFRS

PIMCO

2021 2020 12
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IFRS

IAS 19
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IFRS
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
2021 2020 12 31 29.7 30.9
2021 2020 12 31
NAV
2021 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) (27,788,519)
2020 12 31 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
(1,665) (1,665)
(15,475,576) (11,569,501) (27,045,077)
2021 12 31 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
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2020 27.0 27.8
5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 13,838,448
(5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000) (8,697,629)
13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
4,902,545 4,902,545
(4,948,015) (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
13,624,825 19,360,000 32,984,825
2020 7.2 8.7
AAM LP AAM LLC
2020 23.6
AAM LP AAM LLC
2021 2020 12
21.5 8.6
LIBOR 0.2
AAM LP PIMCO 2021 2020
AAM LP
PIMCO 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020 102 373

354/439



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 12 31 10
2020 822.6
2021 2020 55.9
52.4
PIMCO
2021 2020
7.3 7.8
PEG
PEG PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2021
PEG 400.4 2020 147.3
PEG 41.6 2020 55.1
PEG 2021 PEG 85.8
2020 41.3
2021 12 31 26.2 2020

13.5 PEG 74.1 2020 28.8 PEG

AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 LIBOR LIBOR 20

2021 12 31 0.264
LIBOR LIBOR

AAM LP PIMCO
2021 2020 12 31
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2021 2020 12 31 102,231 148,726
74,205 2021 12 31
2021 2020
2020
17,806
3.84
25.1

11.1
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0.6
2021
2020
2019 12 31 153,400 153,400 13,492
29,802 29,802 17,806
27,775 (27,775)
(27,775) (27,775) 11,567
(6,701) (6,701) 14,416
2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
41,017 (41,017)
(41,017) (41,017) 12,967
(5,478) (5,478) 15,218
2021 12 31 102,231 102,231 15,330
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 11,804 17,806
1.99
20,924 2021
17,806 2020 2021 41,017
2021 31 2021 28
15,597
2021 12 31 73,774 431
AAM LLC
2020 27,775 2020 30
9,732
2021 2020
11.6 15.5

2021 12 31 2025 12 31
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12.7
AAM LP
401
100
2021 2020 59.1
55.1
AAM LP
1974 201 301
401
2021 2020 12 31
12 874.8
12 31
2021 2020
81,038 29,332
3,988,116 3,432,731
115,094,758 121,394,722
119,163,912 124,856,785
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)

107,478,838 103,991,820
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32.8 23.2
2021
54.8 44.8 2021
285 247

12 31

2021 2020

31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123

35,796,969
37,499,114
23,189,168
34,006,401
33,302,410
69,700,751

233,494,813

(19,310,763)

214,184,050
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38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267

(24,146,287)

237,294,980
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2021 12 31 2021 12
31

P1 LLC

11

PIMCO

2020 CovID 19

covib 19
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2021 2020
3.3 731
12 31
2021 2020
2,408,685,532 582,606,016
567,143 222,021
13
2022 25
38,253 PIMCO
2022 31
16,727
2022 LIBOR

SOFR

2022
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Note 2021 2020
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 721,198,092 670,905,056
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d), 3 29,741,057 30,870,470
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 993,957,179 798,701,996
Private accounts 2(e) 317,540,465 314,822,326
Prepaid expenses 47,497,769 45,702,592
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 21,577,432 23,912,871
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Receivables from affiliates 6 33,463,658 17,306,918
Other current assets 54,848,716 64,128,683
Total current assets 2,252,075,213 1,986,106,194
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $230,285,768
and $213,677,355 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively 2(f), 4 111,294,054 121,111,682
Right-of-use assets 2(i), 9 173,842,283 195,322,419
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(9), 5 32,984,825 35,265,467
Investments in associates 2(b) 36,988,617 14,710,139
Other noncurrent assets 8 61,620,430 51,541,356
Total noncurrent assets 1,588,420,674 1,303,871,691
Total assets $ 3,840,495,887 3,289,977,885
Liabilities and Capita
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 444,187,520 398,802,753
Accrued compensation 7(c) 301,432,498 216,289,372
Commissions payable 81,689,779 122,043,872
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 31,437,762 33,157,779
Payables to affiliates 6 95,602,945 37,379,146
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Other current liabilities 10,676,405 4,928,294
Total current liabilities 997,277,754 832,356,498
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 182,746,288 204,137,201
Other accrued compensation 7(c) 138,931,408 152,799,181
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,046,469 4,306,979
Total noncurrent ligbilities 1,466,549,454 1,216,298,813
Total liabilities 2,463,827,208 2,048,655,311
Capitdl:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (6,433,247) (103,214,782)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,333,506,696 1,308,035,518
Class M members (74,205 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021
and 58,608 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020) 69,610,604 43,399,986
Class M unit option holders (102,231 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021 and 148,726 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020) 7(a) 32,693,374 37,843,422
Cumulative translation adjustment 2(0) (52,708,748) (44,741,570)
Tota capital 1,376,668,679 1,241,322,574
Total liabilities and capital $ 3840495887 3,280977,885

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenues: Note 2021 2020
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 4520575834 4,012,403,139
Private accounts 2(e) 1,166,893,208 1,095,151,513
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,272,072,660 1,155,727,878
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 350,424,117 360,487,808
Other 2(e) 32,477,418 46,057,465
Total revenues 7,342,443,237 6,669,827,803
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 7 2,695,488,619 2,283,500,614
Commissions 666,590,135 777,771,809
General and administrative 2(s) 633,462,121 605,822,180
Professional fees 233,154,167 235,901,474
Occupancy and equipment 4,9 179,499,423 168,804,503
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 105,285,247 108,835,693
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 47,627,284 43,316,136
Other 48,672,649 44,512,301
Total expenses 4,609,779,645 4,268,464,710
Operating income 2,732,663,592 2,401,363,093
Other income, net 126,921,569 52,168,123
Finance costs 2(i), 9 (5,545,277) (6,676,919)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,327,780) (1,321,069)
Net income before income taxes 2,852,712,104 2,445,533,228
Income tax expense 8 107,478,838 103,991,820
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(0) (7,967,178) 13,877,124

Comprehensive income $ 2,737,266,088 2,355,418,532

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Cumulative
Class M unit option
Class A members Class B members Class M members holders trandation Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December
31, 2019 850,000 (683,902,349) 150,000 1,288,040,853 48,876 28,952,832 153,400 32,591,945 (58,618,694)$ 607,064,587
Net income 1,694,470,162 520,315,348 126,755,898 - - 2,341,541,408
Distributions (1,133,305,426) (500,320,683) (116,146,639) - - (1,749,772,748)
Contributions 12,785,179 - - - - 12,785,179
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation

expense - - - 15,827,024 - 15,827,024

Reallocation of basis

on vested options 6,737,652 - 3,837,895 (10,575,547) - -
Other comprehensive
income - - - - 13,877,124 13,877,124
Balances at December
31, 2020 850,000 (103,214,782) 150,000  1,308,035,518 58,608 43,399,986 148,726 37,843,422 (44,741,570) 1,241,322,574
Net income 1,942,092,906 614,678,821 188,461,539 - - 2,745,233,266
Distributions (1,861,825,611) (589,207,643) (171,157,203) - - (2,622,190,457)
Contribution 8,451,432 - - - - 8,451,432
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation

expense - - - 11,819,042 - 11,819,042

Reallocation of basis

on vested options 8,062,808 - 8,906,282 (16,969,090) - -
Other comprehensive
loss - - - - (7,967,178) (7,967,178)
Balances at December
31, 2021 850,000 $ (6,433,247) 150,000 ¢ 1,333,506,696 74,205¢ 69,610,604 102,231 ¢ 32,693,374 $ (52,708,748)$ 1,376,668,679

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 11,600,078 15,508,853
Depreciation and amortization 65,880,266 65,464,604
Finance costs 5,545,277 6,676,919
Equity inloss of associates 1,327,780 1,321,069
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,665 12,114
Unrealized and realized net loss/(gain) on investments carried at fair value
through profit and loss 29,028 (44,308)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 4,206,963 14,256,907
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 15,036,589 15,010,423
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (13,788,912) (11,695,316)
Income taxes paid (108,645,764) (146,673,050)
Interest paid (5,545,277) (6,762,761)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable (194,961,547) (130,819,174)
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (18,406,245) (25,708,793)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 180,065,741 103,679,079
Other liabilities and payablesto affiliates 63,479,303 10,538,563
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,751,058,211 2,252,306,537
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired (144,367) -
Cash acquired through acquisition - 6,500,203
Purchases of property and equipment (17,229,114) (7,078,726)
Purchases of intangible assets (4,902,545) (13,730,247)
Purchases of investments in associates (23,500,150) (18,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (45,776,176) (14,326,770)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 337,000,000 416,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (337,000,000) (644,000,000)
Distributions paid (2,622,190,457) (1,749,772,748)
Contributions received 8,451,432 4,984,931
Principal elements of lease payments (33,282,796) (30,720,464)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,647,021,821) (2,003,508,281)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (7,967,178) 13,877,124
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 50,293,036 248,348,610
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 670,905,056 422,556,446
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 721,198,092 670,905,056
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ 2,547,664 1,300,045

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2021, 74,205
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:

Pl LLC is a registered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission that is the primary
distributor and provides shareholder services to ingtitutional and retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutua Funds)
and exchange-traded funds that are managed and advised by PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC
is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) that is subject to the Uniform Net
Capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which requires maintenance of certain
minimum net capital levels.

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00319% interest and 0.00206% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUS L P. as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is aregistered investment adviser in the United Kingdom.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.
PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.

PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) LLC (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll services to
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Globa Advisors LLC is aholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. (PIMCO Luxembourg) administers and manages investment
funds under the laws of Luxembourg. On July 1, 2021, PIMCO purchased Allianz Investment Real Estate
Solutions S.a r.l, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of PIMCO Europe GmbH (PEG), which was
immediately merged into PIMCO Luxembourg as the surviving entity.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.

Gurtin Municipal Bond Management LLC is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

PIMCO Services LLC provides avariety of transaction-related and other services to certain PIMCO sponsored
private accounts.

Allianz Real Estate of America LLC (AREOA) is a captive real estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(2 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 25, 2022.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and all related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and

key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financia institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $323.9 million and $347.1 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE totaled $807 thousand
and $2.3 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Management considers investments in money
market accounts to be cash equivaents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These
investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining
cash and cash equivaents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each
institution generally exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar
federal foreign programs), and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of
FDIC insurance coverage.

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognized directly in other income, net in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(6 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal.

(Continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are ongoing fees that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these val ues can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office egquipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships, developed technology and trade name. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost
method for the developed technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to three years, using the
straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists. No impairment charges have been recorded during 2021 or 2020.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K Income Taxes
The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share

of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

(Continued)

373/439



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(I) Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined in the
Company’s Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end
of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably necessary or
appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promoational

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(0) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income or loss. The cumulative
trandlation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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December 31, 2021 and 2020

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liahilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.

(@ Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(r) Deferred Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(s General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recogni zes these costs on a gross basis.

(3 Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at
least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $29.7 million and
$30.9 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2021 or
2020.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(4) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
Additions 8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
Disposals (12,114) - - (12,114)
Depreciation and amortization (16,946,736) (10,841,783) - (27,788,519)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
Additions 11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
Disposals (1,665) - - (1,665)
Depreciation and amortization (15,475,576) (11,569,501) - (27,045,077)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $27.0 million and $27.8 million during 2021
and 2020, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(5) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Customer Developed Trade
Software Relationships  Technology Name Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
Additions 13,838,448 - - - 13,838,448
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 - 35,265,467
Additions 4,902,545 - - - 4,902,545
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (4,948,015)  (2,080,000) (155,172) - (7,183187)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 13,624,825 19,360,000 - - 32,984,825

The Company recorded amortization expense of $7.2 million and $8.7 million during 2021 and 2020,
respectively, which is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(6) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $23.6 million and $24.7 million
during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
a liability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services, as well as payables to other
affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on
behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $21.5 million and $8.6 million as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generaly
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2021
and 2020, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, PIMCO had no outstanding short-term
loans. During 2021 and 2020, PIMCO incurred $102 thousand and $373 thousand, respectively, in interest
expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $1.0 billion
(2020: $822.6 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $55.9 million and $52.4 million during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are
primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of North America, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $7.3 million and $7.8 million during
2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO’ s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are alocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2021, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services allocated to PEG was $400.4 million (2020: $147.3 million)
and the revenue allocated from PEG was $41.6 million (2020: $55.1 million) and are presented within investment
advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2021, costs allocated to PEG
were $85.8 million (2020: $41.3 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2021, the Company had a $26.2 million (2020: $13.5 million) receivable from PEG and a
$74.1 million (2020: $28.8 million) payable to PEG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and
payablesto affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of
LIBOR plus 20bps (interest rate of 0.264% as of December 31, 2021) until LIBOR has ceased to be quoted, at
which time the parties of the agreement shall determine in good faith and in line with market practice the
successor rate of LIBOR. To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf
of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2021 and 2020.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in certain benefit plans, some of which are
discussed in note 7. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation
and benefits included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(7) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 7
(©), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. If, at the time
of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option award, no
Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive
quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan
continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and resulting in no M units being
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, 102,231 and 148,726 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding and 74,205 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options as of December 31, 2021.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution to M unit holders. Expected
volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers using the Merton
Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one third in years 3, 4,
and 5) as separate options.

No M unit options were granted during 2021. The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the
fair value of the M unit options granted during 2020:

2020
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 17,806
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84
Expected volatility 25.1%
Expected dividends 11.1%
Risk free rate of return 0.6%

A summary of the activity in 2021 and 2020 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the M
unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:
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Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Tota fair vaue
Outstanding at
December 31, 2019 - 153,400 153,400 $ 13,492
Changes during the year:
Granted - 29,802 29,802 17,806
Vested 27,775 (27,775) - -
Exercised (27,775) - (27,775) 11,567
Forfeited - (6,701) (6,701) 14,146
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 41,017 (41,017) - -
Exercised (41,017) - (41,017) 12,967
Forfeited - (5,478) (5,478) 15,218
Outstanding at
December 31, 2021 - 102,231 102,231 $ 15,330
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2021 - - - 3% -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2021 have an exercise price between $11,804 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractua life of 1.99 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $20,924 for 2021 and $17,806
for 2020. M unit options totaling 41,017 vested during 2021. On March 31, 2021 and September 28, 2021, these
vested awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance
of approximately 15,597 M Units. As of December 31, 2021, 73,774 M units are owned by current and former
employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 27,775 vested during 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards exercised under the
cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 9,732 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2021 and 2020 was $11.6 million and $15.5 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2021, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $12.7 million.
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(b) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP isthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Internal Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2021 and 2020 was $59.1 million and $55.1 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has anonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation accrued
by the Company and subsidiaries and otherwise payable to certain eligible employees may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301
(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred
under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by
the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability at December 31,
2021 and 2020 was $1.2 hillion and $874.8 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-consolidated
deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
condition.

(8) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2021 2020
Current:

Federal $ 81,038 29,332
State 3,988,116 3,432,731
Foreign 115,094,758 121,394,722
Tota current 119,163,912 124,856,785

Deferred:
Foreign (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total deferred (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total provision $ 107,478,838 103,991,820
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The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, income taxes payable amounted to $32.8 million and $23.2 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2021 and 2020, deferred tax assets amounted to
$54.8 million and $44.8 million, respectively. Deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2021 and 2020, amounted
to $285 thousand and $247 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are included in
other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements

of financial condition.

(9) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs that are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of leases of low value assets

Y ear ended December 31

2021 2020
$ 31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $40.9 million and

$39.8 million, respectively.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021:

Year ending December 31
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

$ 35,796,969
37,499,114
23,189,168
34,006,401
33,302,410
69,700,751

233,494,813
(19,310,763)

$ 214,184,050

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020:

Year ending December 31.

2021 $ 38,461,023
2022 34,822,467
2023 36,457,152
2024 22,087,757
2025 32,862,009
Thereafter 96,750,859
Total operating lease payments 261,441,267
Lessimputed interest (24,146,287)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 237,294,980

(10) Financia Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market Risk
Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s

activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financia strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The mgjority of non-derivative financial
liahilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2021.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 6.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The magjority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions in foreign currencies also occur on a more limited basis by the
Company’s international subsidiaries.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniquesto limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2021, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2021 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl
LLC (see note 1) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(11) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed which spread across a significant
number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and globa markets. Given the inherent
uncertainties, it is not practical to determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company in the future.

(12) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle.

The Company earned $3.3 million and $731 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during
2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds and investment
advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive

removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interests in those vehicles:

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

December 31
2021 2020
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 2,408,685,532 $ 582,606,016
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds and private accounts 567,143 222,021

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(13) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 25, 2022, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 38,253 vested subsequent to the date of the consolidated statements of financial
condition. On March 31, 2022, these vested awards were exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided
inthe M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 16,727 M units.

On February 1, 2022, the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) has replaced LIBOR for AAM LP's
revolving credit facility with Allianz SE (as discussed in note 6).

In late February 2022, Russia commenced a military attack on Ukraine. The outbreak of hostilities between the
two countries could result in more widespread conflict and could have a severe adverse effect on the region and
global supply chains. In addition, current and future sanctions imposed on Russia by the global community could
have a significant adverse impact on the Russian and global economy. The extent, duration, or repercussions of
such military actions are impossible to predict, but could result in significant market disruption. As a result of
such events, the Company has experienced negative portfolio returns on managed assets, but the events have not
resulted in a material adverse impact to the Company. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practical to
determine the overall impact to the Company or to provide a quantitative estimate of any future impact.
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30

1,117,718,214 145,828,695
22,187,248 2,894,770
583,419,002 76,118,677
296,058,867 38,626,800
48,191,354 6,287,526
16,822,230 2,194,796
24,264,674 3,165,812
32,472,086 4,236,633
86,134,876 11,238,017
2,227,268,551 290,591,728
102,056,187 13,315,271
158,562,406 20,687,637
1,006,816,397 131,359,335
30,865,176 4,026,980
29,986,888 3,912,389
32,907,785 4,293,479
58,124,696 7,583,529
1,419,319,535 185,178,620
3,646,588,086 475,770,348
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419,088,130 54,678,428
578,771,182 75,512,276

64,870,656 8,463,674

33,834,936 4,414,444

81,830,157 10,676,381

24,264,674 3,165,812

4,490,265 585,845

1,207,150, 000 157,496,861

1,006,816,397 131,359,335

164,933,641 21,518,892

115,010,504 15,005,420

3,615,936 471,771

1,290,376,478 168,355,419

2,497,526,478 325,852,280

850,000 (133,718,082) (17,446,198)
150,000 1,281,455,256 167,191,467
90,933 71,204,614 9,290,066
60,434 21,195,975 2,765,439
(91,076, 155) (11,882,706)

1,149,061,608 149,918,068

3,646,588,086 475,770,348
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2022 30

1,918,013,768 250,243,256
538,043,676 70,198,558
607,567,041 79,269,272
150,045,251 19,576,404

20,791,015 2,712,604

3,234,460,751 422,000,094
958,156,841 125,010,723
239,330,399 31,225,437
321,577,100 41,956,164
117,015,533 15,267,017

90,846,357 11,852,724
55,319,442 7,217,528
17,426,195 2,273,59%
21,870,339 2,853,423
1,821,542,206 237,656,612
1,412,918,545 184,343,483

(175,838,837)

(22,941,693)

(2,646,132) (345,241)
(4,080,832) (532,426)
1,230,352,744 160,524,123
49,153,693 6,413,082
1,181,199,051 154,111,040

(38,367,407)

(5,005,796)

1,142,831,644

149,105,245
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2022 30
2021 12
31
850,000  (6,433,247) (839,346) 150,000 1,333,506,696 173,982,619 74,205 69,610,604 9,082,096
820,500,299 107,050,674 263,510,464 34,380,210 97,188,288 12,680,156
(954,645,277) (124,552,569) (315,561,904)  (41,171,362) (105,822,415) (13,806,650)
2,254,593 294,157
PIMCO
4,605,550 600,886 10,228,137 1,334,465
2022
30

850,000 (133,718,082) (17,446,198) 150,000 1,281,455,256 167,191,467 90,933 71,204,614 9,290,066
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2022 30
2021 12 31
102,231 32,693,374 4,265,505  (52,708,748)  (6,876,910)  1,376,668,679 179,613,963
1,181,199,051 154,111,040
(1,376,029,596)  (179,530,581)
2,254,593 294,157
PINCO
3,336,288 435,285 3,336,288 435,285
(14,833,687)  (1,935,351)
(38,367,407)  (5,005,796) (38,367,407) (5,005,796)
2022 30
60,434 21,195,975 2,765,439  (91,076,155)  (11,882,706)  1,149,061,608 149,918,068
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2022 30

1,181,199,051

154,111,040

3,290,743 429,343
35,746,934 4,663,902
2,646,132 345,241
4,080,832 532,426
1,007,455 131,443
13,890, 086 1,812,240
(7,530,911) (982,558)
(73,464,851) (9,584,959)
(2,646,132) (345,241)
436,774,977 56,986,031
(27,259,715) (3,556,575)
284,964,118 37,179,268
(20,389,461) (2,660,213)

1,832,309,258

239,061,389

(5,216,311) (680,572)
(636,025) (82,982)
(5,852,336) (763,554)
579,000,000 75,542,130

(579,000,000)

(1,376,029,596)
2,254,593

(17,794,390)

(75,542,130)

(179,530,581)
294,157

(2,321,634)

(1,391,569,393)

(181,558,059)

(38,367,407) (5,005,796)
396,520,122 51,733,980
721,198,092 94,094,715

1,117,718,214

145,828,695
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1940 15
1
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO 2023
2018 18 PIMCO PL
PIMCO PL
2018
PIMCO
2019 24 PIMCO PL PIMCO PIMCO
2022 12
2020 PIMCO
PIMCO 2020 31 PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 11 18 PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
2021 18 PIMCO
2021 12
2023
PIMCO 2021 22
CDO

CDO PIMCO
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PIMCO Pacific Investment Management Campany LLC
2023 798,537,475.45 1,041 8,518
1971
1940 PIMCO
PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2023 25 3,262

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2023 10 6,000 1,382 9,820

Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

2023 1,209 15 7,738

1989
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2022, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for each of the
periods indicated in the table below, including the related notes, and the financia highlights for each of the periods
indicated therein (collectively referred to asthe "financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to below present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of each of the Funds indicated in the table below as of October 31, 2022, and the results of each of
their operations and the changes in each of their net assets for the periods indicated in the table below, and each of the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America.

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund C @

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
()

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @)

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund
(€

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) )

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) )

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |1 @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund @)

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 )

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @)

PIMCO World High Income @
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Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Funds and to meet our other ethical responsihilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audits.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
January 31, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries (the “ Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December
31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of changes in capital
and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated
financia statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of consolidated financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during

the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 25, 2022
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the
financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights are

hereafter collectively referred to as "financial statements”

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A &

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
4

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund ¢

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
()

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D &

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund
@

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) )

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |1 @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund I1 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @)

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund @

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage |ncome @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond

Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A &)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D &)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E ()

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund @

PIMCO World High Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @)

31, 2021

@) Statements of operations and of changesin net assets and the financia highlights for the year ended October

@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the period from
October 30, 2020 (inception date) to October 31, 2021
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@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2021, and the
financia highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financia highlights for the period from October
15, 2020 (inception date) to October 31, 2021
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financia position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of October 31, 2021, and the results of each of their operations, the
changes in each of their net assets and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
January 25, 2022
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